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INDEPENDENT AUD]TOR'S REPORT

HO

602, Floor 6, Raheja Tjtanium,
Western Express Highwa, Geetanjali
Raitway Cotony, Ram Nagat
Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA
Tet: +9'l 22 6974 0200

To the Members of Jaro lnstitute of Technology t{anagement & Research Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Jaro lnstitute of Technotogy
l'lanagement & Research Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31,2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, inctuding Other Comprehensive lncome, Statement
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Ftows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standatone financial statements, inctuding materiat accounting poticy information and other
exptanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "standatone financiaI statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the
aforesaid standatone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rutes, 2015, as amended ("lnd AS") and other accounting principtes generatty accepted
in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash ftows for the year ended on that date.

Basls for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the standatone financial statements in accordance Mth the Standards on
Auditing (sAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together \4/ith the ethicat
requirements that are retevant to our audit of the standatone financiat statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have futfitted our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We betieve that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director's report but does not include the standatone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standatone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conctusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialty inconsistent
Mth the standatone financial statements or our knowtedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materiatty misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standatone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financiat performance, changes in equity and cash ftows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principtes generatly accepted in lndia, inctuding the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibitity atso inctudes
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maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregutarities; setection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, imptementation and maintenance of
adequate intemal financial controts, that were operating effectivety for ensuring the accuracy and
compteteness of the accounting records, retevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standatone financia( statement that give a true and fair view and are free from materiat
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the standatone financial statements, the lrlanagement and Board of Directors are
responsibte for assessing the Company's abitity to continue as a going concern, disctosing, as
appticable, matters retated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting untess
the Board of Directors either intends to tiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are atso responsibte for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responslbilitles for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the standatone financiat statements
as a whote are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs Mtt atways detect a materiat
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiaI
if, individuatty or in the aggregate, they coutd reasonably be expected to inftuence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standatone financiat statements.

We give in "Annexure A" a detaited description of Auditor's responsibitities for Audit of the
Standatone FinanciaI Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified'in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicabte.

2. tu required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained att the information and exptanations which to the best of our
knowtedge and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those book except for the matteB stated in the
paragraph (h)(vi) betow on reporting under Rute 11(g).

(c) The Batance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inctuding other comprehensive income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Ftow deatt with by this Report
are in agreement with the book of account.

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standatone financiat statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3'!, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disquatified as on filarch
31 , 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 'l ff (2) of the Act.Ir &A
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(f) The reservation retating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (h)(vi) betow on reporting under Rute 1 l (g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standatone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controtr, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure C".

(h) With respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rute 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending titigations which woutd impact its
financiaI position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative
contracts for which there were any materiat foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
betief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign
entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shatl, directty or indirectty tend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behatf of the Company ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the tike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

2) The l{anagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowtedge and
betief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities (Funding Parties), Mth the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of
this audit report, that the Company shalt, directty or indirectty, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the tike on b€hatf of the Uttimate Beneficiaries.

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

3) Based on the audit procedures perFormed that have been considered
reasonabte and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Alanagement in this
regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to betieve that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rute 11(e) as provided under
(1) and (Z) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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vi.

ForliSKA&Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No.

4;1A,4

Eased on our examination, the Company has used accounting software (Tatty)
for maintaining its books of account during the year ended March 31, 2024,
which has a feature of recording audit trait (edit tog) facitity, except that no
audit traiI feature was enabted from Aprit 1, 2023 titt June 12, 2023.

Further, the audit trait feature as enabted, has not operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in this accounting software as it
was enabted onty with effect from June 13, 2023.

Atso, during the couBe of our examination, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, post enabtement of audit
trail feature

3. ln our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors is within the timits taid prescribed under Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act and the rutes thereunder.

'10504nv

Siddharth lyer
Partner
Membership No. 116084
UDIN: 241 16084BKCOCLl710

Ptace: Mumbai
Date: September 26, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEJIAENTS OF JARO INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
l,tANAGErvlENT AND RESEARCH LIMITED

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professiona[ judgment and maintain
professionaI skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

MS KA & Associates

Obtain an understanding of internal control retevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are atso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internat financial contro[s with reference to standalone
financia[ statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

KA

9

1L

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and retated disclosures made by management and Board of
Directors.

Conctude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists retated to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a going concern. lf we
conctude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financiaI statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overatI presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standatone financial
statements represent the undertying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

1,.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resutting from error, as fraud may involve
cottusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internaI controt.

Head Office: 602, Ftoor 6, Raheia Titanium, Western Express HiShway, 6eetanjati Railway Cotony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, lNDlA, Tel: +91 22 6238 0519

Ahmedabad I BenBaturu I Chennai lGoa I GuruBram I Hyderabad I Kochi I Kotkata I Atumbal I Pune www.mska.in



MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
ptanned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in
internal controI that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethicaI requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, re[ated safeguards.

4,'Jb4
Siddharth lyer
Partner
Membership No. 116084
UDIN: 241 16084BKCOCL'1710

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 26, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEIAENTS OF JARO INST]TUTE OF TECHNOLOGY A{ANAGETAENT AND RESEARCH
LIIAITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED IMRCH 31, 2OZ4

lReferred to in paragraph '1' under'Report on Other Legat and Regutatory Requirements' in the
lndependent Auditors' Report]

Page 1 of 6

)a( A The Company has maintained proper records shov.ing futt particulars inctuding
quantitative detaits and situation of property, ptant and equipment and retevant
detaits of riqht-of-use assets.

t. )a( B The Company has no intangibte assets. Accordingty, the provisions stated under clause
3(i)(aXB) of the Order are not applicabte to the Company.

l. )b Property, Ptant and Equipment and right of use assets have been physicatty verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such
verification.

t. )c According to the information and exptanations given to us, there are no immovabte
properties, and accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(i)(c) of the Order are
not appticabte to the Company.

t. )d According to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has not revalued
its property, ptant and Equipment (inctuding Right of Use assets) during the year. The
Company does not have any intangibte assets. Accordingly, the provisions stated under
ctause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not aDDticabte to the ComDany.

)e According to the information and exptanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for hotding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rutes made thereunder.
Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not appticabte to
the Company.

ll. )a The Company is involved in the business of rendering services and does not hotd any
inventory. Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not
applicabte to the Company.

I (b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores
during any point of time of the year from Banks or financial institutions, on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not appticable to the Company.
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s

a )I According to the information exptanation provided to us, the Company has provided toans,
advances in the nature of toans, stood guarantee, and/or provided security(ies) to other
entities.

(A) The detaits of such loans, advances, guarantee or security(ies) to subsidiaries are
as fotlows:

unt in lakhs

' - Net Emptoyment Services Private Limited ceased to be Subsidiary Mth effect from
lrlarch 28, Z0Z4 and Jaro Edtration Private Limited ceased to be Subsidiary with effect
from October 3, 2023.

AND

(B) The detaits of such loans, advances, guarantee or security to parties other than
Subsidiaries:

Security Loans Advances in
the nature of
loans

Aggregate amount
granted/provided
during the year

- Others

Nit Nit Nit 2.00

Balance
Outstanding as at
balance sheet date
in respect of
above cases

- Others

429.87Nit Nit Nit

SecurityGuarantees Loans Advances in the
nature of loans

Aggregate amount
granted/provided
during the year

Subsidiaries' Nir Nit Nit 41.@

Nit Nit NitBalance Outstanding
as at balance sheet
date in respect of
above cases

- Subsidiaries

Nit

llt. b( ) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in
retation to grant of att loans and advances in the nature of toans are not prejudicial to
the interest of the Company. ouring the year, the Company has neither made any
investment nor provided any guarantees or securities to firms, timited tiabitity
partnerships or any other parties.

c( ) ln case of the toans and advances in the nature of loan, schedute of repayment of principat
and payment of interest have not been stiputated. ln the absence of stiputation of
repayment terms, we are unabte to comment on the regutarity of repayment of principal
and payment of interest.

t.

L

d( ) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the batance sheet date as the loans and advances in the nature of loans
are repayabte on demand and the Company has not demanded such toans and advances
in nature of loan (inctuding receivable in nature of toan)
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tIt. e( ) According to the information explanation provided to us, the loans or advances in the
nature of loan granted has not been demanded by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions stated under ctause 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not appticable
to the Company.

l]l.
(f) According to the information exptanation provided to us, the Company has granted

toans/advances in the nature of toans repayabte on demand or \ /ithout specifying any
terms or period of repayment. The detaits of the same are as fottows:

Aggregate amount of
loans/ advances in
nature of loans
- Repayable on
demand (A)
- Agreement do€s
not specify any
terms or period of
repayment (B)

Related Parties

NitNit

424.58424.58

All Parties Promoters

Nit

100%100%

Nit

Nit

Total (A+B)

Percentage of loans/
advances in nature of
loans to the total
loans

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has comptied with
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans,
investments, quarantees and security made.
According to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted
any deposits from the pubtic nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, v.ithin the
meaning of Sections73,74,75 and76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rutes framed there
under. Accordingly, the provisions stated under ctause 3(v) of the Order is not appticable to
the Company. Atso, there are no amounts outstanding as on arch 31 , 2024, which are in the
nature of deposits.

The provisions of sub-Section (1 ) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not appticabte
to the Company as the Centrat Government of lndia has not specified the maintenance of
cost records for any of the products/ services of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under ctause 3(vi) of the Order are not appticabte to the Company.

vll. a( ) According to the information and exptanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues inctuding Goods and Services
tax, provident fund, emp[oyees' state insurance, income-tax, Labour Wetfare Fund,
Equatisation [evy, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regutarty deposited
with the appropriate authorities during the year, though there has been a slight detay in
a few cases.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, provident
fund, emptoyees' state insurance, income-tax, Labour Wetfare Fund, Equalisation [evy,
cess and other statutory dues in arreaB as at l{arch 31,2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payabte.

KA 4
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b( ) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, detaits of statutory dues referred to in sub-ctause (a) above which have
not been deposited as on l,larch 31,202.4, on account of any dispute, are as fottows:

lncome Tax

SeMce Tax 164.40 2014-2015

2019-202090..10

478.59 2016-2017

Name of
the statute

Nature of
dues

Remark,
any

TDS credit
mismatch

Goods &
Service Tax

Deputy
Commissioner
of State Tax

Period to
which
the

amount
relates

Amount
(Rs. ln
Lakhs)

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Deputy
Commissioner
of lncome
tax/Assessing
officer
Joint
Commissioner,
CGST & CX,
, umbai East

Difference in
turnover as
dectared in
ITR/ TDs
return vis-a-
Yis ST3 retum
Excess ITC
avaited

\nIt. According to the information and exptanations given to us, there are no transactions which
are not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disctosed as
income during the year in lncome-tax Assessment of the Company. Accordingty, the provision
stated under ctause 3(viii) of the Order is not appticable to the Company.

tx. (a) ln our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

lx. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been dectared Mlfut defaulter by any
bank or financiaI institution or government or any govemment authority.

lx (c) ln our opinion and according to the information and exptanations provided to us, no
money was raised by way of term toans. Accordingty, the proyision stated under ctause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not appticabte to the Company.

tx (d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overatl examination of the standatone financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for [ong-
term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overatl examination of
the standatone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has
not taken any funds from an any entity or peRon on account of or to meet the obtigations
of its subsidiaries.

tx (f) According to the information and exptanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised toans during the year on the ptedge of
securities held in its subsidiaries. Accordingty, reporting under Clause 3(ixXf) of the order
is not appticabte to the Company.

x (a) ln our opinion and according to the information exptanation given to us, the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further pubtic offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(x)(a)
of the Order are not appticable to the Company.

x

I
(b)

s

According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has made private ptacement of shares
during the year and the requirements of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, have
been comptied with. The amount raised has been used for the purposes for which they
were raised.

.a
hy o
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xi. (a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generatty accepted auditing practices in lndia, and according to the
information and exptanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the course
of our audit.

xi (b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in lndia, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section '143(12) of the Act, in
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rute'13 of Companies (Audit and AuditoB) Rutes, 2014
was not required to be fited with the Centrat Government. Accordingty, the provisions
stated under ctause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not appticabte to the Company.

As represented to us by the lrlanagement, there are no whistte-blower comptaints
received by the ComDany durinq the year.

xl (c)

xll. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(xiiXa)
to (c) of the Order are not appticabte to the company.

xll]. According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the retated parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where appticabte and details of such
transactions have been disctosed in the standatone financial statements as required by the
appticabte accountinq standards.

xlv. a )( ln our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internat audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingty, reporting under ctause 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicabte to the Company.

xlv b( ) The Company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.
Accordincty, we are unabte to report under the ctause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with its directors and accordingty, the reporting on comptiance with the
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 in ctause 3(xv) of the Order is not
appticabte to the Company.

xvl. a( ) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 lA of the Resewe Bank of
lndia Act, 1934 (2 ol 1934) and accordingly, the provisions stated under ctause 3(xvi)(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvl b( ) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year and accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order
are not appticabte to the Company.

xvI c( ) The Company is not a Core investment Company (Clc) as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of lndia. Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3 (xvi)(c) of the
Order are not appticabte to the Company.

d( ) According to the information and exptanations proyided to us, the Group (as defined in
the Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any
Core lnvestment Company (as part of its group. Accordingty, the provisions stated under
ctause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are not appticabte to the Company.

r(vI. Based on the overall review of standatonefinanciaI statements, the Company has not incurred
cash tosses in the current financial year and in the immediatety preceding financial year.
Accordingty, the provisions stated under ctause 3(xvii) of the Order are not appticabte to the
Company.

(vlll. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingty, the
provisions stated under ctause 3(xviii) of the Order are not appticabte to the Company.

xix

t

According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of the financiat
ratios, ageing and expected dates of reatization of financiat assets and payment of financiat
tiabitities, other information accompanying the standatone financial statements, our
knowtedge of the Board of Directors and management ptans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that

MSKA & Associates

xvl.
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Company is not capabte of meeting its tiabilities existing at the date of batance sheet as and
when they fa[ due within a period of one year from the batance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabitity of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that att tiabitities fatting due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, Mtt get discharged by the Company as and when they fatl
due.

xx )a( According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our verification,
the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are appticable to the Company.
The Company has made the required contributions during the year and there are no
unspent amounts which are required to be transferred either to a Fund specified in
schedute Vll of the Companies Act, 2013 or to a Speciat Account as per the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedute Vll to the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingty, reporting under ctause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
aDDlicabte to the Company.

xx (b) There are no ongoing projects and accordingty reporting under Clause 3(xxxb) of the
Order is not appticable to the Company.

xxi The reporting under ctause 3(xxi) of the Order is not appticabte in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in resPect of the said Clause has
been included in the report.

Head office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, western Express Highway, Geetan.iati Raitway cotony, Ram Na8ar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, lNDlA, Tel: '91 22 6238 0519
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MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internat financial controts with reference to standatone financiaI statements of Jaro
lnstitute of Technotogy A{anagement & Research Limited ("the Company") as of llarch 31, ZO24 in
conjunction with our audit of the standatone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Oplnion

ln our opinion, the Company has in aLt material respects an adequate interna[ financial controts with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controts with reference to
standatone financiat statements were operating effectivety as at Llarch 31, 2024, based on the internal
control with reference to standatone financiat statements criteria estabtished by the Company
considering the essentiat components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemat
Financiat Controts Over Financiat Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia
(lCAl) (the "Guidance Note").

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controts with reference to
standatone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent appticabte to an audit of internat financial controts. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we compty with ethicat requirements and ptan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether adequate intemat financial controts \vith reference to
standatone financiat statements was estabtished and maintained and if such controls operated effectivety
in att materiat respects.

Our audit invotves p€rforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controts with reference to standatone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controts with reference to standatone financial statements included

a
a

\
f'Y

Aa4

in,

Head office: 602, Ftoor 6, Raheja Titanium, western Express Highway, Geetaniali Raitway cotony, Ram Na8ar, Goregaon (E), ,{!mbai '100063, INDIA' Tet: +91
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATET ENTS OF JARO INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY I,IANAGE {ENT AND RESEARCH Lll,llTED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under 'Report on Other Legat and Regutatory Requirements'in the
lndependent Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of Jaro lnstitute of Technotogy l{anagement
and Research Limited on the Financiat Statements for the year ended fiarch 31, 20241

l{anagements' and Board of Director's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's l,lanagement and the Board of Directors are responsible for estabtishing and maintaining
internat financiat controls based on the internal control with reference to standatone financial
statements criteria estabtished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibitities include the design, imptementation and maintenance
of adequate internat financial controts that were operating effectivety for ensuring the orderty and
efficient conduct of its business, inctuding adherence to Company's poticies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compteteness of the
accounting records, and the timety preparation of retiabte financiat information, as required under the
Act.



Chartered Accountants

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controts with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a materiaI weakness exists, and testing and evatuating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, inctuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standatone financiat statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internat financial controts with reference to standatone financial
statements.

l{eaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Flnancial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standatone financiat statements is a process
designed to provide reasonabte assurance regarding the retiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standatone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generatty
accepted accounting principtes. A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financia[ statements inctudes those poticies and procedures that (1] pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonabte detait, accurately and fairly reftect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonabte assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standatone financiat statements in accordance with generatty accepted accounting
principtes, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made onty in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonab[e assurance
regarding prevention or timety detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that coutd have a material effect on the standatone financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent [imitations of internal financial controts with reference to standatone financiaI
statements, inctuding the possibitity of cottusion or improper management override of controts, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Atso, proiections of any evatuation
of the internal financiat controls with reference to standalone financiat statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financiat controt with reference to standatone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comptiance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

MSKA & Associates

For ,{ S KA & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registra
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Partner
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Jaro lnttjtute Of Technolocy l an.gement And Research LiElted
Stand.lone Salance she€t ar at 31 Ma.ch 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unie55 otherwse srat€d)

ll M.rch 20213l 
^.rch 

20221

AS5ETS

?roperty, Plant nnd Equrpnent
Right Ot Use assets

- Other Financial Assets

Non.current Ta( Arsets (Net)

5

7

8

196.85
r,529.19

628.17
1,517.71

101_5t
1,666.2C

r,517.81

424.fi
:,017.m

Total Non-Current assete 3,466.92 5,047.24

- Trade Re<eivables
- Cash and Calh Equival€nt!
- Eank bala.ces other than cash and cash equivalents
. Loans
- Other FinaftiaL Aeti

Other Current ,ssets

9
r0
11

12

1l

r,r69.10
1,841.'E

1.14

5.29
457.67

12,810.50

691.7C

t19.15
641.29

7,i72.89
525.51

6,505.42

16,308.78 1 1,215.98Total Current assets
TOTAL ASSEIS 2o,175.70 16,263.2?

EqUfi AND LIABIIITIES

EqUlTY

Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

I

1

1,504.1l
10,219.11

1,504.10

6.026_28

TotllEquity 11,713.26 7,530.38

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Llablllties

Financ'at Liabitities

L€ase Liabiiities

Deferred Ta)( Liability (Ne$

17

?1.

18

29

55.50
991.98
116.99

970.90

141.75
i ,191.59

89.91
186.20

2,145.37 1,809.45Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current tirb{litiE

Financiat liabititie!
- 8orrowinss
. Leai€ riabilities
- Trade Payabtes

Totat olt5tandingdues of mi.roand srnalt
€nterprises

Total outrtanding due5 of areditors other than
micro and rmall enterpriset

- Other Finarriat Liabitities
Oth€r Current Liabilities

19

19

17

22

n
21

18

-t7.80

2,026.ft

2,429.22

576.6',1

105.80

1,048.50

62.37

l7.18

1,475.45

1,016.81
447.55

196.m
1,082.76

47.32

Total current Liabilities 6,287.O7 6,923.39
8,432.44 4,732,44TOTAL LIABIIITITS

Sumfiary of materiat accounting poliaies l.l
The ac(ompaoying notes (4-,14) are an integral part of th€ financial statementt.

TOTAL TQUITY AND LIABILITIEs 20,175.70

Mumbar

*!
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For and on behalf of the Eoard of Directors
J.ro lnstitute of Technology l anagehent and Research Limited
ClNi U80l0lMH2m9PLC19l957

6;J/1,4
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Date: 26 Se

Nc: 116084
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ForMSl(AAAisocl.tes
Ch.(ered Accountants
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SanJay Salunkhe
Managing Director
DrN-0r900632

Date:26 Sept€mber 2024Date: 26 s€pter:$er 2021

RanJita Raman

Director 6 CEO

DrN-07l]2904

Date: 26 September

AB. Kirtitr Ch.uh.n
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A65797

Date: 26 Seotember 2024

Siddharth lyer

16.263.22

ffi
Chief Fina&ial Officer
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology l'lanagement Ahd Research Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31 ,,tarch 2024
(Amount in INR takhs, unless otierwise stated)

Particulars
For the year eaded

31 l,l.rch 2024
For the year ended

31 llarch 2023

tNcot E

Revenue from operations
Other income

23

74

19,904.51

I51.17
17,214.51

24r.66
Tot.l income (A) 20,757.68 12,460.17
EXPE}ISES

Employee benef its expenses

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisatioo expenses

0ther expens6

75

76

27

28

6,103.78
480.00
684.89

7,43E.40

4,480.24
451.79
542.66

5,411.21
Total expenses (B) 14,4O7.O7 10,886.90

Profit before tax C=(A-B) 5,450.6r 1,573.27
lncome tax expense

Current tax
Adjustment of tax retating to earlier periods

Deferred tax

29

29

29

687.71
(81.09)

791.18

333.49

88.05
Total income tar expense (D) 1,398.00 42',1.55

Profit for the year E=(C-D) 4,052.61 1,151.72

Other comprehen3lve income
Itemr that will not be recl.$ified to profit or lo5r

Remeasurefient los! of delined benefit pLan

lncome tax effect on above
l1
l1

(26.55)

6.68

(15.88)

4.00
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax ( 19.8 7) (1 1.88)
Totalcomprehensive income for the year 4,O32-74 1,119.84

Earnings per equity share(EPS):

Equity shares of face value INR tO each
Basic (lNR)

Dituted (lNR)
l0
30

20.16
19.96

5.73
5.69

summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes (4-,1,4) a.e an integral part of the financial statements.
13

As per our report of even date attached
ForrilSKA&Aslociates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Regi,tration No: 105047w

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors
Jaro lnstitute ofTechnology ilanagement and Re5earch Limited
CIN: U80301MH2009P1C191957

4;ltLb' L,('W
Siddharth lyer
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Membership No: 1160E4

Sanjay he Ranjita Raman

Director A CEO

DtN-07132904

Managing Director
DrN-01900632

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: 26 September 2024

Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 September 2024

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: 26 September 2024

-ry
Sa l s. Kirtika Chauhan

Company Secretary
itembership Number: A65797

Chief Financiat Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26 September 2024

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26 September 2024



Jaro lnstitute Of Terhnology l anagement And Resear.h Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31 Ltarch 2024
lamoun! in INR Lakhs, unlets otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 l arch 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2021

C.rh flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adju5tment5 ror:

Depreciation and amortisation expenser

Allowances for expected credit losses ( ECL )

Share-based compen5ation expense
Finance costs

Gain on termination ot tease
lnlerest lncome
8ad debts written off
Dividend income on rnutual fund
Loss on sale of property, p(ant and equipment

684.89
(111.59)

180.11

480.00

t17.Ul
(312.81)

0.59

5,450.61

0.41

1,573.27

542.66
104.62

178.01

452.79

|.144.49!-

51.24
(0.00)

Operatinq Profit before workinq capital chanqes 6,337.37 2,65E.10

Chantes ln operatinB asrets and liabilities
Adiustments for (increase)/decrease in openting assets:

Trade receivables
Other non-current financial assets
Other current financiat assets

Other non'curreot and current assets
Adju5tments for increase/(decrease) in operating tiabititi6

Trade payables

Other current liabititi6
Other financia[ [iabitities

{37s.18)
(203.50)

95.80

{6,125.08)

151.64

Q4,761
(290_r9)

25.59

(132.s9)
(110.55)

376.04
(1,098.52)

855.29
432.88

69.29
(9.r8)

Ca!h qenerated from ogerations (623.01) 1,040.56
( 1,096.04) (762.31)lncome tax Daid (net)

Net carh flows gener.ted from operating activities (A) (1,719.05) 778.15

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Prope(y, Plant and Equipment

Proce€ds from sate of Property, Plant and Equipment
Pro€eeds from sale of lnvestments in subsidiaries
Proceeds from sate of lnvestments in Mutual Funds

Loans gjven

Loans given to retated parties

Proceeds froh repayment of Loans given to employee
Proceeds from repayment of loans from related pa(ie5
Proc€eds from/(inv6:ment in) fixed deposits
lntergt income on fixed deposits
lnterest income on Loans given to retated parties
oividend income received

(1,944.10)

8.54
4,101.17

593.55
0.73

288.20

(25.14)

7.78
1,648.81

0.05
(19.49)

12,310.17)
5.96

2, r 06.E0
(5O4.90)

5.46

194.49

0.@

1274.701

Net cash {lows used in investing activitles (8) 4,681.14 (796.10)

Ca3h flow from financing.ctivitieg

(3rs.96)
5-42
0.03

(556.78)
(286.s0)
(46r.88)

1144.041

(694.54)
(r94.50)
(178.36)
(148.10)

(301.69)

1,256.04

l{et c.sh flows used ln activities 11,781.711 (464.15)
cash and cash equivalents (AaB+C)

Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year
Net increare in 't,180.58

(1,750.91)
(982.00)

1768,911
Cash and cash equivalents at the ehd dlthe year (5 70.3 3 ) (1,750.91)

Particulars
31 ,Lrch 2024 31 lbrch 2023

Cash credit

Balances nks

in current accounts
-Cash in hand

411.81

1,U2.76
0,72

70.06

716-79

2-36

statement of cash flows 70,31 1 750.91

t"

Reconcilirtion of carh and cash €quivalents as per the cajh ftow statement
Cash and cash of the following:

v

Flnance cost paid

Proceeds from current borrowings
Proceeds from i$ue of shares under employee sto<k option3 scheme
Repayment of current borrowinga
Repalment of non-currmt borrowlBs
Principal repayment of tease liabilities
lnterest payment of lease liabilities

Mumbai



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31 l arch 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non"cash investinS activitie!
Acquisition of Riaht-of-Lrse Assel(Refer note 5) 719.18584.l8

01 Aprll 2022 31 arch 2023
Borrowing
Lease liabiLite5

r,994.68
1,341.05

1,091.10
l526.46t

290.60
822.55

t,178.58
1,619.14

Particulars
31 Ltarch 2023

Non-cash.hanges
31 lilarch 2024

306.67
531.31

7.4U.7t
1,568.59

SorrowinB

Lease tiabil'tes
3,t78.58
1,619.14

(1,200.41)

1607.921

Murflbar

*

I

4;L/ 4,t
Ranjjta
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As per our report of even date attached
Forr$SKA&Associates
Chartered Accountants
lCAlFirm Registratjon No: 105047W

Sankeh l ophe
Chief Financial Officer

Ptace: Mumbai
Date: 26 September 2024

For and on behatf of the Boa.d of Directors
Jaro lnstitlte of Technoloqy ,iLnaEement and Research Limited
CIN: U80l01MH20O9PLC19l957

.^r .I
-l

Saniey Srlunkhe
Managing Director
DrN-01900632

Date: 26 September 2024

Siddharth lyer
Partner
Membership No: 11608,1

Date: 26 leptember 2024 Date: 26 September 2024

llr. Kirtika Chauhan
Company Se€retary
Membership Number: A65797

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26 September 2024

Director I CEO

DlN.071l29O,l

summary of material accounting poticiB 1-]
The accompanying notes (4-44) are an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes

(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'lndire.t Method' as set out in the lndia. Ac<ounting Standard (lnd AS) 7 - "Cash Flow

Statemen!s".
(ii) Disclorure as required by l6d AS 7 - "Cash Ftow Statemehts" - Changes in liabilitie5 arising from financing activities:



aro lnstitute Of T<hnoloty A{.nagement And Research Limjted
Slandalo.e 5t.tement of C.rh Fl@s fo. the year ended on 31 l a.ch 202:l

lAmou.t in INR lakhs, unless orherwBe stated)

For the year end€d 11 lLrch 2024
Equity ih.re< of INR 1O e.ch irsu€d, eubs..lbed .nd fully p.ld
Salance as at 11 Mar.h ?021 1,50,40,950

374

1 ,504- r0
0.01c

8.l.nce as at 31 March 2024 1,50,41 324

For the ye.r ended 3l lLrch 2023
Equity shares of INR l0 each issued, subscribed .nd lully paid
Eatance as at 1 April 2022 r,50,40,950 I,504.10

Bal.nce ae at 31 l.rch 2023 1,50 ,10,950 1,504.10

B Olhe. equity

5h.re B.s.d P.ymcnt

8.l.nce.5.t 3r t!.rch 2023

Olher Comprehef,sive Loss tor Lhe year
Emptoye€ rtock compensation €xpens€ (Refer rcte 39)

59.99 178_01 5,588.2E
4,052.61

(19.871

6,0?6.24
4,O52.61

(19.67)
180.11180.11

Trandered to sec!rities 0.95 0.95

0.95 179.16 032.74 212.85
Eatance ar at 31 r arch 2024 60.94 557.17 9,621.O2 t0 2t9.13

Balance.i.t 1 Ap.il 2022

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year

59_99 4,448.44
1,151.77

(11.88)

4,506.41
1,151.72

(r 1.EE)

178.01r78 01

Total c
Balance at at ll A arch 2O2l 59.99 378.01 5,588.28 6,026.2a

summary of material accounling poli.ies l-l
th€ accompanyinS .otes (4.214) are an integral part ot the finan.ial stalernents.
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Jaro ln5titute Of Technology ,,lan.gement And Research Limited
Notes to St.ndelone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 ilarch 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

'I Corporatelnformation

JArp lnstitute ol Technology Management and Research Limited (the Company ) is a unlisted public limited Company dom'ciled and incorporated in lndia. The

$rrpany ara. incorporated on 9 July 2009 under the erstwhile Companie6 Act, 1956 as a privale limited comparry. The Conrpany is a pubtic limited company

w.e.f. t2 Ar8ust 2017 with new CIN:UE0301MH2009P1C191957. The registered office of the Company is located l1th rtoor, Vikas Cenlre, Dr. C. G. Road,

Chembur' East, Mumbai' 2()0074, l,laharashtra-

2 ,vlateri.l Accouniing Polici6
2.1 Statement ot compliance.nd b.sis of P.eparation

The Standalone Financiat Statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounling S!.ndards (lnd AS) notified under Section 113 of !he Coinranies
Act, 201 1 {t he Act" ) read wjth the Compa ni6 ( lndian Accounting Standa rdr ) Rules, 201 5 as amended from time to time,

Theses Standalone Finan.ial Statement5 of the Company are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is its functionat currency and all values are rounCed to
the nearest Lakhs {lNR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The Comp6ny has prepared the Financial statements on the basis that it vrill continue to operate as going concern.
The Standalone Financial Statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

The Standalone Financjal Statements were authorised for issue by the Board ot Directors of the Company at their meeting hetd on 26 September 2024.

2.2 summary of material accounting policies
(a) Current veBus non-current classlfication

Att a$ets and liabiljtig have been classified as current or non-cufient as pe. the operating cy.te and other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Compani6
Act, 2011. Ba5ed on the nature of products and servjces and their realisation in cash and cash equivatents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle a5

12 month! for the purpose of current and non-current classification of asiets and liabitities.

(b) Hi5toric.l colt conventloh
Thes€ Standatone Financial Statements are prepard in.ccordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lrd AS) under the historical cost convention on the
accrual ba5i5, except for the fottowing:
- certain finanaiat as5ets and tiabitities which are measu.ed at fair value or arnortiied cost;
- defined benefit ptans;
- share. based payment!

(c) U5e of Estimates
The preparation of the Standatone Financiat Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assurnptions that affect the application of
accounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabilities, income and expenses. ActuaI results may differ from those estimates.

Eltimatet and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in whjch the estimates

are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critic.l accounting estimates:

a) Expected credit losses on trade receivables

The impairment proMsion of trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of collection. The Company uses iudSment in

making these assumptions and setecting the input5 to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, cu5tomer's creditworthiness, existing
market conditions as welt as forward looking estimatd at the end of each reporting period.

b) Defined benefit plans and compensated absences

The cost oI the defined benefit plans, compensated absencea and the prdent valu€ ol the defined benefit obtigation are based on actuarial vatuation using the
projected unit credit method. An actuariat vatuation involve6 making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These

include the determination of the discount rate, future satary increases and mortality rates. Due to the comptexities involved in the valuation and its tong.term
nature, a defined benefit obtigation is highty sensitive to changes in these aslumptions. Att assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company evaluates if an arrangement quatifies to be a lease as per the requirements of lnd AS 1 l6.ldentification of a lease requtes significant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewats) and the appticabte discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cance{lable period of a Lease, together $/ith both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. ln astessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an optioo to extmd a lease, or not to exercile an option to terminate
a tease, it conside6 all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not
to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Coinpany revises the lease term ll there is a change jn the non,cancellabte period of a lease.

+ c{-

The dis(ount rate ls generally based on the incremental borrowing rate

c) Leasej



Jaro lnstitute OfTechnology l,lanagement And Resear€h Limited
Noter to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 tlarch 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d) Revenue Recognition

Revenue i! measured bared on the transaction price, whrch rs the consideration, adjusted for refund of fees due to admisrion cancettations. Refund oI fees on

account of admission cancettations is considered as variable consideration. The variabte consideration is e5timated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probab(e that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
tl.- variab(e consideration is subsequently rgotved. Any (ancelLatio_ cf admissions which occlr5 after the admissions pro<65 is compl:ted is considered as a

variabte consideration. A refund tiabitity i5 recognised tor expe<ted cancettations (j.e., the amount not inctuded jn the transaction price) based on the past

tre6d of cancelLations.

2.3 Revenue from contract with customer
The Company derives revenue primarily from rendering of sludent enrotments and program management services.

Revenue i5 recognised upon transfer of conlrot of promir€d services to customers in an amounl that reflects the consideralion which the Company exp€cts to
receive in exchang€ for those servic6.

The Company has assessed the univeEities and institutg ar their cu5lomers. The Company enters into contract with customers wherein they only provide

enrolment services (i.e. enrolting students into cour56 conducted by universjties/institutes) or enrotment service5 along 1,,1S (Learning Management

System)/Program Management servicei. The consideratjon for renderjng services js percentaBe based fe6 (i.e. the percentage of fees that unjveBity or

institute cottects from its students).

. Revenue from student enrotment services i5 recognised at the point in time when the university or the instilute confirms the admission of the stLrdent for the

. Revenue retated to program management service5 contracts are recognised over the tenure of the certification courses

The Company evatuatg whether each service promised to a customer is capable of being distinct, and i5 distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the
promised service j5 combined and accounted as a single performance obtigation. Where the contracts inctude multiple performance obtigations, the
trahsaction price is allocated to each performance obtigation based on the standalone seliing prices. When these are not directty observabte, they are

esthated based on etpe<t€\d (ost.plus margin.

Revenue is measured based on the transaclion price, which is the consideration, adjusted for refund of fe6 due to admission cancellations. Refund of feet on

account of admission cancellations is considered as variable consideration. The varjable consideration js estimated at contracl inception and constrained untit
it is highty probable that a signifjcant revenue reversal in the amount of cumutative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated unce(ainty with

the variabte consideration is subsequently r6otved. Any can(ellation of admissions which occurs after the admissions process is compteted is considered as a

variabte consideration. A refund liabjlily is recoSnised Ior expected can<ellations (i.e,, lhe amount not included in the transaction price) ba5ed on the past

trend of caacellations,

Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers-

With re5pect to contracts where Company provides student enrolment,eMces fo. mulli.term/multi-year courses, the Company's performance obliSation is

comptete when the sludent takes admiJsion in the 1st yearllst term, however part of the consideration becoms contractualty due, onty when the student

commences the tecond term/second year course. The Company has asses'ed that this does represent a significant financing component as the payment termj
are structured in this manner for reasons other than financinS.

Contrad assets are recognised when th6e is exc6s of reventre earned over billingr on contracts and are clarsified as "unbilled revenL,e" (ohly act of invoicing

is pending).

2.4 Property, plant & Equipment

(i) Re(ognitlon and me.surement :

Property, ptant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciatjon and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditures dtectly
attributabte to the acquisition of the asset. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful tives, they are accounted for as

separate items (major components) of property, ptant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure retating to prope(y, ptant and equipment is capitalized onty when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these
v/it[ flow to the Company and the co5t of the item can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for a5 a separate asset is derecognised when disaarded/scrapp€d. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to profit and lors in the reporting period in which they occur.

lrch

{lle

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, ptant and equipment i5 recognised in profit or loss.

U

Contract liabitity ("deferred revenue") is recognized when there are bitlings in exc6s of revenues.



J.ro ln5titute Of Technology llan.gement And Resear.h Limiled
Note! to Standilone Financial Statementr for the year ended l1 tlatch 2024
(amount in INR lakh5, unless otherwise stated)

(ii ) oepreciatlon:

Depre.iation i5 provijed, under the Written down value (WDV) basis, pro{ata to the period of use, based on us€ful tiv6 specified in Schedule ll to the
Compani6 Act, 2013.

The useful tives of the property, ptant and equipment are as lollows:
a)Computers-lyears
b) Furniture and fixtures - r0 years

c) Offjce Equipments - 5 year5

d)Vehictes 'E years

e) Leasehold improvements 'lower of lease period or estimated useful tife

2.5 Lea9e3

The Company leas6 most of itr office faailities under operating leare.greements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of the lessor and the
l6see. The lease agreements contain rent escatation ctaus$.

The Company asse6s6 whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A conlract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the l'6e of an idefltified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To ass6s rirhether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an idenlified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract invotv6 the use of an identified as5et, (ii) the Company ha5 the right to obtain
substantialty all of the economic benefits from the u5e of lhe a5set through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
a5set.

At the date of commencement of the tease, the Company re<ognise! a ROU asset and a corresponding tease liability for all tease arrangements under which it
is a lessee, except for short-term leases and tow value leates. RoU assets represent the Company's right to use an undertying asset for the tease term and

lease tiabilities represent the Company's obtigation to make tease payments arjsing from the teare. The Company has etected not to appty the requirements of
lnd AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or tess and leases for which the underlying asset js of tow vatue. The
lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The tease arrangements iflclude options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these
options when it is reasonabty certain that they wjtt be exercised.

The ROu ass€ts are initialty recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liabjtity adiusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the commencement date of the tease pl$ any initiat direct co3ts. They are subsequently measu.ed at c6t less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss6.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencefient of the lease on a straight.line ba5is over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the
underlying arJet.

The lea5e tiability is initialty measured at amortised cost at the present vatue of the future lease payments. The Company u5es its incremental borrowing rale
(as the inter6t rate imphcit in the tease is not readity determinable) based on the information available at the date of commencement of the lease in
determining the prEent value of lease payments, The tease liability is subsequentty remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interEt on the
tease tiability, reducing the carrying amount to refLect lhe te.se payments made. Lease liabitities are remeasured with a corresponding adiustment to the
related ROu asset if the Company changE it5 a5i6iment as to whether it vaill exercise an extension or a termination option.

2.6 Financial lnstruments
(i) Financial.ssets:

. those to be measured subsequentty at fair value throuBh profit and loss, and
- tho5e measured at amortised cost

(.) Cl.ssification

The Company classifies its financiat as*ts in the fottowing measurement categories

OC

The classification depends on the entitys businEs modet for managing the financial asseta and the contractual cash flow characteristics.

(b) lnitial recognition

Al[ financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at Iair vatue through profit or [oss, transaction costs
that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financial asset. Ho\4ever trade receivabtes that do not contain a significant financing component are measurd
at transactjon price.

Subsequent to initiat recognition, financiat assets are measured as deacribed below:

Cash and carh equlvalents:

The company's cash and cash equivatents consist of cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks {thre€ month, or tess from the date ofacquitilionl For the Durooss of the cash flow statement, cash and cnsh equivatents include cash on hand. in banks and demand deDosits u/ith banks (three

'ths 
q ie'J i,u", ii,E J"ie oi acqu;5;t:u,), ,€i oi uutstanding cash creJiir ii,di d,c ,epardirie un derdrd and are

'a

Mr.:nrbal

S

d, "E'|,Lrrlic'.,.i,,ii,EiJald,,L.5i,<'.,!a5irLreti;isa,eprese,ii€<jurde!iJ,r,,uwi,ig:*iti,iiLu,e,riiidiriiiiies.
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J.ro lnititute OfTechnology l{anaqement and Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financi.l Staternents for the year ended 31 l,larch 20221

(Amount in INR lakhs, unl6s otherwise stated)

Financialas5etr carned rt amortised cort:

(d) lmpairment of financial assets

A financiat aJset is subsequently measurd at amortisd cost if it is held wjthin a business model whose obiective i5 to hold the asset in o.der to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of th€ financial assel give ris€ on specified dates to cash ftow5 that are sotely paymen!5 ol principat and
interesl on the principat amoun! outstanding.

Financirl .3set! rt fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

a financial a5set is subsequently measured at fajr value through other comprehensive income if it is he{d within a buriness model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selLing financial assets and the contractual terms of the financjal asset give rise on specified dat6 to cash flows

that are $lety payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cas6 where the Company has made an irrevocable ele(tion
based on its busjness model, for its investments vrhich are classified as equity instruments, the sub5equent changes in fair value are reaognized in other
comprehensive income.

Fi.ancial .3ret5 at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which does not meet the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria i5 measured as ryTPL. Fin.ncial assets at ryTPL are measured at fair vatue at the
end of each reporting p€yiod, with any gain! or tosses on re-measurement recognized in sta(ement of profit or loss, The gain or loss on di5posat and interest
income earned on FVTPL is recognized.

ln determjning the allowanc6 for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has 6ed a practjcal expedient by computing the exp€'cted credit loss allowance for
trade receivablg base{ on a provision matrix, The provision matrjx tak6 jnto account historicat credit loss expe ence aod is adjusted for forward tooking
infonnation. The expected credit loss atlowance is ba5ed on the ageing of the receivabtB that are due and rat6 tJ3€d in the provision matrix. The applicalion
of simplified approach do.,s not require the Company to track changg in credit ri5k. Rather, it recognjses impairment loss attowance ba5ed on lifetime ECLS at
each reporUnq date. nqht froq\ rts lnrtial re(oqnitlon.

The Company as56sea at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Group of financiaL a55et5 are impaired. lnd AS 109 requirs expected credit
lo5s6 to be meaSur€d through a loss/impairment altowance.

For all other financiaL assets, expectd credit tosses are measured at an amount equal to the i2 month expe.ct€,d credit tosses on a forward looking basis

However, if the credit rilk on the financjai instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition, then the Company mea5ure3 ljfetime ECL.

The amount of ECL (or reversat) that is required to adjust the loss altowance at the reportin8 date is recognised as an impairment (gain)/loss under " Other
Expenses " in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Derecognltion oI financi.l assets

( ii) Financial liabilities

(a) lnitial recosnltion and measurement

Financial Liabititi6 are clatsified as financial liabitities at amortised cost. All financial liabiLitie are recognized initialty at fair value, except in the case of
borrov/ings which are recognised at fair vatue, net of directly attributabte tranraction costs. The Company's financial tiabilitiE include trade and other
payabt$, cash credlts, borrowings and lease liabilities.

(b) Subsequent measurement

After initiat recoBnltion, financjal tiabititie5 are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inte.est method. For trade and other Dayables,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value drre to the short-term maturity of th6e inttruments.

(c) Derecognition

Financial liabititi6 are dere€oSnisd when the contractual obtigations are discharged, cancetled or expired. The Company also derecognisB financial liabilitie5
when their terms are modified and the cash ftows of the modified liabititles are substantially different, in which ca5e new financiat tiabilities based on the
modifled terms are recognized at fair vatue.

The Company derecognises a tinancial asset rvhen

. the contractual rights to the cash fLo\rs from the financial as*t expire or it translers th€ financiaL asset and the tranifer qualifie5 for de.ecognition under
tNo as 109.

. the Company retains contractuat rights to receive the cash ftows ot the financial asset but assumes a contractLEl obtigation to pay lhe cash flows to one or
more recipieats.

when the entity ha5 neither tanrferred a linancial asset nor retaind substantiatly atl rislc and reward5 of owneEhip of the financial asset, the financrat asset

is derecBnised jf the Company has not retaird controt of the financial asset. Where the Corhpany retain5 control oI the financial asset, the arset ir continu€d
to be recognired to extent of continuing invotvement in the financial arset.

oc,
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{.} Short-term obligatlons
Liabilitjes for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits tha! are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after lhe end of the period in
which the employee reflder the related service which are recognised in r6pect of emptoye€s s€rvicg up to the end of the reporting perjod and are measured

at the amounts exp€<ted to be pajd when the liabitities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Compensated rbsencE
The Company provide! for the encashment of leave or leave wjth pay subject to certain ru[6. The emptoyees are enti(d to accumutate leave subject to
ce(ain timits, for future encashment. The tiability i5 provided ba5ed on number of days of unutitized teave at each baLance sheet dale based on an e5timated
basis for the period end and on an independerrt actuarial valuation under Proie<ted lJnit Credit method at the yea. €nd-

(c) Defined benefit pl.n
Employees are entitled to a defined benefit retirement ptan (i.e. Gratuity) covering etigible emptoyees of the Company. The ptan provides for a lump.sum
payment to eligjbte empl(ryees, at retirement, death, and incapacitation or on termination of emptoyment, of an amount based on the respective employees'
satary and tenure of emptoyment. Vesting occuri upon completion of five years of service.

Gratuity liabititi6 are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independeflt actuary, at each reporting date using the projected unit credit
method. The Company recognisG the obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet a5 a liability in accordance with lnd A5 19 "Employee Senefits."
The discount rate is bared on the 8overament s€curities yield. Re-mea5urements, comprising actuariat gains and los56 are recorded in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Re-mearurement! recogniaed in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not
rectassified to profit or loss. Past servjce cost is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment.

2.7 Employee benefits

2.8 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share.bared payments to employeB are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Ihe fair vat!€ determined at the
grant date of the equity-i€ttted share-based payments is expensd on a straight-tine basis over the vesting period, bas€d on the Companys estimate ol equity
instruments that v.i[[ eventually v6t, with a corrgponding increase in equity. Al the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its Etimate of the
number of <uity instrumenta expected to v6t. The impact of the revjsion of the originat 6timate5, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised 6timate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity'rettled employee benefits r6erve.

2.9 Provisions and expenses

J.ro lostitute Of Technology ,(.nagement And Reseirch Limited
Note3 to Standalone Financial Slatements for the year ended 31 ,ilarch 202.1
(Amount in INR lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

A provision is recognised when the Company has a prgent legat or constru<tive obtigatioo as a result of a past eyent, and it is probable that an outftow of
economic benefits vrill be required to settte the obligation and a retiabte gtimate can be made of the amount of the obtigation.

Provisions (exctudin8 rethernent benefit5 and compensated absences) are determined at present value based on best estimate required to settle the oblBation
at the batance sheet date. Th6e are reviewed at each baLance sheet date adjurted to reftect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disctosed when there is a possibte obtigation arising from pa5t events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non'occurrence of one or more unceltain future events not whotty within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it i5 either not probabte that an outftow of re5ources witt be required to 5ettle the obligation or a reliabLe estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

2.lO lncome tde:
lncome tax cornprises of current tax and de{erred tax

(.) Currenl T.x

Companys Emptoyee benefit obtigations include sho(-term obtigtions, compensated absences and Post-employment obLigations which includes gratuity plan
and contributions to provident fund,

Costs comprising service cost (inctuding current and past seMce cost and gains and losses on curtailments and settlements) and net jnterest expense or
income is recoSnised in protit or [oss.

(d) Defined contribution glans

The defined contribution ptan is a post-employment beoefit plan under which the Company contributes fixed contribution to a Government Administered Fund

and will have no obtigation to pay funher contribution. The Company's defined contribution ptan comprBd of Provideflt Fund and Labour Welfare Fund. The
Companys contribution to defined contribution ptans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the emptoyee rendeE the
related service.

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expectd to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorjtie5 based on
the taxabte profit for the Period. The tax rates and tax laws [6ed to compute the amount are those that are enactd or substantiatty enacted by the reporting
date and appucable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax Liabiljties where i! has a tegatty enforceable right to set olf the
recognized amount5 and where jt intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and liability simuttaneousty.

soc
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Jaro ln3titure Of Technology lLn.gement And Research Limited
Note3 to Standalone Financial Statements for the ye.r ended 3l l,t rch 2024
(Amount in INR iakhs, untess otherwi5e stated)

(b) Deferred tax

Delerred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and tiabilities in the Eatance Sheet and their tax bases. Oeferred

tax tiabilities are recognised for att taxable temporary dilferences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for atl deductible temporary differencB and incurred

tax Losses to the extent that it is probabte that taxable profits wjtt be avaiiabte againsl which those deduclible lemporary differences can be utilised. su(h
defeied tax assets and liabjtities are not r€co8nised if lhe lemporary orfierence arises from the initial re€ognition of goodwill or initial re.ognition of assets

and liabilitj6(other than in a business combination) in a transaclion that aflects neither the taxabte profit nor the accounting profit.

The Company recognBer deter.ed tax liabitities for all laxabte temporary differencg except those associated with the inveslmenls in subsidiarjes where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be cont.olled and it is probable that the terhpo.ary difference will not reverse in the for6eeabte

Deferred tax liabjtities and dssets are measured at the tax rat6 that are expected to apply in the period in which the tiability i5 5ettled or the asset reatised,

based on tax rates (and tax [aws) that have been €nacted or substantively enacted by the end ol the reporting period.

The carryjng amount of deferred income tax a5sets is reviewed at each reporting date and r€rduc€! to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable protit will be available to atlow att or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

I Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affai6 ('MCA") notifiB ne,/r standard or amendments to the existing standardi under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rut6 at
issued from time to time. Durjng the year, MCA amended the following lndian Accounting Standards undet Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rutes, 2023, appticabte from 01 Aprit 2023:

{a) oisclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to lnd aS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more usefut by replacing the requirement for entities to disctose their
'significant' accounting polici6 with a requirement to disclose their 'material' accounting poLicies and adding guidance on how enti(ies apPly the concept of
matgiality in making decisions about accounting policy disctosur6.

The amendments have had an impact on the disrtosurg ol accounting polici6, but not on the measurement, recognition or prdentation of any items in the
finan.ial itatements-

(b) Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet efrective

The Ministry of Corporate Affalrs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendment to existjng standard under Companies {lndian Accounting Standard) Rutes as

issued from time to time. ouring the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standard or amendment to existing standards appticabte to the
Company.

Ituhbai
a

+
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Jaro lnrtitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3l ,rtarch 2024
(Amount in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stoted)

4 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Computers
Furniture and

F::tings
Office

Equipments
Lease Hold

lmprovementg
I

Total

Gross Block
Balance a5 at 1 Ap,-il 2OZ2

Additions during the year
Disposats/Ad justments durinq the year

14.50
10.14

34.76
5.76

69.60
48.35

3.7 5
154.52

14,76
55.43

137 .37
27 4.20

Balance as at 31 March 2023 24.64 40.52 117.95 154.77 70.19 411 .57
Additions during the year
DisposaLs/Ad justments durinq the year

10.16
(0.18)

1.4
(1.61)

8.99
(0.12 ) 12.411

4.79
(3.87)

25.14
(8.19 )

Balance as at 31 March 2024 34,62 40.31 126.82 155.86 71.11 42E.72

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance a5 at 1 Aptil ZO22

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposats/Adjustments for the year

5.46
7.01

9.67
6.81

25.58
26.66

1.34
11 .47

E.91
7.11

50.96
59.06

Balance as at 31 March 2023 12.47 16.44 52.24 12.81 16.02 110.02
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals/Adiustments for the year

8.48 6.03 29.75 44.95 32.64 121.85

Balance a5 at 31 March 2024 20.95 22.51 81.99 57.76 48.56 231.87

Net Block

Balance as at 3'l L arch 2023 17.17 24.04 65.71 145.46 54.17 301.55
Balance ar at 3'l March 2024 13.67 17.EO 44.83 98.10 22.45 196.85

u19

,,

14bai
9,

rI. ,,

Note5:
a) The Company has not revalued it5 Property, Ptant and Equipment during the current or previous year.

Vehicles



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Staternents for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Anmunt in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 Right of Use Assets

Particular5 Business premises Total

Gross Block
Balance as at 1 Apnl2022
Additions during the year
Di5posat5/ Adiustment5 durinq the year

1,908.72
719.18

1,908.72
719.18

Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,677.90 2,627.90
Additions during the year
Disposats/ Adjustments during the year

584.38
(102.71)

584.38
(3O7.711

Balance as at 31 March 2024 7,909.57 2,909.57

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1 Apnl 7022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposats/ Adjustments for the year

478.10
481.60

47 8.10
481.60

Ealance as at 3'l March 2023 961.70 961.70
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposats/ Adiustment' for the year

563.04
(144.16)

563. 04
( 144.36)

Ealance as at 31 March 2024 1,380.18 1,380.38

Net Block
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1 ,666.70 1 ,666.20
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,579.19 1,529.19

;

+9?
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Jaro lnstitutc Of T.chnology lrLn4em.nt And Rer..rch Limit.d
Notes to St.nd.lone Fln.ncial St.tcmehts lor the yeer ended 3l t,6.t.h 2024
(Amount in INR lokhs , unless othetwise stoted)

6 lnvestments
Non-Currcnt

' - The name of Jaro Education Private Limited has bcen changed to Aptness Education Private Limited with effect from 3 September 2024. ln thij
standalon€ finanaiat statement5, this entity is referred to by its old name i.e. Jaro Edrcation Private Limited.

Particular5
A5 .t 3l March 2024 Al at 31 l,larch 2023

quantity (No5.) quantlty (Nos.)

Unquotcd, C.rrl.d rt Co3t LG:r lmpalrmcnt
lnvestm.nt in Subsldl.ri6:
lnvestment in Equity shares of Net Employment grvices Private Lihited of face
vatue of INR 10 each, fully paid

lnvestment in Equity shares of Jaro Edu<ation Private Limited'of face vatue of
INR 10 each, futly Daid
L6s: Provrsion for value of lnve5tment

4,4,497

1,10,000

(1,10,000)

1,637.El

11.00

(11.00)

Total 19,18,197 1,537.81

Aggreqate value/ market value of un-quoted investments 49,48,497 1,637.81

Total 49,4,497 1,6t7.81

Notesi
(i) Durin8 FY 2023-2024, tll€ Company had transferre{ 49,r1E,497 shares of subsidiary'Net Employment Servic6 Private Limited (hereinafter Referred

to as "NESPL") to Mr. gniay Satunkhe (Director of the Comparry) on 2E March 2024. Th€relore, fron 28 March 2024 onr{ards, NESPL ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. The shares were transfened at aarrying vatue of investments held by the Company in NESPL, ataordingly there was no
gain /(loss) recorded in Statement of Profit and Losa of th€ Company.

(ii) During FY 2023-2024, the Company had transferred 1,10,000 sharei of subsidiary'Jaro Edu<aton Private Limited (hereinafter Referred to as
"JEPr) to Mr. Sanjay Salunkhe (Director of the Company) on 03 O<tober 2023. Therefore, from 03 Octob€r 2023 onwards, JEPL ceased to be a
sub6idiary of the Company. Th€ shares r'rere tranrferred at face valu€ of inve5tments hetd by the Company in JEPL, accordingly there urds no gain

/(toss) recorded in Statement of Profit aM Loss ot the Company.

/.A,1

()

.!,
\i
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology lilanagement And Research Limited
Note! to Standalone Financi.l Statements for the ye.r end€ld 31 ilarch
lAhount in INR lokhs, unless otheteise 5toted)

7024

7 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

8 Non-Current Tax Assets (Net)

9 Trade Receivables

9.1 Ageing rchedule ofTrade Receivabtes

31 
^t 

rch 2023
unsecured, considered good
To Related Partiei
' Security deposits (Refer note no ll)
To Others

Security deposit5

348.81

279.36

3r9.28

105.40

ll arch 2024 31 arch 2023

Advance income tax including tax deducted at 5ource, net of provision for tax (lr March 2024: INR 1,775.97 Lakhs 6
31 March 2023: INR 131.49 Lakhr)

1,512.7',l 1,017.00

Total 1,512-71 1,O17.OO

ll L{arch 2024 l1 Ltarch 2023
lJnsecured

Unsecured

Considered Good

Considered Doubtfut
I ,I69.10

185.66
69r.70
352.1r

Total
Lessi lmpairment allowance

1,354.75
(185.66)

1,043.81
(352.11)

1,169.1O 691_70

As at l1 r,brch 2024
Outstanding from the due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months-1
1-2 years 2'3 years  4ore than 3 years

Undisputed trade receivabtes -

considered good

lJndisputed trade receivables -

which have significant increase

i6 credit risk

lJndisputed trade receivabl6 -

credjt impaired

Disputed trade receivabtes '
consjdered good

0isputed trade receivabLes

which have significant increase

in credit risk

Disputed trade receivabtes -

credit impajred

Lessi lmpairment allowance

411.65 739-66

183.22

1.21

0.66

1,169.10

r 85.66

( 185.66)
Tot.l 417.65 922.88 3. E7 15.36 1,169.10

Ar .t 31 llarch 2023
OutstandinS from the due date of payment

Not due
Less than 6 6 months-1

r-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undlsputed trade receivables -

considered good

t,ndisputed trade receivabtes -
which have significant increase
in credit risk

Undirputed trade receivablE -
credit impaired

oisputed trade receivable3 -
considered Sood

Dirputed trade receivablE -

whi(h have significant increase
in credit risk

Disputed trade receivabtg -
credit impaired
Less: lmpairment allowance

616.54

110.85

48.U

21.26

7.70 '18.62 69'1.70

352.r'l

(3 52.1 1)
Total 947.39 70.10 7.70 '18.62 691.70

9

qr

+,.
fA,,,

13.58

1.78

As at
11 r,krch 2024 ]

| 5zE.1t | .24.68 |



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Resear.h Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 ,'{arch 2024
lAmount in INR lokhs. unless otheNite stoted)

31 l{.rch 2024 31 ltar.h 2021
Cash in hand
Ealanc6: with bankj

in Current accountg

o_77

1.842_76

7.36

716.79
r,E43.48 719 _ 15

1l B.nk balances other than cash and cash equivalents

31 l,t rch 2024 31 /\ arch 2023
Oeposits with B.nks:

Deposits with orjginal maturity for more than 3 months but le5s than 12 month! 601.29

Total 7-74 601_29

' Fixed deposits are lien harked against corporate credit card and loan borrowed from Banks.

12 Loans (Current)

31 ,,larch 2024 l1 r,brch 2021

Unre.ured, considered good:
To Related parties
Loans (Refer note ll)

To Others
Loans qiven to Emptoyeg 5.29

2,159.06

13.81

Total 5.29 2,172.89

10 Carh .nd Cash Equivalents

13 OtherFinancialAssets

recover the expenses incurred lvith the issue on comptetion of lnitiat Pubtic Offer (lPO)

Particulars l1 l,larch 2024 31 L{arch 2023
Unsecured, aonsidered good
To Others
Security Deposits
lnterest accrued on fixed depo5its

Other receivablB

lJnrecurcd, considered good

To Related parties
Security Deposits (Refer note ll)
Other re(eivables (Refer note 3l)

21.66

0.16

2.27

2.00
424.58

99.73
1.72

2.00
427.58

Total 52 5.5l

Particulars
Ar et

31 li..ch 2024 31 l arch 2023

Prepaid expenses

UnbiLled revenue #
Advance to suppliers
Eatance with government authorities

514-33

11,620.26
493.98
20r.93

113.70

6,023.11
r 09.30

59.11

Total 12,830.50 6,505.42

f Classified as non.financial atset a5 the contractual right to consjderation is dependent on completion of contractual milestones.

'The Company has so far incurred as at 31 lilarch 2024, share issue expense of INR 196.52 takhs in connection with propo5ed public offer of equity shares, in
accordance $.ith the Companier Act 2013 (the Act). The relting shareholdeR shall reimbuBe the share issue expense5. Accordingty, the Company witt futty

9E9
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14 Other Current Assets

452.67



3l .r.h 2O2a tl l.r.h 2OU !

4,00,00,000 {11 Aard 2023 : 2,50,00,000) Eq'nty Sharet ol INR 10/. €.ch
uthorized thar€ caplt.l

,a,000.00 2,500.00
Tot.l authorlzed ihare c.pit.l ,1,000.00 2,500.00

!:!!d*.:c!:!d!sf-i!{fq!r-Pi ils!
1.50,41,12.4 131 Mar(h 2021 : 1.50,40.9501 Equrty Shares of INR 10/- ea.h 1.504.11 1.504.10

Tot.ll$ued. iubrcrjb€d.nd fully Dlid up c.Dlt.l 1,50a.13 t,504. t0

15 SHARE CAPITAI

(A) a.conclli.tion or .nd at the cnd ol th€
A3 .t !1 Larch 202.1 Ar at 31 tt r.h 2OZ!

Outstandlng at th. beSinntog ol lh€ y€ar

Add: kru.d dunns the year
1.50,rl(),950

374

1,502r.10

0.03

1,50,40,950 1.50.1.10

outrt.ndinq.t th. end of the y6r 1,50,41.321 1,504.13 1,50,.10,950 t,50a.to

DurinB the year ended l1 Mar.h 2024, th€ .motrnt o1 per rh.re dMdend r€cognired ar d'stributions to cquity sharehold€E wa5 Nrl (previor[ year: Nrll

(8) Rtht!, Prcf.r.ft.s .nd r.3lrlctl,onr .tt.ch.d to th. .qulty rh.r6:
ThG Company h.s onty on ct n of <ulty shar.r havrng par v.tue ot lNR1 0 p.r rharc. Each iBr.hold€r is lntitt.d to ona vot? p€r rhar" hctd. Th. Compary

dltlares aM p.ys dMdmds in lndian rup€es. Thc dMdend propos.d by thc Board ol OnectoB t srbr.ct to the .pproval of th. shar.holdcB in th€ .n3ulng
Annual G"n.ral lLcting.

J.ro lnrtitut O, TEhnoloay r.Ngem.nt And R....rch Llmncd
lot6 to stmd.lo.. fln.ncial st.t.m.nB for thc yo. Gnd.d ll l{..ch 2024

{Am nt in INR l.ths, unlEss oth€rwie iatedt

lo th€ .vent ol tiqddauon of the cornp.ny, lh. hold€6 of cquity sh.r6 wlU b. ent,ll€d to .cceivc rcmalnlng a5tctt of th. company, :lt.r dinnbution ol alt
pR€fer€ntilt .mounts. Th€ distribotioo will be ln proportion to th€ number of.quity st'.res h.td by the 3har€holdelNR

Subrcqu.nt to l1 ar.h 202,{, th. Bo.rd or ojrc<to.i ol Cornpany har parr.d a rgo{ution o.l 3 l.y 202,1 and app.ov€d lh. B$re ol bo.vn lquity tnar6 in its
meeting wtrich was furthcr approv.d by shar€hold€ri in th€ mceting h.td on 24 A{ay 202t in thc r.tio ot 1 €qulty shar.t of INR l0 each for €v€ry 3 equity rhar. of
INR l0 .a.h by cipit.ti2atlon or $.h sllm (.ndin3 to th. credit of fre€ r.!€rvc! ol thc Company-

Purruant to the provirion! of i..tion 123 o, th€ Colrtp.nies A.t, 2011, provBions of th. ln ome Td( A.t, t961 as well a5 othrr appti.lbtc provhioot, Bo.rd ot
Dir.do.s p.sr.d . rerolutio.r at lts rl. tllq hetd m 3 llay 202a approvin3 p.ynpnt of lnt.rim dMd€nd of INR t p€r €qutty drare lor 3harehold.6 as ol the r€<ord

dat. i...2E May 2024.

(E) Dlt.lli ol sh.r6 h.ld

(F) Sh.r6 r.r.R.{ lor hsu. und.r optlonr

For detailt of rh.rcr r€5.rv€d for lrsu€ und€r thc Shar. b.s.d p.yment ptan of th€ Company, pl.are Rclcr notc 39

16 Oth.r Equtty

(c) D.r.jh of more thM 5X ol th€ uity rh.ret ln th. Comp.ny

N.me ot 3h...hold.r3
At.t ll l.rch 2021

Equjty rh.re! or lxR 10 .rch fuily p.ld up

1,41,31,51,1 95.2E1 1,49,9E.500 99.72."

1,13,31,511 95.ZAX 1,49,9E.500 99.72X

. As pcr r..ordi ol th€ Compary, irrludin! it5 rlBter ot rhsr€hold€n/ m€mbc.3 rnd oth€r dc.taratio.E rcceivcd lrom sharchold?r. r.Sarding b€nefl.iat int.r6t,
thc abov. shar.holding r.pr€s.nts both t.tat aild bencfid.t ownerrhipr of sh.r.r.
. Th€ Comprny h.d p{cvixsly i$llGd c.rt.in $.r!s to lts .mploye6 Firll,ant to a ih.r€.bar€d p.yntcnt p{an. Duriq FY ?021.22 .nd FY 2022-23, Dr. S.nj.y
Salunkhe (Pro.not6) initiated the purchar€ of 7,150 and 11,400 sh.r.i r$pcctivety from sonE of iB employe6/.x-.mptoy.6 for a coosid€ration that r,!s
drrdaBcd throqh. bint tranrfd durinS th.t p.riod. Hov/!v.r, traEf€r of the5€ stEr€r in dem.lcriatiI.d fom fro.n th6" employ.6/.!.mptoy€er to Dr.

Sanjay Satunthe w.5 not conctudcd upto l1 L.r.h 202a. Thc transt.r o, th€i€ rhar6 vrdr co.nplcted by Augrrt 2024. Th€ numb.r ot shar.s h.ld by Dr. Saniay

Salunkhe a! on 31 llarch 2023 .nd 31 lirard Z02t h.s b.cn upd.t.d to r€tlcct th€ actu.l humbcr of shar6 hcld by him in deft.t.riatiz.d form on thos! dates.

(D) The Company har not rtru€d any borur rhares or shares for consid€raton oth€r th.n cash during the period ol five y€ars immediately pr.c€ding th€ r€porltng

Promot€rt.t the.nd ot thc
ar.t 31 A4.rch 202,1

X ol holdjng
* Chang. durhg the

1,a3,11,51a 95.2E%

X ot holding
A Ch.ngc durlnI the

1,49,9E,500 99.72% 0.00%

3t li.r.h 2O2a 31 l,t r<h 2021

Sha.€ brr.d paylncnt rc!.rv€

60.9a
9,621.02

557.17

59.99
5,5EE.2E

t78.01
Tot.l Othcr Equhy r0,239,1! 6,026.ZA



(A) 56u.ities P.emium

31 M.r.h 2024 31 March 2021
8alan.€ at the beginning of the yea.
add: !..urity premium credited on thare isrued

59.99
0.95

59.99

8.l.nce at the end of the year 64.91 59.99

(B) Retajned Ea.ninAs

J.ro lnrntute Of Technology M.n.gem€nt And Rese.r.h limited
Notei to St.ndalone FiMmi.l St tenlentr for th. ye.r ende<l ll tla..h 2024
(afirounr r. rNR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2024 31 M.rch 2023
Ealance at the beginning of the year

Add I Profil for the year
Add/(Lers) : Other comgrehensive toss for th€ year

5,588.28
4,052.61

(19.87)

4,448.44

1,151-n
(11.88)

Ealan<e at the end of the year

(C) share Eased

(o) tl.ture and purpore of Other R6.rv6
S.curitig Pr.r um
Se(urities premium has been created consequent to irlue of shares at premium. Th€ reserve can be utiliged in &cordafte with the provisions of the Companies

a(t 2011.

Rct.lned E.rnir!85

Retained earnings comprises of prior years and current year'! undistributed earnings/(acrumltated tosses) after tax.

31 March 2024 31 Ma.ch 2023
Ealance at the beginning of the ye.r
Add : Share based payrEnt expense
Les! : Transferred to se.urities premium fo. optionr exercted

178.01
180.11

(0.95)
178.0r

557.11 178.01B.l.nce at the end ofthe ye.r

* pal

qv

\
2

Sh.r. Eased Payment R6erve
Ihe share based payment reserveis used to recognise th€ grant date fair vatue of options issued to employees under Emptoyee Stock Option Plan.

v

,,6r1,0r-f q,!!!r.rs



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Sta.dalone FinancialStatements for the year ended 31 March ZO24
(Amo!nt in INR takhs, Lrnless otherwise slated)

17 Borrowings

Notes
17.1 Current maturities of long term borrowings

31 fiarch 2024 31 r,tarch 2023

(A) Non-C:-:rent Eorrowing
(l) secured
(i) Term loans
- From Banks
- From NBFC

(ii) Emergency Credit Line
. From Banks

55.50 70.91

14.45

16.00
Total 55.50 11 1.36

(ll)Unsecured
(i) Term loans
- From Banks
- From NBFC

114.89

95.50
Total 230.39
Total of Non-Current Borrowing (A) 55.50 341.75

(8) current Borrowing
(l) secured
(i) Cash credit from bank
(ii) Term loans
- Current maturjties of long term borrowings (Refer note 17.1)

(iii) Emergency Credit Line
- Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 17.1)

2,413.81

15.41

Total 2,429_22 2,s56.04

(ll) Unsecured
(i) Term loans
- Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 17.1)

(ii) From Related Parties
195.11

85.48
Total 480.79
Total of Current Borrov/ing (B) 2,429.22 3,036.83
Total (A+B) 2,484-72 3,178.58

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 l,{arch 2023

Secured
(A) Term Loan
. From Banks

- From NBFC

(8) Emergency Credit Lr'ne
- From Banks

15.41

60.00

Total of Secured Term Loans (A) 15.4',1 8 5.98

Unsecured
(A) Term Loan
- From Banks
. From NBFC

91.69

301.62

Total of Unsecured Term Loans 1B) 39s.31
Total (A+B) 15_4',l 481.79

Secured Emergen.y credit tine (ECL)

During the year ended ll t'larch 2021, the Company had taken Working CapitaL Term Loan under ECL facility from Bank of Maharashtra of INR 81.00 lakhs
and is secured having cottateraL security as M/s. Net Education Entrepreneurship & Leadership Limited (erstwhite step-down subsidiary) Land and Buitdinq
situated at Karta viLLage, Tatuka Maval, Pune district and additionat charge of Mr, Sanjay Satunkhes Vikas Centre office.
During the year eoded 31 March 2023, the Company had made an excess repayment of Axis Ba.k ECL facitity of tNR 5 takhs.

Unsecured term Loans inctudes loan from Eanks and NSFC5 taken for the purpose of Working Capital management

5

9

2,470-06

15.98

60.00

11.61

12.35

17.2 Non-current Borrowings
a. Secured Term Loant

During the year ended 11 March 2023, the Company had taken car loan frorn Kotak rt ahindra Bank having balance of INR 40.00 takhs is secured against Car
purchased. The said car is registered in the name of the 4 5. Ranjita Raman (Key Management Personnel) - however an agreement exist that if the director
leav6 the organization, the net carrying amount of the vehicte witt be adjusted against the futt & finat settlement of the dire€tor.

@



Jaro lnlttute Of Technolosy Manaqement And Resear<h Linited
Notes to Standalone Financi.l Statements for the year ended l1 March 2024
(Amoun! in INR lakhs, unless otherwrse staled)

17-4 Repayment tchedule for secured/unsecured loan

3

.9

31 ,,iarch 2023
Rate of lnterest

p.a. 31 Llar(h 2024
Term of RepaymentTYPE

Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

Axis Bank Ltd

Clix Capitat

Credit Saison lndia

Futterton lndia Credit Co. Ltd.

HDFC Bank Ltd

Hero Fincorp Limited

Hero Fincorp Limited

IDFC First Eank

L&T Financial Services

Neogrowth Credit Pvt. Ltd

RBL Bank Loan 2-unsecured

sCB Eank Loan-unsecured.
52463441

sCB Eank Loan-unsecured

5399636.4

Shriram City tinion Finance

Unity SmalI Finance Bank

HDFC Bank Loan.Car Loan
1t7308711

KOTAK IAAHINDRA PRIA.IE LTD

Jain Sons Finlease Limited

1,,\s. Ranjita Raman

Jaro Fincap Pvt Ltd

Avanse Financial Services Ltd

AXtS-TL-9200509551571 l.ECLGS-
1

BC[!.t'6040]916144

Unsecured

lJnsecured

lJnsecured

Unsecured

Unsecured

Unse<ured

Unsecured

Un5ecured

Unsecured

Uns€<ured

Unsecured

Unsecured

Unse(ured

Unsecured

Unsecured

Secured

Se<ured

Secured - GECL

Un5ecured

Unsecured -

Retated pany

Uns€cured .

Retated party

Unsecured

Secured - GECL

Secured - Cash

credit

16 equat monthly jnstatment of INR 1.76 lakhs each

from November 5, 2022 to October 5, 2025

24 equat monthly instatment of INR 2.42 lakhs each

from October 20, 2022 to September 20, 2024

6 equal monthly instalment of INR 4.53 takhs each, 6

equal monthty instalment of INR 2.55lakh5 each and

6 equal monthly instalment of INR 2.15 lakht each

from November 2, 2022 to Aprit 2, 2024.

18 equat monthiy instatment of INR 2.24 takhs each

from November 2, 2022 to Apri( 2, 2024.

36 equal monthty instatment of INR 1.75 takh5 each

from November 5, 2022 to October 5, 2025.

16 equat monthly instatment of INR 1.80 takhs each

from November 6, 2022 to October 6, 2025.

16 equat monthly instatment of INR 1.29 lakhs each

from Aprjt l, 2020 to June 3, 2021.

36 equal monthty instalment of INR 1 lakhs each

from December l, 2022 to Nov 3, 2025.

16 equat monthly instatment of INR 1.79 takhs each

from November 3, 2022 to October 3, 2025.

24 equat monthly instatment of INR 1.7"2 takhs each

from November l, 2022 to October 3, 2024.

'18 equal mon(hly instatment of INR 4.97 lakhs each

from l.lovember 5, 2022 to April 5, 2024.

36 equal monthty inrtatment of INR 29 Thousand

each from ll,ovember 5, 2021 to Oct 5, 2024.

,E equal rnonthty instalment of INR 40 Thou5and

each from Aprit '10, 2022 to Jut 10, 2024.

36 equal monthly instalment of INR 3.52 takhs each

f.om November 5, 2022 to Oct 5, 2025.

43 equat monthly jnstalment of INR 1.31 lakhs each

from Mar 5, 2020 to 99 5, 2023.

6 equal monthly instatment of Rs. 4.14 lakhs each, 6

equal monthty instalment of Rs. 3.85 and 6 equat

monthty instatment of Rs. 1.63 lakhs each lakhs each

from November 4, 2022 to apriL 4, 2024.

60 equal monthLy instalment of INR 1.94 takhs each

from February 5, 2022 to January 5, 2028.

36 equal monthty instalment of INR 1.26 takhs each

from January 1, 2023 to Decernber 1, 2025.
17 equal monthty instalment of INR 5 takhl each aM
1 instatment of INR 5 lakh from Aprit 30, 2023 to
September 28, 2024.
3 equat monthty instalment of INR 2.00 takhs each

from 10 June 2020 to l0 August 2020 and 37 equal
monthly instalment of INR 3.6,{ takh from September
10, 2020 to September 10, 2023.

1 year as and when loan disbursement is done.

Repayabte on demand

Repayabte on demand

Loan is t.ansferred

Repayabie on demand

16.00s

15.00$

16.00i[

16.50X

15.50%

15.m%

19.00c

16.50*

16.00x

16.50%

18.18%

9.25%

9.258

15.m5

19.mS

19.23*

E.5OT

E.81S

9.15X

18.50C

r r.00s

r 1.506

15.008

9.25X

10.E09

70.91

2,4l].81

43.39

38.05

30.14

26.02

41.59

45.E0

1.41

24.90

44.30

28.10

57,67

5.12

5.91

87,40

7.44

33.0,{

u.v

36.E0

81.00

21.00

60.00

25.4E

u.41

(s.00)

7,170.03

2,444.72

tttnbat

'..,$

17.3 Current Eorrowirys
a- Cash credit f.cility (Secured)

The Company had avaited cash credit facility from Bank of tiaharashtra amounting to INR 2,500 takhs. This loan is secured agarnst lhe Land and Building of

M/s. Net Education Entrepreneurship & Leadership Limited (erstwhile step-down subsidiary) and additionat charge of Mr. Sanjay 5al!nkhe's Vikas Centre

office. The..ompany had taken cash credit facility for the purpose of Workin: aapital Management. The ComPany has lsed such borrowings for :5e purpose

as mentioned in the toan agreement.

BOM-GECL 60443139486

@



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology litanagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial St.tements for the year ended 31 r,tarch 2024
lamount in INR lakhs, u.less o!herwise stated)

19 Trade Payables

19.2 Ageing schedule of trade payables

schedule as at 31 llarch 2024

schedule as at 31 L{arch 2023

31 r,brch 2024 3l llrr.h 2O2l

l{on-Curren-t
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 31)

Gratuity
- ComDensated absencg

r20.68
6.31

85.41

4.50
Total (A) 126 _99 89.91

Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 31)

- Gratuity
- Compensated ab5enc6

58.,10

).91
44.36

2.96

Total (B) 67_37 47.32
Total (A+B) 189.I5 '137.23

31 I't rch 2024 31 March 202!
Totat outstanding dues of Micro ahd SmalL Enterprises {Refer note 19.1)

Totat outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Smatt Enterprises
17.80

2,076.77
37.48

1,875.45

2,064.57 1,912.9!

19.1 The information required to be disclosed under the l icro, Small and l,tedium Enterprisg Development Act, 2005 (herein after Referred to ar "l SltED

Act, 2005") has been determined to the extent such panies have been identitied on the basis of information av.ilable with the Company. The same

has been relied upon by the auditolNR The amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below :

31 l arch 2024 31 Ltarch 2023

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpajd to any supptier as at the end of each accounting
- Principal amount due to micro and smatt enterprises

lnterest due on above

b) The amou.t of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of section 16 of the Mtr.tED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
paymeit made lo the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under M5 lED Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

e) The amount of further interst remaining due and payabte even in the succeeding yea6, ultil such date when the
interBt dues as above are actuatly paid to the smatl enterprise for the purpo6e of disatlowance as a deductibte
expeMiture under sectioo 23 of the I,{S$ED Act, 2006.

16.71

r.09

0.09

37.04
0.44

0.20

outstanding for following period from the date of payment

Unbilled Not due
Lets than a l-2 year5 2-3 ye.r3 llore th.n 3

Total

(i) Undisputed -L{S,\{E

(ii) Undisputed .Others

(iii) Disputed dues- Msl,tE
(iv) Disputed due5. Others

11.68

1,800.54
26.',12

223.79 2.44
37.m

2,026-77

Tot.l 1,412.72 749.91 2.44 2,O64.57

Outstanding for following period from the date of Payment
Particulars

Unbilled Not due
Leai than a

1-2 yea15 2-3 years More than 3
Total

(i) Undisputed 'Mt\tE
(ii) Undisputed -Others

(iii ) Disputed due5- MSME

(iv) Disprrted dues' Othe6

1,618.41
37.U

220.77
0.44

36.26
17.4E

1,875.45

Total 1,618.47 157.41 36.71 '1,912_93

U nlbaM

s

Particulars

v



Jaro rnstitute OfTechnotogy Mana8ement And Rese.rch Limited
liotes to Stand.lone Financial Stat€ment5 tor the year ended 31 l,Lrch 2024
lAmou..n INR lakhs, Lrnless otherwise stated)

20 Other Financiat Liabilities

21 0rher current Liabilities

3l t arch 2OZ4 31 I'i.::h 2023
lnterest accrued but not due on borrowi.gs
Emptoyee benef it payabte

Advaoce from studeflts

0.61

70.27

)4.97

11.08
336.27
28.70

105.80 396.00

31 ,,tarch 2024 31 L.r<h 2023
Con!ract liabitities
Statutory dues payable

860. t5
188.15

967 _46

114.90

1,O48.50 1,082.75

u
l'4t-mbat

9



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology ,lanagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement5 for the ye.r ended 31 t arch 7024
(Amount in INR lokhs, unless olhetwise stoted)

22 Lease5 - IND ^S 116

The Company has lease contracts for offjce Plemises used in its operations. Lease terms generatly ranges between 1 and 5 years.

The Company ass6se5, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease at the inception of the contract or upon the modification ot a contract. A

contract is, or contains, a leare if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a perid of time in exchange for
consideration.

A Lease liabilitl6
Set out bebw are the carryin8 amounts of lease tiabititie5 and the movement during the year:

B The following is the break-up of Lease Liability as nt reporting date

Particulars
As at

31 ilarch 2024
As at

31 ,'tarch 2023

Current
Non-current

576.61

99r.98
447.55

1 ,191 .59

Total r,568.59 1,639.14

C The Undiscounted (ease liabilities of continuing operationt by maturity are as follows

Particulars
As at

31 l,tarch 2024
As at

3'l L{arch 2023

Less than one year

Between one and five years

After five yeaE

692.47
1, 1,76

565.00
1 ,327 .43

Total 't ,7 54.23 1,892.43

D Lease Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Lo5s not included in the measurement of lease liabilities :

Particulars
For the year ended

31 A{arch 2024
For the year ended

3l l'{arch 2023
Expense retating to shon-term teases (inctuded in other expenses) L61.50 211.75

Total 267.50 711.25

Particulars
As at

31 i{ar.h 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year

Cash outflows:
Principal repayment of tease liabitities
lnterest payment on tease liabitities
Non-cash adiuitmenti:
Additions durinq the year

Disposats/ Adiustrhenls dudng the year

lnterest acctued

1,619.14

1463.88)

\144.041

565.93

1172.60)
144.04

1,343.05

(17E.36)

(148.10)

674.45

148.10

Balance at the end of the year 't,568.59 1 ,639.14

M!rr,bai

*

@
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2l Revenue from operations

12,714.51

A lnformation of disaggregated revenue as per lnd AS 115

Set out be{ow is the di lion ol the ny's revenue from contract! wrth customers:

B Reconciliation of revenue recognised vis-a-vis contracted price

For the year ended
31 ,'{arch 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments

12,214.51

Revenue from contract with customers 19,904.5 
'

12,214.51

Jaro Institute Of Te<hnology lLnagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financi.l St.tement5 for the year ended 31 ,{.rch 2024
(Amount in INR takhs, unle55 otherwise srated)

The estimated revenue expected to be recognized in the future relating to remaining performance obligations as at 31 l'{arch 2024
and ll arch 2023 ir as follow: (Refer note 21):

Particulars
As at 31 l,larch 2024

1-3 years Tota I

Transaction price allocated to remaining
perf ormance ob{ jgat jon5 860.35 860.35

Particulars
As at 31 l,{.rch 2023

Less than 1 year 1-3 years Total
Transaction price allocated to remaining
Derformance obtiqations

967.86 967.E6

c

24 Other lncome

Particulars For the year ended
3'l ,{arch 202{

For the year ended
31 I'tarch 2023

lnterest income
Others

lt2.8r
20.t6

244.49
'1.'17

Total I53. r 7 245.66

25 Employee 8enefit5 Expenses

For the year ended
31 ,{arch 2024

For the year ended
31 ,{arch 2023

salaries, Wages & Bonus

Staff welfare expense
Gratuity expense
Share-based compensation expense (Refer note 19)
Contribution to and other fund5 (defined contribution

5,835.67
155.96

10.71
180.11

1.11

1,941.19
131.91

24.14
378.01

0.77
Total 6,203.78 4,480.24

For the year ended
3l I'tarch 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Revenue from contr.ct with curtomer5
19.904.51

Total 19,904.51 17 214_51

Paniculars
For the year ended

31 .rch 2024
For the year ended

3l r,brch 2023
(A) Based on nature of service:

EnroLment & other anciltary services
- Program management services

16.517_43

3,t87.08
'r0,099.64

2,114.87
19,904.51 '12,214.51

(8) Eased on timing of revenue recognition:
. Services tran5ferred at a point of time
- Services transferred over period of time

16,517.43

1,387.08

10,099.64
2,114.87

Total 19,904.51 17,214.5',l

19,90{.5r 12,214.51

(C) Revenue by contrect type
. Revenue share arrangements

19,904.51 12,214.31

s"
*!

,_
Munbai
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Jaro lnstjtute Of Te(hnology Man.gement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statem€nts for the ye.r ended 31 l'larch 202t
lAmoun! in INR lakh5. unless otherwise stated)

26 Finance Costs

27 Depreciation and Amortis.tion Expenses

28 Other Expenses

28.! Payment to Auditors

For the year ended
l1 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

lnterest Expense5

lnterest on Lease Liabitities
Loss on extinguishment of linancial liabitity
Loan Procersing charges

)06.61
144.O4

14.75

14.54

290.60
148.10

14.O9

Total 4EO.O0 452.79

Particulars
For the year ended

3l I'tarch 2024

oepre.iation on Property, Ptant and Equiprireflt (Refer note 4)
Depreciation on Riqht of Use Assets (Refer note 5)

r21.85
563.04

59.06
481.60

lotal 542.66

Particulars
For the year ended

l1 L{.rch 2024
For the ye.r ended

3l 
^,tarch 

2023
Legat and Prof65jonal fe6
Payments to auditori {Refer note 28.1)
Bank char86
Eusiness Promotion expenses
Referral fees
Repair and Maintenance expenses

House keeping and office maintenance expenses

Software and computer expenses

Ete.t.icity Expense

Postage and Courier
Printing and stationery
Rat6 and tax6
Lease reflt (Refer note 22)

Royalty expenses

lnterest on delayed payment of tax6
Telephone and communication &pense
Travelling and conveyance
Los3 due to admission canceltation/drop.ouls
sundry batanc6 written off
Loss on sate of Property, Plant & Equipment
Corporate Sociat Responsibitity (CSR) Erpenditure (Refer note 35)

Foreign exchange lors
Office expenses
Allowances for expected credit toas6 ("ECf )

l isceltaneous expenser

504.05

24.17
r6. r2

5,414_59
442.70

168.06

32.76
1n.23
108.18

1.48
8.54

45.57

267.50

6.47
114.73

r03.70

0.59
0.41

25.00

4.16
(111.59)

11.99

r8l.l9
12.50

60.17
1,594.15

370.09
r 14.65

18.29

98,46
85.28

3.00
15.02
29.18

211.25
0.87

r4.13
97 -12
83.70

r96.88
51.74

15.00

4.61

34.19
104.62
12.82

Total 7,438.40 5,41 1.2',1

Particulars
For the year ended

3l I'tarch 2024
For the year ended

31 l,lar.h 2023

Ar Auditor
Audit Fees - Statutory audit inctuding consotidation
Reihbursement of expensB

21.00
1.11

Total 24.12 12.50

Llumbai

12.50

@

F.. thG, ..d.d I
31 tlarch 2023 I

68,r.89 l



J.ro lnstitute Of Tfthnoloty L.n.gem€nt And Re*.r.h tlhited
lot6 to St nd.lone Financial Statementr for the year eoded 3l rGrch 2024

{ANu.t in INR lokhs, unlett othertite stoted)

(A) lncom t.r erpen*

31 Mar.h 2021

,djust.nenl of tax relatinq to earlier Deriodt

687.71

{61.09)
791.18

lll.49

88.05

ln<ome t.x expenre .eported ln the rt.tem€nt of protit and losl 1,198.00 a21.55

rehensive ln<ome (OCl)

31 March 2024

Itemt that will not be re<lassified to statement of prolit and losr
Net gain on rem€asurement of net defined b€nefit tiabitity 6.68 4.00

ln(ome tar I.in charqed to OCI 4.00

(c) Reconciliation o, tax

(D) o€ferredTarti.bilitier(Atset3)

l, l'{..ch 202i1 31 ,lar.h 2023

Enact€d lncome tar r.te app{lcable to the Company

5,450.61

25.16E1

1,573.27

25.168*
tn.<ted in.ome t.x r.te applic.bl. to the Comp..y

Non-deductible e)(penses lor tax purpotes

Adjustnent of tax retating to eartier penods (current tar)
Adiu5tment or ta: relating to ea.lier pe.iods (delered tar)
Others

1,371.6r

8.13
(81.09)

95.14
a.0r

t95.96

21.56

4.01

ln<ome t.r erp€nre reported in th€ statement of Prolit and L6! 1,398.O0 421- 55

dedudible diUeren(es wnich are probable to be ava'table

l! 
^ 

arch 2024 31 {ar.h 2023
(761.71)

1,734.63

(E95.71)
1,081.91

iiet d€f€rred tar liability 970.90 186,20

R<oncili.tioo ot Net deferred t.x U.bility

(E) Aovement ln deferred t.r .ssetv (li.billties)

31 l.rch 202:l 31 l .rch 2023

Ta( expense durlng theyear recognlzed ln the statement of profit and lost
Tai income during the year recognized in tn€ oLher comprehensive incorne

1E6.20
791.18

(6.58)

102.14
88.06
(4.00)

970.90 186.20

31 ltarch 2023

(charsed) / Credited ln (Ch.rged) / Credited
to ocl 31 ilarch 2024

(l) Def€rrcd tlx .s!.B ln reLtlon to:
Grdtuity

Contract liabltiti€s
L.ase Llabititie!
lmpalrment allowa,'<e (ECL)

Employe€ Sto.h ComFr5.tlon beens€
Differe.Ee in caryinS amollnt of ProFrty, Ptant
Equipment as per book of ac.ollnt .nd tax book

J7.66
1.88

ml.97
412.y
8E.62

95.14

7_63

o.71
(8.10)

|.17.761
(,1r.89)
(95.1:l)

15.89

6.68 4$-97
2.59

193.87
194.78
4.71

895.7r (r 18.66) 6.68 763.73

(il) Deferr€d t.! llabiljtig i^ r.l.tloo to
R,3ht of u!€ assets (4r9.35)

(664.66)

2.10

34.{8
{584.{2)

Q.7A)

{lE4.E7)
(r.3,19.6)

(0.66)
Total (1,0E1.91) 1652.72) (1,734.63)

(185.20) (79r.38) 6.68 {970.90}

E
I

*ra

3l l.rch 2023

62.90 78.79

Uuhbai U



J.ro lnrtltut. Of Te<hnololy lL^agem.nt And R6..rch Limited
Not6 to St.nd.lm Fin dci.lSt.tem€ntr fo. th. ye.r eoded 11 A.rch Z0Z.l

lAnount in INR lakhs, unless otheNi* stated)

I April 2022

(ci,-rged) / credited in (charged) / credited
to ocl 31 tlar.h 2023

(i) Det rr.d td.s*tr ln rel.tion to:
Gratuity

Contra.t tiabilities
lmpajrnten! alLowamp lECL)
Employee Stock Compensation Expense

Provision on toan to related p.(y, considered doubtfut

orflerefte in .arrying anEuflt of Propeny. Plant and

EquipflEnt as p€r book5 of account and tar book

12.06
0.81

338.02
n.62
24.53

6t.38

75.95

(3.4)l
1.05

74.52
122.15
64.09
95. r4

(61.36)

(r3.05)

4.m )2.66
].EE

412.54
201.97
88.62
95.14

62.90

614.39 277.37 4_00 895.71

(li) Deferred t.r ll.billtie! in relatlon toi
(356.61)
(160.06)

0.14

tlo8.05)
I59.29)

1.96

(664-66)
(419.15)

2.10
(716.53) {r65.38) (1,081.91)

Deterred tax li.bllity (net) (r02.14) (88.06) a.00 (186.20)

@tluhbai
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

30 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share amounts are catculated by dividing the profit/toss for the year attrjbutabte to equity hotders by the wejghted
average numbr .t equity sha16 outstandjng during the year.

Dituted earnings per share amounts are catcutated by dividjng the profit/toss attributabte to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year ptus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on

conversion of all the ditutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The Board of Directors at its meeting hetd on 3 May 2024 has approved issue of bonus equity shares, in the proportion of 1:3, i.e. 1

(one) bonus equity share for every I (three) futty paid.up equity shares hetd as on record date, which are approved by sharehoLder at
the Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) hetd on 24 May 2024. Consequent to this bonus issue, the number of ordinary shares

outstandjng js jncreased by number of shares issued as bonus shares in current year and comparative year presented as if the event had

occurred at the beginning of the earliest year presented.

"Stock options granted to the employees under the ESOP 2022 scheme are consjdered to be potentiat equity shares. The same is

considered in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent that they are that they are not anti-dilutive. The shares

vested during the year ended 31 
^ilarch 

2024 are anti-ditutiye in nature and hence, not considered for the catculation of dituted earning
per share.

Particulars
For the year ended 31

March 2024
For the year ended 3 t

March 2023

Profit after tax attributabLe to equity sharehotders of the Company (in INR) (A)

weighted Average Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Bonus share issued during the year'

4.052.61

't,50,41,124

50,56,435

1,151.72.

1,50,40,950
50,56,435

Weighted Averaqe Number of equity shares at the end of the year for Basic EPS (B) 2,OO,97,759 2,00,97,345

Effect of dilution:
ESOP options (Refer note 19)" 2,01,280 1 ,31 ,245

Weighted average number of equity shares adiusted for the effect of dilution (C) 2,O2,99,O39 2,02,28,630

Easic earnings per share (lNR) (D=A/B)
Diluted earninqs per share (lNR) (D=A/C)

20.16
19.96

5.73
5.59

i4a/r,ba, z
.4,
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J.ro lnrtitute Of Te.hnology l.n.$menl And R6ea.ch Limit.d
Nole. to St.nd.lone Fin.ncj.l St.tementr for the year ended l1 l.rch 2024
(Anaunt in INR lakhs, unless otnerwisp norpd)

3t Employe. 8enefits Oblli.tlons

(r) Dcfined contributionr pl.ns -Provid.nt fund ..d others

The Company maker contribotion towardl employeei' Providenl Fund and other defjned contribution ptans. Under the s€h€mes, lhe Company is required to
contribute a spe€itied percentage of payrott co(, a5 5pecified in the rule5 of the schem€s, to these defin€d contribution s.heme!.

31 L.rch 2O2a 3 t ,r.rch 2023

1_ l1 0_71

1 .31 4.77

I ll) Oefined benefil pl.n3

The Company provide5 for 8ratuity benefit un(kr a defined benefit retirement rcheme (the "Gratuity s.heme') as laid out by th€ Payment of Graturty
(Arnendment) Acl, 2018 of lndia covering et'gible emptoyees i.e. an emplryee who has comdeted five yeaB of servic€ is entitled to spe.ific ben€fits. lhe level
of b€n€fits p.ovided depends on th€ hembe.l tength of rervic€ .nd satary .t retirement age-

Liabititier $ith reSard to the Gratuity S.heme are determin€d by actuariat valuation carried .ut uiing the Projected Unit Credit ltethod by an independenl

The sEherne is neither fuflded with a. inlurance Company in the form of quatitying insurance poticy, nor any assets have been created

.) Ch.nge in the oblig.tion during the ye.r:

Li.bility recognised in th€ B.l.nce Sheet:

b) Amountr recorni*d ln profit or lo5r ln reipc.t of th€s€ dellrEd ben fit plilts are as follow!:

c) The ilsnlfic.nt ..tu.ri.l lirumptlom u3ed for th€ prrrporer of the actuarial valuatioB are .s followr:

The discount rate assumed for current and previous year, 1s det€rmined by Reference to market yietd at the Ealance sheet date on government bonds. The
red in actuarial valuation, take account of inllation, seniorjty, promotion and other r€tevan! factors, ruch as rupply

3l M.r<h 2024

Ch.nges ih th. Prer€nt V.lrt of Oblig.tion
Present vatue of ouigation as rt the b€ginningof the year

8en€fits paid

Re-mearLrrement (gain) / Lost arising from:
' chanse in financial assumptjons
- exp€rience variance li.e. actual experiences v5 assumptions)

129.77

?1.77

tl.97l

0.68

z5_87

1?7-4)

1E.36

5.78

(17.68)

t7 _41)

21.15

Present value of obligation.r rt the end of the year 179.O8 129.77

11 March 202:l 31 I'Lrch 2023
Cl.ssific.tion of provlslons

Cu.r€nt 58.40
120.56

44.36

85.41

Amounts rrognized in B.lance Shet 179.08 129.77

3r lurch 202,r 31 l,Lrch 2023

Exp.rEcs rccolrdlad in tia Strtcirat o, Proflt lnd Lolt

lnterest co6t

21_27

9.44

l6
78

Total€xpenses re.oenls.d ln th€ St.t€ment of Profit.nd Lost 30.73 24.11
(Gain)^o$ rcaorr icd ln t |. Othar CorI|Prch.lElv. lrroirr
Re-measuremeot (8ain)/lcr arjrins fro.n:
- change in dernoaraphk .ssumplbns
. change in financial asgrnptioG
. experience variance (i.e. a.tual pxperlence5 t5 a5rlfptiorE)

0.68
25.87

ll.4tl
21.35

Compon€ntr of defined bcn€fit corli/(lncome) rc.oanlsed ln Oth€r Compreh€niive ln.om€ 26.55 15.88

3l ltlarch 2024 3t l'Lrch 2023

Salary gronth rate

Attrition / WitMrawalrater, based on age: (per annum)

Mortality (tabte)

7.11}
8.m1
&

Sates : 508
Support : 25*

Mortatity (2012-14)

Urban

7.29X
8.m*

60
Sale! : 50x

Support : 25X

lndian Assured Livet
Mortatity (2012-14)

urban

^rurnba

qt l',

..

2/

*

:,i

estirnat€ of future latary increares, conride
and demand ln the employment market.

ry

(A) Oun.g the y€ar the Comp.ny h.s re.otnized the followirE arcunts in the Statement of profit and lor!:

31 M.rch 2021



Jaro lnrtitute Of Trhnology LLnagement and Reiear<h Limited
Notes to St.nd.lone Finan.ial Statements for the ye.r ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs. unless otherwise \toted)

.) Senritivity An lytis:

Significant actuariat assumptions for the det€rminatjon of the defined tcnefit obtigalion (DBO) are dis.ount rate, satary Srowth rate, .ttrition rate and

mortatity. The sensitivity analysis betow have been determined basd on realonabty possibte changes of the asrumptions o(.urring at the end of the repo(ing

d) A,taturity Profile of Defned B€nefil Oblit tion

alt oth€r asnrmptionr conslant- The results ofth€ sensitiyity analysis is given beLow:

(ii) There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anatysis from prior years

31 M.rch 2024 31 M.r.h 2023
Pror6ted b.ncfitr p.y.bl. in tuture ye.ri from the d.te of reportilE

2M FotlowinSYee.

5th Fotlowing Year
Sum of 6 to 10 years

58.40

18.08
19.12
21.86
17.11

l5-10

44.36

29.49
21.28
15.65
11.79

22.29
8.09

(8) Col'lp€rE t d .bs€rE6
The obligation for compensated absencB ar at y€ar end anbunts to INR l0.l0lakhr {ll lrarch 2021: INR 7.46 takhs)

For the year ended ll 
^ 

ar<h 202.1 For the y€ar ended 31 r,brch ZO23

1.90
(3.20)

1.18

{r.65)
3.11

(1.16)

2.58
(2.3r)
0.94

(2.41)

2.39
(0.91)

Salary growth rate
1* lncreate/ Decrease
1X lncrease/ De.rease
1* l6crease/ Dearease

rtuh6al

+

(r) The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonabty possibte chang€s of the .espective assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period,

while hotding atl other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actuat change in the oefined Senefit

Obtiearion as it is unlikety that the chan8e in assumption! woutd occur in isotation of orle another as some of the a5sumptions rnay be correlated. Furthe.more,
in presentiog th€ abo!€ r€nsitivity analyris, the present vaLue of the Defined Eenefit Obligation has b€en calcutated using the proiected unit credit method at
the €M of the .eportinS period, which is the lame method as .pptied in calcutating the D€fin€d 8€neIit OUigation as re€ognir€d in the balance 5he€t.



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology lvlanagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
lAmount in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stoted)

32 Contingent Liabilitier and Commitments

A ContingentLiabilities

b. M/s Bennet, Coteman and Co. Ltd. ("Ptaintiff") has fited a civil suit bearing number 510 of 2023 agajnst the Company and certain
individuats (cottectivety, the "Defendants") before the High Court of Judicature at Bombay under sections 4l(a) and 43(b) of the
lnformatjon Technology Act, 2000, as amended, seeking (j) damages by way of compensation aggregating to INR 717.50lakhs at the rate
ol 1-1% per annum from the date of filing of the suit titl the actuat date of payment to the Plaintiff for unauthorized access and data

theft from the Ptaintifl's computer system and (ii) grant of injunction agar'nst the Defendants from the use or access to the said data. ln

addition, the Ptaintiff has also filed an interim apptication dated 17 July 2073 to restrain the Defendants by an order of injunction from
accessing and transferring in any manner the confjdentjat information from the computer systems of the Ptaintiff and the Defendants
fited an written statement on 9 November 2023 rejecting the ctaim5 of the Ptaintiff seeking dismissal of the matter. The matter was

subsequently transferred to the Court of Additionat Sessions.Judge, City Civit Court, Mumbai and is currently pending.

I Commitments

There are no Commjtments existing as on l'l March 2024 6l1 March 2023.

u

As at
31 March 2024

a.Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
i. Disputed demands in respect of lncome Tax
ii. Disputed demands in respect of GST

iii. Disputed demands in respect of Service Tax

Against the aforesaid demands, payments under protest/adjustments made by the Compan

Particulars

478.59

90.40
164.60

As at
31 ,tur.h 2O23

Munbat

+p

?
I



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Resear€h Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 llarch 2024
lAnount in INR lakhs. unless otherwise stoled)

33 Related party diiclosures

The list of related parties as identified by the Management is as under:-

Relationship

lndividuat having control / significant influence over companies

Name of Related Party

Mr. Sanjay N. Sdlunkhe Managrng Director

Sub5idiary
Net EmpLoyment Services Private Limited (upto 28 March 2024)

Jaro Education Private Limited (upto 03 October 2021)

Step down subsidiary

Net Education Entrepreneurship & Leade6hip Limited lFormerty
Known as Future Education Ltd. l (upto 28 March 2024)

Net HR Solutions Pvt Ltd (upto 28 March 2024)

Verifications Solutions Pvt Ltd (upto 28 A{arch 2024)

Net Recruitment SeNices Private Limited (upto 28 March 2024)

Key management personnel (X ,lP)

Mr. Aalkrishna N Salunkhe' Dire.tor
Ms. Ranjita Raman Director & Chief Executive Offrcer
Mr. Rajendra N. Salunkhe - 0irector

Retatives of KMP

M5. Sania 5. Satunkhe - Daughter of Managing Director
Mr. Uday Satunkhe Erother of oirector
Mr. Swati U. Salunkhe - Relative of Director
Mrs. t\,{eena Salunkhe' Relative of Director

Entities in which lOr^P / relatjves of KMP can exercise significant
influence

6tobat Education Trust
Jaro Fincap Private Limited
Net Emptoyment SeNices Private Limited (from 28 arch 2024)

Jaro Education Private Limited (from 03 October 2021)

Net Eduaation Entrepreneurship & Leadership Limited lFormerly
Known as'Future Education Ltd.l (from 28 t'larch 2024)

Net HR Sotutions Pvt Ltd (from 2E l\ arch 2024)

Verification5 Solutions Pvt Ltd (from 28 March 2024)

Net Recruitment Servjces Pnvate Limited (from 28 March 2024)

Jaro Topp5chola6 Private Limited

a) Key A anagement Person Compensation

Particulars
For the year ended 31

l,larch 2024
For the year ended 3t

l,{arch 2023
Total llanagerial Remuneration 216.O3 108.79

b) Transactions with related parties

lilanagerial Remuneration
Mr. Saniay N. Satunkhe
Mr. Raiendra N. Satunkhe

Ms. Ranjita Raman

Sale of subsidiaries to l,{r, Saniay N. Salunkhe
Net Employment Services Private Limited
Jaro Education Private Limited

1,637.81

1't.00

5.50

90.00
6.00

150.05

311.16
3.60
3.60

12.00

145.34

25.00

2.76

108.79

791.16

1.60
3.60

12.00

265.r3

15.00

Rent Expense
Mr. Saniay N. Satunkhe
Mr, Uday Satunkhe
lits. Swati U. Satunkhe
Net Emptoyment Services Private Ltmited

Grant of ESOPs

/Yls. Ranjita Raman

Corporate Social Responsibllity Expenses
Gtobat Education Trust

For the year ended 3l
,,tarch 202,1

For the year ended 31

March 2023
Particulars

ldumbat

*r
"g

Seryice lncome & Other Fees

Salary Expenre
Ms. Sania S. Satunkhe

Mrs. Meena Salunkhe



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology llanagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

lAmount in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

c) Outstandinq balancer of related parties

Particulars
As at

31 ,iarch 202,{
fuat

3l March 2023

Key r{anagerial Personnel
Mr. Sanjay N. Satunkhe

Relatlves of Key r$anagerial Personnel
Mr. Uday Salunkhe

Subsidiary
Net Emptoyment Services Private Limited

Pavables towards r{6naeeri.l Remuner.tlon
Key rllanageri.l Personnel

Mr. Saniay N. Satunkhe
Ms. Raniita Raman

Mr. Raiendra N. Satunkhe

SalarY Pavable
Relatives of Key l,lanaqerial Perionnel

Ms. Swati lJ- Saluhkhe

l R. Meena Salunkhe

Account Re€eivables
Entities ln which K tP/relatives of XllP can exercise significant lnfluence

Gtobat Education Trust

1 5.00

1.43

47.73

0.50

2.43
0.50

707.00

0.77

0.46

5.9E

0.30

0.27

100.57

Particulars
For the year ended 3t

March 2024
For the year ended ll

March 2023

Loan given
Gtobat Education Tru5t

Jaro Topp6chotars Private Limited
Net Employment Services Private Limited
Mr. sanjay N. Satunkhe

Repayment of loans given (including interest receivable)
Gtobat Education Trust
Jaro Toppscholars Pnvate Limited
Net Employment Services Private Limited
Mr. Sanjay N. Satunkhe

lnterest income on loan given

t!,lr. Sanjay N. Satunkhe

Gtobal Education Trust
Jaro Toppscholars Private Limited
Net Employment Services Pnvate Limited

Loan taken
Ms. Ranjita Raman

Jaro Fincap Private Limited

Repayment of loan taken (including interest accrued)

Jaro Fincap Private Limited
Ms. Ranjita Raman

lnterest on loan taken
Mr. Saniay N. SaLunkhe

Ms. Raniita Raman

Jaro Fincap Private Limited

Perquiiites (car)
Ms. Raniita Raman (Refer note 17.2 a.)

551 .1 l

41.00
1,352.16

2,406.23

59.08
1,897.M

104.88
182.18

1.14

5.42.

13.12

6E.E2

6.31
2.67

r,511.00
r0.10
15.74

450.87

r,051.00
1,045.56

10.2l

11_42

176.61

5.19
1.46

60.00
0.30

15.36

89.86

l.49
3.85

52.14

14xrhbE

vM

I
*

&



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Mnnagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone FinancialStatements for the year ended 3'l A arch 2024

lAmount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024 31 i{arch 20Zl
Other Receivables
Entities in which KliP/relatives ol Kl P can exercise 5ignificant influence

Jaro Toppschotars Private Limited

Advance Rent Paid

Key l anagerial Personnel
Mr. Sanjay N. Salunkhe

Entities in which &rtP/relatives of KI P can exercise significant influence
Net Emptoyment Servjces Private Limited

Receivable! towards Securitv deposits
Key r{anagerial Personnel

Mr. Sanjay N. Satunkhe

Relativer of Key Managerial Personnel
l r. Uday Satunkhe
M5. Swati U. Satunkhe

Recoverable towards Loan eiven {lnclusive of lnterest Recei

Entities in which X [P/relatives of Kr{P can exercise significant influence
GLobat Education Trust

Key ltanagerial Personnel
Mr. Sanjay N.salunkhe

Subsidiary
Net Employment Services Private Limited

lnvestments in subsidiaries
Sub6idiary
Net Emptoyment Services Private Limited
Jaro Education Private Limited

Provision aqainst investment in sub5idlarv
Subsidiary
Jaro Education Private Limited

L,nsecured loan Pavable (lncludi accrued interelt oavable)'
Entities in which KilP/rel.tives of KMP can exercise tignificant lnfluence

Jaro Fincap Private Limited

Key management perronnel (xllP)
I'ts. Ranjita Raman

424.58

11.20

148.81

00
00

472.58

9t.58

319.28

l 00
00l

1 ,69',t.14

450.87

17.05

't,637.E1

1't.00

11.00

25.49

63.14

Particulars
fuat

31 l,larch 2024
tuat

31 l{arch 2023
Ms. Ranilta Raman
Batance inctuding accrued interest as at the year end
Maximum amount outstanding at anltime during the year

The Company has taken unsecured loan for working capitat purpose. The loan was
repayable on demand and carries interest at 11.00% compounded annually.

Jaro Fincap Private Llmited
Batance inctuding accrued interest a5 at the year end
Alaximum amount outstanding at anytime during the year
The Company has taken unsecured toan for working capital purpose. The toan was
.epayable on demand and caries interest at 13.50% compounded annuatly.

68.82

26.01

63.14

61.14

25.49
40.60

i.l ll

2
u-0,

*p

' Details of loan taken from related parties:

l

M



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology l anagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financi.l Statements for the year ended 31 i{arch 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unlets otherwise slated)

Particulars As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 Lta.ch 2023

Global Education Tru3t
Batance inctuding accrued interest as at the year end
l,iaxjmum amount outstanding at anytime during the year
(Globat Education trust has utiuzed this toan for wo*ing capital purpose. The loan
gjven to retated party wa5 repayabte on demand and at 1(a lnterest rate
compounded annuatty)

Itr. Sanjay N. Salunkhe
Batance inctuding accrued interest as at the year end
Maximum amount outstanding at anytime during the year
(Mr. Saniay N. Satunkhe has utitized this ban for working capitat purpose. The
toan given to retated pany was repayable on demand and at '12% lnterest rate
compounded annually)

Net Employment Services Private Limited
Balance inctuding accrued interest as at the year end

Maximum amount outstanding at anytime during the year
(Net Emptoyment SeNices Private Lrmited has utrhzed thrs loan for working capital
purpose. The loan given to retated party was repayabte on demand and at 10%

lnterest rate compounded annuatty)

2,067.97

r,587.09

34.69

1,691.14
2,o44.97

450.87
450.87

17.05

17.05

" Details of lo.n given to related partiei:

34 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, incLuding revenues and expenses that retate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which
discrete tinanciaL information is avaitabte.The Company has determined its business segment as "Education Program 5ervices" which
inctudes two business verticats, name{y Student Enrolment Services and Program 

^{anagement 
Services. Operatin8 segments results

are reviewed regutarty by the Company's llanaging Director and CEO to make decisions about resources to be atto<ated to the
segments and aslels their performance.

The Chief Operating Decision l aker ("CODM") which is Soard of oirectors evatuates the Company's performance and attocates
rBources based on an analysis of various perfomance indicatoE at operational unit levet. Since the Companys bu5ine55 is from

single business reponing segment, there are no other primary reportabte segments. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results,
totaL carrying amount of segment aslets, totat carrying amount of segment tiabiUties, total co5t incurred to acquire segment aslets,
total amount of charge for depreciation during the year is a5 reftected in the Financiat Statement.

The Company's cu5tome6 are domicited in lndia and atso the non-curaent assets are situated in lndia. Thr6, the Seographical
segment disctosures of the Conpany are not given.

l,rqmbai

d) Terms and condltlons:

(i) All transaction were made on normal commerciat terms and conditions and at market rates.
(ir') Alt outstandjng balances are unsecured and repayabte in cash.

@



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Atarch 2024
(Amount in INR lokhs, unless othervtise stated)

35 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 115 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year, Company is required to comply with the CsR requirements which is

formation of the CSR committee, identification of the CSR proiects and funding 5uch projects for at Least two percent of the average
net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financiat years The Company has initiated the process for
rneeting these comptiance requirernents and made a donation towards Global Education Trust. The purpose of the trust is to provide
upliftment of education sector and providing emptoyment opportunities.

A Details of CSR Expenditure are as follows:

Particulars
For the year ended

31 Atarch 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Gross amount required to be spent during the year
Arnount approved by the board to be spend during the year

77.75
2 5.00

13.6L

15.00

Amount spend during the year ended on 31 March 2024 ln Cash
Yet to be paid in

cash
Total

Arnount spent durinq the year:

i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 2 5.00 2 5.00

Total 25.00 2 5.00

Amount spend during the year ended on 31 March 2023 ln Cash
Yet to be paid in

cash
Total

Arnount spent during the year:

i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 1 5.00 1 5.00

Total 1 5.00 'r 5.00

I Details related to amount spent/ unspent

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

3l March 2023
Accrual towards unspent obligations in relation to:
Ongoing projects

Other than Ongoing proiects 2 5.00 15.00

Total 25.00 15.00

C Contribution to Related Parties/ CSR Expenditure incurred with Related Parties

Nature of Relationship
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 i{arch 2023
Accrual towards unspent obligations in relation to:

Other than Ongoing proiects
lvlanagement under
common controt

2 5.00 15.00

Total 15.00

Particulars

Note5:

(i) Nature of CSR activities undertaken during the current and previous year were Upliftment of Education Sector and Providing
Emptoyrnent opportunities.

(ii) The arnount has been spent for the purpose other than towards construction/acquition of any asset as approved in the rneeting of the
Board of DirectolNR

2. &

Uuhbai

* fi\

v

25.00



Particulars
As at

31 March 2024
As at

3'l M.rch 2023

Financial assetr mea5ured at amoatised cost
lnvestment in subsidiaries
Loans to emptoyees
Loans to related parties
Other financiatasset5
Trade receivabLes

Bank and bank batance other than cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

5.29

1,080.84
1,169.10

7.74
1 ,U3.48

1,637.81
13.81

2,1s9.06
950.21

691.70
601 .29
719.15

Total financial assets measured at Amortised cost 4,106.45 6,773.O5

Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Llanagement And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 ,,{arch 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless othetwise stoted)

B The Carrying Value of Financial Liabilities by Categories is as follows:

Particularj
A5 at

31 March 2024
As at

31 
'rvtarch 

2023

Financial Liabilities measured at amortlsed cort
Borrowings
Lease tiabilities
Trade payabtes

Other financiat tiabitities

2,484.72
1,568.59

z,064.57
105.80

3,378.58
1,639.15
1 ,912.93

396.00
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 6,223.68 7,326.66

C Fair value hierarchy
The fottowing is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair vatue of financial jnstruments by vatuation technique

Level 't: Quoted price5 (unadjusted) in active markets for identicat assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which att inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair vatue are observable, either

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observabte

(l)
As per lnd AS 107 "Financiat lnstrument: Disctosure, fajr value disclosures are not required when the carrying amounts reasonabty

approximate the fair vatue. Accordingty fair vatue disclosures have not been made for the fottowing financial instruments:-

1. Trade Receivabtes

2. Cash and Cash Equivalent5

J. other Bank Satancet
4. Loans

5. other Financiats tusets
6. Borrowings
7. Lease Liabitities
8. Trade Payabtes
9, Other Financiat Liabititie5

O/
,oC-

t

l,,lumbai

36 Fair Value Measurement

A The Carrying value of Financial Assets by Categories is as follows:



Jaro lnstitute Of Te.hnology ltunagement And Rerearch Limited
Notes to Standalone Fin.ncial Statements for the year ended l1 fia.ch 2024
(Amount in tNR lokhs, unless otheNise stoted)

37 Financial risk management

ln the cou6e of its b6iness, the Company i5 exposed primarity to liquidity risk, interest rate ftuctuation risk, credit risk and foreign exchange ftuctuation risk

A Liquidity Rlsk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company witt encounter difficutty in meetinS the obligations associated with its financiat tiabrlrties thar are settled by
detivering ca5h or another fr-rncial asset. The Company's approach to managing liqujdity risk r: to msure, as far a5 possible, thal it witl always have sufficient
{iquidity to meet its tiabiUti6 when dr€, under normal and 5tressd.ondi!ion5, withoul incurring unacceptabte tosses or risking damage to itsreputation.
Typically, the Company ensurg that it has sulficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses and servrce financial obligations.

(i) ilaturities of financi.l liabilities
The table below summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financiat tiabitities based on contractuaI payments at each reporting date

A5 at 31 l'{ar.h 2024
Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

BorrowinSs

Lease liabitities

Current
Borrowings
L€ase tiabilitie5
Trade payables

Other financial tiabiliti6

2,429.22
576.6',1

2,064.57
105.80

55.50
991.98

55.50
991.98

1.429 _22

516.61

1,064.57
105.80

Total 5,176_10 1 ,O47 -48 6,223.68

Ar at 31 l,{arch 2023
On demand Upto I year More than 5 years Total

Sorrowings

Lease tiabilities

Current
Borrowings

Lease tiabilitie5
Trade payable5

Other financiat tiabiLitie5

1,016.81
447.55

1,912.91

396.00

141_75

1,191.59

341.75

1,191.59

1,016.83
447.55

1,912.91
196.00

5,793.31 1,53 3.34 7,326.65

B ,lirket Rlrk
Market risk is the ri5k that the fair vatue of future cash ftows of a finanoat instrument witt ftuctuate becaure of changg in market pric6. Market risk

compri56 three typ6 of risk: Foreign currency rirk, intere5t rate risk and credit risk. The detaits are given bdow :

(i) lnterest R.te Riik
The Company'J exposure to interest rate risk arisef from borrowjngs which have a ftoating rate of interest, whjch is MCLR.The risk is managed by the Company

by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings. The costs of ftoating rate borrowings may be affected by the ftuctuations in the
interest rate5.

re to interest rate risk

lnteresl rate senaitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonabty po5sible change in interest rates on borrowings. The betow tabLe depicts possible impact on
the Companys Profit Before Tax:

Particulars For the year ended
31 ltarch 2024

For the year ended
l1 March 2023

Sensitivity

124.14)
24.14

(24.701

24.70

31 March 2024
As at

31 I'Lrch 2023
Variable rale borrowings
Fixed rate borroY.ings

2,413.81

70.91

2,470.M
908.53

4luhbdi t
9

Particulars

M



Jaro lnstitute OI Technology ilan.gement And Rese.rch Limited
Noter to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended l1 ttarch 2024
(Anount in INR lokhs. unless othefttise stoted)

The Company doe5 a credibility check on the tandtords before taking any property on lease and hasn't had a single instance of non-refund of security deposit
on vacating the teased property. the Company also in some cas6 ensure that the notice period rentals are adjustd against the seaurity deposits and only
differentiat, if any, is paid out thereby further mitigating the non'realization risk.

(ii ) Credit Risk
C.edit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle their obtigation5 as agreed. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are
derived from revenue earned from customers located in lndia. Cr€dit risk is managed through periodic assessm€nt of the financial .eliabitity of €ustomers,

taking into account the financial conditjon, current economic trends, analysis of hi5torical bad debts and ageing of trade receivables. Other financiat
instruments lha! are subject to credit risk inctudE cash and cash equivalents, bank deposjts, loans and security deposits.
The maximum exposure to crdit rjsk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivabtes which amounted to INR 1,169.08 & INR 691.70 takhs as at l1
Aarch 2024 and 31 Ltarch 2021 respectivety. The Company providg impairment altowance using the ECL model on trade receivables by totlowing simplified
approach. An impajrment analysis is performed at each reportjog date on an rndividuaL customer baris.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is limited because lhe counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The maximum expoiure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objedive of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent

losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quatity of the counterparties, taking into account their fjnancial position, past experience and other

credit loss is as follows:

(iii ) Foreign currcncy rirk
The Company has limited international transactions and thu5 its exposure to foreign exchange ftuctuation risk is [ow. The Company has following foreign

currency exposures:

Foreign currency rlsk e)(posure:

Exposure in USD Exposure in Russian Ruble

31 ,'tarch 2024 31 Ltarch 2023 31 l arch 2024 31 l,tarch 2023

Financial Assets

Trade receivabte5

Loan given to subsidiary
Security deposit receivabtes

Financial Liabilities
Account payabLes

0.91

0.07

5.26

5.t2

0.59

Total 0.98 10_58 0.59

As at
31 l ar.h 2024 31 l,{irch 2023

152.11
( r 13.59)
(52.86)

247.19
104_62

Ealance at the beginning of the year
Charged to profit and Loss account
Written off aeainst bed debt
Balance at the end of the year 185.66 352.11

Mumbai

*pe
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Lta.ch 2024
(Amount in INR lokhs, unless othetwise stoted)

38 Capital management policies and procedures

The Companys capitat comprises equity share capital, securities premium and att other equity reserves

attributable to the equity hotders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakehotders, and
- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt'to 'equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total borrowings tess cash and bank batances. Totat equity comprises all components of
equity.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capitat of the Company during the
current year and previous years.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio was as fotlows:

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capitat during the year ended 31

March 2024 and 11 t^arch 2023.

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024
As at

31 Ltarch 2023

Total Equity (i) '11 ,74!.76 7,530.38
Total borrowings
Less: Cash and bank batances (inctuding deposits with banks)

2,4U.77
(1,8s1 .22)

3,378.58
(1,320.44)

Adjusted net debt (ii) 631.50 2,058.14
Overall financing (iii )= (i)+(ii) 12,37 6.76 9,588.5 3

Gearing ratio (ii)/(iii) 5.12% 71.46%

t4umbai

+p
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

39 Share Based Payments

Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP)

The board yide its resotu'.ion dated 04 Aprit 2022 approved ESOP 2022 for gro,lting Emptoyee Stock Options in form of equity
shares linked to the comptetion of a minimum period of continued emptoyment to the etigibte emptoyees of the Company,
monitored and supeMsed by the Board of DirectoB. The employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as

vested at the price specified in the grant. The date of grant for ESOP option is 02 tl.6y 2027.

(A) Detaits of stock grants as under

No. of options

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024
As at

31 ,{arch 2023

Weighted average
exercise price

(rNR)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Options granted during the year
Less: Options exercised during the year
Less: Options fortfeited during the year

2,67 ,330

i'3741
(11,170)

2,92,771

(25,441].
10.00 762.00

Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,53,786 7,67 ,330

(C) The fair vatue of the employee share options has been measured using the Btack-Schotes Option Pricing Modet. The weighted

average fair vatue of the options granted is INR 252.49.

Particulars
Tranche 1

Vesting on znd
May,2023

Tranche 2

Vesting on znd
May, 2024

Tranche 3

Vesting on 2nd
i{ay,2025

Weighted average share price (lNR)

DiYidend yietd (%)

Expected votatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Time to expiration (in years)

Weighted average fair value (lNR)

262.@

0.@%

50.00%

5.03X

1

252.49

262.00

0.00%

50.00%

5.54%

2

253.05

26?.00

0.00%

s0.00%

6.27%

3

253.71

(D) The Company has charged INR 180.11 takhs (31 March 2023: INR 378.01 Lakhs) towards compensation cost pertaining to the
share based payments. The ESOP cost is inctuded in note 25 Emptoyee Eenefits Expense.

t2

*pa

Weighted
aYerage share

price (lNR)

(B) The weighted average exercise price of the options outstanding as at 31 March 2024 & 3'l March 2023 is INR 10 per share.

@



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes l:o Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3'l March 2024
(An,outt in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stoted)

40 Ratios

R tio Variance Ana is for the ar ended 31 March 2024.

Reason for variance

to ry Turnover, Trade PayabLes Turnover, Return on lnvestment ratios are not appticabte to the Company due to nature of business and current status of operat

(ir.

(r:

(c

I

(f)

(r-;

(i)

(i)

(k)

Nr)tes

tltu,
416ol-

Ratios Numerator Denominator
31 March

2073
% change

Current Ratio (times) Current Assets Current Liabitities 2.59 1.67 60.12%
Due to increase in sate and increase in trade receivabtes
batance.

Debt-Equity Ratio (times) Totat debt Totat equity 0.21 0.45 152.84%l Due to repayment of majority of loans in current year

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
(tjmes)

Earning for debt
service

0ebt Service 3.70 1 .46 153.89%
The earning has been increased because of rise of
revenue 1n current year.

Return on Equjty Ratio (%)

Profit after tax
less pref.
Dividend

Average totaI equity 47.05% 17 .01"t 't47 .75%
Due to increase in revenue, profjt has been jncreased

simuLtaneousty in current year

lnventory Turnover Ratio
(times)

Cost of Goods

Sotd
Average lnventory NA NA NA Not required

Trade Receivabtes Turnover
Ratio (times)

Credit Sates
Average Trade
Receivabtes

21.39 20.25 5.67% Not required

Trade Payabtes Turnover
Ratio (times)

Credit
Purchases

Average Trade Payabtes NA NA NA

Net CapitaI Turnover Ratio
(times) 7.78 3. 18 (12.50%)

Revenue from
operations

Average Working Capitat

Not requjred

Net Profit Ratio (%)
Net profit after
tax

Revenue from operations 20.36% 9.43% 115.93%

Revenue has been increased drasticatty in currrent year

than previous year. Hence profit has atso becn
increased.

Return on Capitat Emptoyed
(%)

EBIT
Average capital
emptoyed

51 .06% 24.15% 111.43%
Company's operating profit has been significantty hcnce.
return on capjtal emptoyed is increased.

Return on lnvestment (%)
lncome from
investments

Average current
investments

NA NA NA Not required

S

&

3l March
2024

(':l

(:.,

Not required



J.ro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Ljmited
Notes to Standalone Fin.n.ial St.tements for the ye.r ended 31 l arch 2024
lAmount in INR Lakhs, unLess otherwise stated)

41 Additionalregulatoryinformation
i. Title deeds of lmmovable Propertier not held in name ot the Company

There are no immovable propeni€s held by the Company.

ii. Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee given (overed u/! 185(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

lnvesrments made by the Company

made duringSno
Balan.e as at 31 March

2024
lnvestment made during

previous year

l
Net Emptoymen!

S€rvices Private
Limited

NIL NIL 1,617.81

2
Jaro Education
Private Limited

NL NIL 11.00

Balance as at 3l March

2023

Loan5 given by the Company

Sno
Name of the

Company
Secirred/Unsecured

31 t^arch 2024 31 arch 2021

l
Gtobal Education

Trust
10'; Payabte on demand 1,691-14

2
r&. Sanjay N

Salunkhe
r0% Payabte on demand Workinq capital purpose 450.87

l
Net Employmeot
SeMces Private
Limited

101 Payable on demand Working capital purpose 1l -05

v. Det.lls of benami property h€ld
The Co.npany does not have any B€nami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Cornpany for holding any Benami propeny,

vi. Wilful Defaulter
The Company has neither defaulted nor been declared witful defautter by any bank or financiat institution or other lender,

iil. Utilis.tion of So.rowed fundr
No fonds have been advanced or loaned or invested (eilher from borrowed funds or share premium or any other Sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in ahy orher person(s) or entiry(ies), in.tuding foreign entities ("lntermediaries") with the understandjng, whether recorded in writinS or otherwise, that the
lntermediary shall lend or invest in party idenlified by or on behat, of the company (ultimate Beneficiaries).

The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Co.npany shatl whether, direclly or indire<tly lend or
invest in other per5ons or entitie5 identified by or on behalf of the Company {"ultimate Eeneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like ofl behatf
of the ultiftute Eeneficiaries.

iv. Rev.luation of prop€rty, plant and equipment (including righl-of-use argcts) and int.ngible asiets
The Company has not revalued its property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of uae Assets), thus vatuation by a registered valu€r as defined under rule 2 of
the Companig (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rut6, 2017 is not applicable.

The Company does not have any lnt.ngible Assets, thus, disctosurB retating to revatuation of lntangible Assets is not applicable.

vil. Quarterly Returns
Quarterly returns or statements of current assets fited by the Company with bank5 or financial institutions are in agreement Mth the books of account

vlil. Rel.tloBhip rvlth st(Jck off comp.nies
The Company does not have any transactions with the Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2oll or se(ion 560 of the Cornpanie! Act,
,956.

lx. Reglslr.tlon of rharge5 or ratisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is ye! to be registered wilh ROC beyond lhe statutory period,

x. Compliince tvlth number of liyers of companiei
The Company ha5 complied with the number of layers prescribed under ctause (87) of section 2 of lhe Act read with Companiet (Restriction on number of
taye6)Rutes,20l7.

xi Compliance rvith .pproved Scheme(r) of Arrangements
The company has not entered into any scherne of arangements al approved by the competent authority in termJ of sedion 2jo to 217 of the Cqnpanies aat,
2013, thu5, the discLo5ur6 reLating to compliance with approved 5cheme of arrangements is not appticable to the Company,

xii Undisclosed in.oDe
The Cornpany does not have any undisclosed incorne which is not recorded i

Mumbsi

*!!'+
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r (previous year) in the tax assessrnents under th€ tncome Tax Act, , 961 .
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology M.nagement And Research Limited
Notes to Stnndalone Financial Statements for the ye.r ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR lakhs, Lrn(ess ore.wise stated)

xiii Detail! of crypto currency or virtu.l currency
The Comparry has not Vaded or invesled in crypto currency or virtuai currency durinB the current or previor.rs year

42 Sui€quent Evenl
No signiticant Subsequent events have been obrerved which may require an adjustments lo the financial stalements-..

43 Previous yeai figu.es have been regroup€d/ reclassified rc confirm prpsentation a5 per lnd AS and as required by khedute lll of the Act

44 These financial statements have been approved for i5sue by the board of directors at its meeting held on 26 September 2024

As per our report of even date attached
Forl,lSKA&Aisoci.tes
Chartered Ac(o!ntants
lCAl Firln Registration No: 105047w

For and on behalf of the Eoard of Director5
Jaro ln5titute of Technology llanagement and Research Limited

CIN: U80101M82009PlC191957

4,, JA,,b
sanjay salunkhe

V
Siddharth lyer

Membership No: I16084

Managing Director
DtN-0i900612

Director 6 CEO

0tN,07132904

Sankesh lloph.
Chief Financial Otficer

lils. Kirtika Chauhan

Company Secretary
Membership Number: A65797

.w,/f,/
Ranjita

oate: 26 September 2024 Date: 26 September 2024
.j;.! PLace: Mumbai Ptace: Mumbai

Date: 26 September 2024 Date: 26 september 2024 Date: 26 September 2024
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MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUD]TOR'5 REPORT

HO

602, Ftoor 6, Raheja Titanium,
Western ExDress Highway, Geetanjali
Rajlway Cotony, Ram Nagar,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA

reli *91 21 6974 OzN

To the r{embers of Jaro lnstitute of Technology fianagement and Research Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jaro lnstitute of Technotogy
Management and Research Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Hotding Company") and its
subsidiaries (Hotding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") which
comprise the Consotidated Batance Sheet as at l,larch 31, Z0Z4, and the Consotidated Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive lncome, the Consotidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consotidated statement of Cash Ftows for the year then ended, and notes to the
Consotidated Financiat Statements, inctuding material accounting poticy information and other
exptanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "consotidated financiaI statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financiaI statements and on the other
financial information of subsidiaries, the aforesaid consotidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015, as amended ("lnd A5")
and other accounting principtes generatty accepted in lndia, of their consotidated state of affairs of
the Group as at l{arch 31 ,2024, of consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consotidated
changes in equity and its consotidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consotidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibitities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance \^/ith the ethicat
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consotidated financial statements in terms of the
Code of Ethics issued by lnstitute of Chartered Accountant of lndia ("lCAl"), and the relevant
provisions of the Act and we have futfitted our other ethical responsibitities in accordance with these
requirements. We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

lnformation Other than the Consolidated Flnancial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Hotding Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director's report but does not inctude the consotidated financiat
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financia[ statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection Mth our audit of the consotidated financiat statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialty
inconsistent with the consotidated financial statements or our knowtedge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materiatty misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Head office: 602, Ftoor 6, Raheia Titanium, western Express Highway, ceetanJali Railway corony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 40006l' lNDla' Tet: +91 77 6738 0519
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MS KA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Responsibilities of Board of Dlrectors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hotding Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the preparation and presentation of
these consotidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consotidated financial position, consotidated financiat performance, consotidated
changes in equity and consotidated cash ftows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Companies inctuded in the
Group are responsibte for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Group, for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; the setection and apptication of appropriate accounting poticies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, imptementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financiat controls, that were operating effectivety for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consotidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materiat
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consotidated financiat statements by the lrlanagement and Board of Directors of the Hotding
Company, as aforesaid.

ln preparing the consolidated financiat statements, the respective l,{anagement and Board of
oirectors of the Companies inctuded in the Group are responsibte for assessing the abitity of the
Group to continue as a going concern, disctosing, as appticabte, matters retated to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease op€rations, or has no realistic attemative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsibte for
overseeing the financial reporting process of each Company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We give in "Annexure A" a detaited description of Auditor's responsibitities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other ,{atters

We did not audit the financial statements of 1 subsidiary (Net Employment Services Private
Limited) whose financiat statements reftect totat assets of Rs. Nit as at March 31, 2024, totat
revenues of Rs. 22.79 takhs and net cash ftows amounting to Rs. 6.03 lakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consotidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the ltanagement and our opinion on the consolidated financiat statements, in so far as it
retates to the amounts and disclosures inctuded in respect of these subsidiaries and our rePort
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solety on the reports of the other auditors. This entity ceased to be a
subsidiary with effect from March 28,2024.

a

tt
$

SO

Head Office: 602, Floor 6,

Ahmedabad I Ben8aturu
Raheia Titanium, we5rern Express Highway, Geetanjati Railway cotony, Ram Nager, Goregaon (E), l umbai 't00063, INDIA' Tel: +91 22 6?38 0519
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the consotidated financial
statements as a whote are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing ("sAs") witt
atways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individuaUy or in the aggregate, they coutd reasonabty be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consotidated financial
statements.
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a

a We did not audit the financia[ statements of 1 subsidiary (Jaro Education Private Limited)
whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. Nil as at March 31,2024, total revenues
of Rs. Nit and net cash ftows amounting to Rs. (0.'12) lakhs for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consotidated financial statements. These financia[ statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consotidated financial statements, in so far as it retates to the amounts
and disctosures inctuded in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it retates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solety
on the reports of the other auditors. This entity ceased to be a subsidiary with effect from
october 3, 2023.

Our opinion on the consotidated financial statements is not modified in resp€ct of the above
matters.

Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent appticabte, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowtedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw retating to preparation of the
aforesaid consotidated financiat statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters
stated in the paragraph h(vi) b€tow on reporting under Rute t 1(g).

c. The Consotidated Batance sheet, the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss inctuding
other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consotidated Statement of Cash Flow deatt with by this Report are in agreement with the
retevant book of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consotidated
financiat statements.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financiat statements compty Mth the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Hotding
Company as on lriarch 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Hotding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated
in lndia, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in lndia are disquatified
as on lrlarch 31,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1& (2) of the
Act.

f. The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3Xb) and
paragraph (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rute 11(g).

g. With respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance Mth
Rute 1'l of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rutes, 20'14, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the exptanations given to us:

There were no pending titigations which woutd impact the consolidated financiat
position of the Group.

The Group did not have any material foreseeabte tosses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

II
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51-

Head office: 602, noor 6. Raheja Tiranrum, we5lern Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway colonv, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E t' Mumbai 400063' lNolA' Tel: *

Ahmedatad | 8€ngaturu | ct'"nn"' r t'o'i"i"Zti''gm'i iio"'"uui I vochr I Kolkata I Mumbai I Pune

91 22 6238 0519
www.m!ka.in

o



MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

lll. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Hotding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia.

1) The respective ,{anagements of the Hotding Company and its subsidiaries which
are Companies incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and betief, no funds have been
advanced or toaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit
report, that such parties shatt, directty or indirectty lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the Hotding
Company or any of such subsidiaries ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the tike on behatf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

3) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors
of the subsidiaries which are Companies incorporated in lndia whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, and according to the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management of the Hotding Company in this regard
nothing has come to our or other auditors' notice that has caused us or the other
auditors to betieve that the representations under sub-ctause (i) and (ii) of Rute 1'l (e)
as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any materiat mis-statement.

The Hotding Company and its subsidiary has neither dectared nor paid any dividend
during the year.

Based on our examination, the Hotding Company & its subsidiaries has used an
accounting software (Tatly) for maintaining its book of account during the year
ended March 31,2024, which has a feature of recording audit trait (edit tog) facitity,
except that no audit trail feature was enabted from April 1, 2023 titt June 'l Z, 2023.

Further, the audit traiI feature as enabted, has not operated throughout the year for
att retevant transactions recorded in this accounting software as it was enabled only
with effect from June 13, 2073.

Atso, during the course of our examination, we did not come across any instance of
audit trait feature being tampered with, post enabtement of audit trail feature.

ln our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Group to its directors is t/ithin the timits taid prescribed under Section 197 read
with Schedute V of the Act and the rutes thereunder.

2

Head office: 602, Ftoor 6, Raheja Tiranium, western Express Highway. Geetanjali Raitway cotony, Ram Nagar' Goregaon (E), Mumbai 40006l lNDlA Tel: '91 22 6238 0519
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2) The respective l'{anagements of the Hotding Company and its subsidiaries which
are Companies incorporated in lndia whose financiat statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectivety that, to the best of their knowtedge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Hotding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or
entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Hotding Company
or any of such subsidiaries shatt, directty or indirectly, tend or invest in other peBons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the Funding Party
("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the tike on behatf of
the Uttimate Beneficiaries.



Chartered Accountants

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Hotding Company and on consideration of CARO reports issued by
the statutory auditors of Subsidiary Company included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group to which reporting under CARO is appticable, the detaits of
qualifications / adverse remarks are as fottows:

Forr{SKAeAssociates
Chartered Accountants

2':\W:;KL
't05047w

Siddharth lyer
Partner
Membership No. 116084
UDIN: 241 16084BKCOC^I2312

Ptace: Mumbai
Date: September ?6, 2024

Sr.
No

Name of the
Company

Type of
Company
(Holdlng

/Subsidiary/
Asrociate)

Clause numb€r of
the cARo Report
which is qualifled

or Adverse

Jaro lnstitute of
Technotogy
Management &
Research Limited

u80301 MH2009PLC1 93957 Hotding
Company

Clause vii (a)

2 Net Employment
Services Private
Limited

u93090MH2006PTC't 65667 Subsidiary
Company

Ctause vii (a)
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Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JARO INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY I ANAGEI,IENT AND RESEARCH
LI,IIITED

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintain
professiona( skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consotidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materiat misstatement resutting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invotve collusion, forgery, intentionaL
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

Obtain an undeBtanding of internal controt retevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section '143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether the Hotding Company has adequate
internat financiaI controts Mth reference to consolidated financial statements in ptace and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and retated disclosures made by the management and Board of
Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of DirectoB use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit eyidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists retated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
abitity of the Group to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the retated disctosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disctosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conctusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evatuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consotidated financiat
statements, inctuding the disctosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consotidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities inctuded in the consotidated financiat
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities inctuded in the
consotidated financiat statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsibte for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain sotety responsible for our audit opinion.

Headoffice:602, Ftoor 6, Rahela Trtanium, w*tern Erprers Highway, Ge€taoiatr Railway cotony, R.m Nagar, Goregaon (El Mumbai400063' lNDla' Tel: *91 2262380519
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MS KA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FortlSKA&Associates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

<; / b-r
Siddharth lyer
Partner
l,lembeEhip No. 116084
UDIN: 241 16084BKCOC^{2312

Ptace: l'lumbai
Date: September 26, 2024

we communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities inctuded in the consotidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the ptanned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, inctuding any significant deficiencies in internal controt that we
identify during our audit.

We atso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with
relevant ethicat requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them alt
retationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where appticable, retated safeguards.

&4
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rJaro l^rtitlte oi'e.5roroqy r ! ^sscnenl A"d le,-"arch :rmil.d
Conioli..ted g.ia..e Sheet a5 at l1 l ar.h 202r
{amtunr in nri Lak-t. Jnle5r cl.ciw[estaieo)

AlsaTs

Properry. Plant a.C tquipae.

Other htanglble ark'r

. Orh€r Financial A5et5
Non Curr6: Tax A5Ftr (Ne:)

Cash and Cath Equivalntr
. Ba.k balan(6 orhe. than cash a.d .a!h equir.lens

. otid fiEncial AsPts

EQUITY ANO LIA6IIITIE3
EQUITY

712.11

60r.29
2,r55.82

525.51
6,5r?.n

1.5Ca.10

6,179.91

UABiItTtES
Nft<Jrr€nt !l.6illli6

,46
1,161.12

91,65
719.17

Total dBtandi.g ds ol mi.ro and lmllaterp.isEi
Total ourtt nding due' of credtoB o$cr tnan mr(ro a.d

Otier FiNncial Liabilitie5
Otner Curmt Uabiuti6

For and ff benalf ol the Eoard

Jao lnstitute of Te.hnololy Man.eement.nd Rerear.h Llmlted
crN: lJE0l01rr,r,q2009PLc1 91957

As Per our rePo.t of even date
Forl,\5XA6A$6iate5
chanered Accountants
lCAl tirm Regirv.tim No: 105C{7W

4:J4,4 afu.Ll'
sol"vJunu'.

DtN.0r9@6t2

w
Date: 26 settembe.2024

Oir<tor & CEO

0tN.071t29o4

Date: ?6 september 2024 Date: 26 September 2024

Pr"y-
l embeBhip Number: 465797

a

196 85
,.5?9.19

6?E.r7
1,t17.r',\

r,005.91
1,610.75

21615
1.15

r,620 95

I 6,729.il

r,84 ] 48

,.19
151 67

1?,810.50

7

rl

rt
r6,108.73 I 1,1,15.23

otal Equity Att.ibutable to Sha.eholders of the cohp.ny

TOTA'. ASSETS l

ll, 4t.26

i,50.. r l
r0.2]9.11

7.764.O'
Non.C6noUing h:erert 577.&

11,74r.76 8,156.0t

I8
1.

l?

55 50

99r 98
r26.99
970.90

7 145.37

20

20

l3

?1

72

19

?l

2.179.77
576.6r

17.80

7,076.n

105.E0

1,044.50

67.37

1.036.82
,1t8.56

't,977.71

196.@

t't7.13
48.4C
f.75

Total cu.rent Liabili:iet 6,247.O7
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,132.14 9,218.51
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTTIES 20,'t75.70 '17,471.60

5mhary of maldial ac€ountiry polici6 1-l
The a.companrng notei (a-t, ) ar€ an rit€gral pan o( the rinancial StarentnB

Mumbai

*
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Consolidatod St tement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31 A arch 2024
(Anount in INR Lakhs, unlesr otnerwi5e statec)

Technolo8y ltana8ement And R--re,rrch Limited

Revenue f ro.r", operations
Other in<ome

v Profit before t.x for the year (lil+lv)

3l l&r.h-.J23

4,48C-24
457 -68

511.85

5,4D.46
10,895.63

1,562.88

28.65
(5.5C)

1,164.56

Adiustmenl of ta)( retating to ea'lier periods

Vll P.ofit for the year from continuing oper.tiont (v-Vl)

Profiv (lors) for the year froff dii<ontjnued oper.tioni

lX Profil for the ye.r (Vll-vlll)

Vlll Oiscontlnuedoperations:
Profit before tax kom dilcofltinued opeiaiiois
rax erpenrc of discontinued operations

Other comprehensive lo$:
Continujng Operatlons:

Items th.t wlll not be reclarsified to profit .nC lo5!
Reaieasurefient toss ofdefined bene:it otan

lncome tax effect on abcve
Total Other Comprehensive Losi from Continuing Oper.ticns

n
Y

For the year ended
ll l arch 2024

25

26

'9,904.51

152-14

12,214-t:
244-OA

20,256.65 12,458.51

27

28

29

l0

6,203.78
481.10

675-89
7,464.75

Expenlel
Employee benelits expeoses
Finaoce costs

oeprecialion and arnortization expanses
Orher expenres

Profjt betore ex€eption.l items ard tar {l.ll)

14,821.O1

5,415.64
lv Exceptional iter. l1 {216.12)

1,562.88

l2
)7
t2

687.71

181.09)
791.46

311_49

87.98

1,398.08 47t.47
1,111 .1',l

7.27

{11.08)
(r.81 ) 23.15

(26.55)

6.58

(15.8E)

4.00
(19.87) (11.8E)

0.17
(0.09)

Dircontlnued Oper.tions:
Itemr th.t wlll not be recl.srified t. proflt.nd loss

Remeagurenrefit lois of defined ben€fit ptan

lncome tar effect on above
Total orher comprehenrive lncome from Disconlinusd op.rations(xl) 0.28

Xll Tot.l other comprehensive loss for lhe ye.r (X+Xl) (r9.67) (11.60)

3,777.76 1,'15?,96

1,798.96
(1.13)

Xlll rot.l compreh€nslve incorE for th€ year (lX+Xll)

xlv P.oflt for the ye.r attribut bie to;
Owne.s of the parent

Non.controlling intererts
1,164.56

(11.66)

0.06

Other comprehenrlve losi tor the ye.r.ttribut ble to:
Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interests

(19.87)

(r9.E7) (11.60)Total

f ,779.@
(1.31)

1,145.44

7.52

Total comprehenrlve lncome for the year lttribut.ble to:
OY/ne6 of the parent

Non-controtlinB intere5t5
r,152.953,777.76

Mumbai
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1,157.10
7.46

I s,199.s2
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Jaro lnltitute Of Te(hnolo3y ManagemEht and A.erearch Limited
consolidated Statement of P.ofit & Losr for the year €nded on l1 r,urch 2024

tAmoun! i.r INR lakhs, unless oth€qise stated)

l5
l5

l5
l5

t5
l5

18.92
i8.71

(0.02)
(0.02)

18.90
18_71

5.65
5_67

0.12
0.11

5.77
5.71

rtEterial accounting policies

The accompanying notes {zl'51) are an integrat pa( of the iinancialStatemenlt
t.l

tlumbti

*

Xr,/ Earnings Per Equity 5h.re (for continuing oper.tlons)
(F..e V.lue of INR 10 e.ch)
sa!i. (lNR)

Diluted (lNR)

xvl E.rnings/(l-oss) Per Equity Share (for discontinued operarions)
(Fa.e value ot INR 10 each)
Bas,c (lNR)
DiLuted (lNR)

XYll Earnings Per Equity sh.re (for continuirg.nd d*tonllnued oper.tlons)
(F.ce v.lue of INR 10 e.ch)
Basr( (lNR)

Dituted (lNR)

p No: 116084

Dare: 26 sepre ber 2024

and on behalf of the Eoard of Directort
FoTMSKA&Asrd.ietn
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Reqistration No; l050zl7w

4:JA4
Siddharth lycr

J.ro lnstitute of Technolqy lit n.gem€nt.nd Rese..ch Limit€{
CIN: !801C1MH2009P1C191957

(t/
: J,\'

I
S.nr.r{.lunkhe
Managing Direc!or
DrN,01900632

Director 6 CEO

0tN,07112m4

Date: 26 S€ptember 2014 oate: 26 s€erembth.202a

N:CI)
Chiet Finaiciai Officer

lilr. l(irtik. Ch.uhan

Llembership Numberi A55797

Date: 26 September 2024 Date: 26 September 2024

@-x'



Ji.o lnrttute O, Te(h.ology I'Lnagement And Resedrch Limited
Co.rso'id.ted Statement of C.3h Flows lor the ye.r ended 11 ,i!.rch 2o2rl
(Amount in INR lakhs, u.less otherwile staled)

now
Net Profit Before'r.r A5 Per 9t temenr Ot Profit And los! (after exception.l item)

Continuin8 Operations
ois.ontinued Ooerations

5,199.52
1.77

31 r,l.r.h 202<

5,206.79 | 1,591.53
1,562.88

28.61

Depie.ialisi afid amortjMtion expeflra of continuing oprations
,.Tre.jation .nd amon'isrtion erpense ol Dilcontlnued Operetions
Share-bared (ommnsation eJeense
Allo?/anae5 fcr expedeC credit lossea fEcLl
Finanae arst ot Contlnullll Operationg
Finafte crrsi o. ois(ontinued Operations
Gain on terminatlon ol lease
!o5! on extinEuishment of borrowi4s
Liabitities no lon8er required written back
lntereil lncome ol Continuin8 Operatlons
Interes: lncome ot DiscontinLred Operations

Los' on te:e of proprty, plant and equipment
Lors/(sain) on disposal of sub6idiary
Un eatis€d exchange losj/(gain), net

675.88
27.09

1E0.1:
(1r 1.591
.156.l5

26.6A
(17.84)

14.75

011.78)
{1t2.U2)

42.17
0.41

216.11

(416.00)
(18t.19)

94.77

t6,064.56)
i22.70
{5ir.79}

(2P4.15)

27.82

51t.85
t5.E9

176.0r
104.62

471.E1

l6-r9

i.691
{241.01)
(r46.67)

58.{1

4.60

lwortlng caplt.l adrust1)enr,

I

| . lrnc.e.se)/decreasr tr Trade recervables

| . t'.c.easelrdecrease ln Orher non-current linancialassets
. (lncreare)/d?creal+ in 0thcr cL,rrenl frnan(lal asspll
- 0e(rea(e l. Ctl-e, ncn.(urreot and (urent atsets

rf.re.se/(decrea..t in I'ade payable:
' In.r.ase In Other c.rrren! tiabiUtie9

/ldecrease) in Other financiat liab(ities

I.ccme tax paid (netl

lnterert inco:ne on toans

Cajh flowj from inv*t.{ ncfvitl6
,lr.harc of Propedy, Plant and Equlpm€nt
Pro.eeds from rate cf Property, Ptant and Equipment
Proc€eds liD6 sate of sub6idiaries
Loan! giv€n to employees
Loars 8iv€n to related panies
Proaeeds lrom repayflent ol loant from employ€es
Proceedt from repaynent of loans from rel,ated

Proce€dr fiom/linvetnEnt in) fixed deporlts
Proceeds from saLe of Mutual Fuods

lnterest incoine on fixed deposits
lnterest inaome on loans glven of continuing Operations

Op€rlting Profir befor. working .apltrl changes 6,281.24 2,417.1?

(410.09)

119.14
176.06

0,097.1r)
772.99
449.55

67.62

18.73)
(482.46) 1,106.75

11,210.67) (81?.58)
(1,593.11) 247.17

\2,..341

1,619.69
(6.68)

(1,944.30)
E_52

4,U4.37
593.55

0.73
787.91
12E.21

2,110.m
{50.r.90)

0.05
5.84

r9l.2l
ta6.l5

(115.44)

(4)6.69)
(2,31t.26)

3)9.57

1,711.37 (767.121Ner carh flos ured ln inyesting activlties (B)

825.31)
(26.60)

0.01
5.41

1571.571

049.71)
(454.88)
(141.05)

't,?62.17

63.17
(716.33)
(285.88)

l.374.611

1144.31

(l1l.l7)
06.r0)

C6!h flow fror fhancinS acth,ltlet
FinaNe cost pald ol conthulng Or)erations
Finance (oai paid ol dlsconllnud OperaUons
Proceedi ,rom l551,e ol shar6 uder emp{oyee stock options scheme
Proce€ds from current borrowingJ
Proce€ds from non.current borrowings
Repayment of cu.rent borrowings
Repayment of non.al,nent borrowings
Prindpal rep.ymeot of tease Llabilitig
lntereri payment ot lease liabiLltles

(1,861.62) (5.r 5.05)Net <ash flows ured in financl ng .ctivities (C)

Mumbai
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Jnro Insdtute Or To<hnolrgy ll..age.nenr And Res..r€h Limited
Consolidated s$tehent oI C.sh Flows for the year eoded 31 l,larch 2o2a
(Amo,Jnt in l{R lalhs, r"Less othetuise nated}

Net i..reaG lo.arh and (.si! equiv.lents (A+BlC)
Cash rno ca5n eo!rvaie.:s at ihe
Cash .nd .ash equiv.lenti .t tl.e end of the year (570.r3) (1,72i.951

11) The above Cash llow statement has b€en prepareo und€r the indi.e(t method set out in lndian A.(ounting Standari 7 (lND A5 7), statemen!
of Cash rbws- notified !nde. s€.tion lll of the Comoanies A.t 2011.

- i:r curreit accounts
. Cash ir hanC

Chiel Financial Oiflcei
,,rs, Xinlli Chauh:n
CompanySecrelary

^4embership 
Number: 465797

As at 1 April 2022
31 Ma.ch 2023

Borrowirig
Lease iiaDilities

2.157.751
1,101.84 |

1,005.79
(518.96)

113.37
E1E.EO

).776-91
1,60r.6E

Less: Ca;h..eait lror Dank

Balancer as pe; ltatenent

(3) Change in liabllihes .rising from financing .ctivitiet:

Relistration No: l05C47w

. SorovTing

. Lease liabiriti€s

summary of rnaieriaL acaountlng poticie: 1.1
The accompanying notes (1.51) are an rr:egrai part of the Financiat statem€ntt.

as per our repcn of even dale
ForMSKA6rtroclite:
Cha(ered accountanis

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors
J.ro lnstltute of Technology ,,tan.gement .nd Rese.rch Umited
CIN: U80l01iaH2009Pl-C193957

4:J //^,O
Sidiharth lyar

Membership No: 116084

Director & CEo

DrN.07112904

Date: 26 9ptember 2024 Date: 26 September 2024 oate: 26 9€ptemb€r 2024

sry9

,l
S.nJrylalunkhe
l\ anaginS Dlrector
DrN-01900612

K"P-

Date: 26 Seotember 2024 Date: 26 S€pL€mber 2024

1,151,62
1.727.91

{1.025.l0}
70t.6>)

31 Mar.h 2024 31 Mar(h 2021

r 1.81 c6r
5 70.3l 7?7.951

584.18 1,9.24

.]1 Alar.h 2023 31 March 2024
!.776.91
1,601.68

(1,211.20)

{195.91)

(6C.99)

56:.84
2.484.72
1.568_59

Mumbai
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J.ro lnrtltute Ol Tochrclogy .n.Frncnt And n6e.rch Limit€d
l{ot6 lo thc Consolid.ted Fln h.l.l St terrFnt! for thc ycrr.ndcd 3t .rch 2024
(Anount in INR lakhr, unt6! otheryite rtated)

The Consolidated Finanaial StatefiEnt comprisB the Coniolidated Financial StatenEnts of th€ Group for the year ended 31 lilarch 202a and l1
l,{arch 2023.

Corpor.tr lnformrnon

Jaro lnttitute of Technolo8y /\ anag€mnt and Research Limited { the Company' or 'the ho{ding Company or the parenf) ii a unlirted pubtic timit€d
Company domi.ited and incorporated in lndia. The Hotding Comgany war incorporated on 9 Juty 2009 under the erstwhile Companies A.t, 1956 ai a
prilate limited company. The Hotding Comp.ny is a pubtic limited .ompany w.e.f. 12 AuBust 1017 with new CIN:U601011,{H2009P1C191957. Th€
registered office of the Company is tocated 11th noor, vik s Centre, Dr. C. G. Road, Chembur - East, l\ uhbai - 400074,   aharashtr..

The HoLdinB Company and ltr Subsidiaries l'the 6roup"), .re primarity en8aged in facitititing student enrolrEnts and program manage,nent
seM.es p€rbininS to the educahonat couEer and de$eer offered by the univ€rsitie5/institutes, The program manaSernent reMces marorty
inctud€ providiry ontine education lhrough LearninS ManaSement System and maintaining conference roomr throogholt the courscs for the
ctassroom €ducation ,ro8ram'. The Groop has affiLiationg with top-tier bu3in€5i schoots and univeBitier, A frerh certilicate ot incorporation
consequent to the conversion of kivate to tublic Comp.ny w.s isrud by the Registrar of Companies Mumbai on 12 August 2017 und€r Gctjon 1E of
the CompanEi Act, 201! to giv€ ellect ol conversion,

N.me ot Companies lnt r6t .r .t 3l
ti,hrch 202,r

.r.t 3l Mrrch
2073

Slli!tsrE:
Net EmptoylrEnt Service. Priv.te Limited i''

Jaro Education Prirate Limited rtl

St o-rubldhrLi
VMticatlon Solutlom Privale Llmiled ol

NET Recruitrnent ScMcai Prirate Limited 6l

NET HR golutions Privatc Umit.d 6'

lkt Educaton Entrepren€uRhlp And Lrade6hip Limited rbi

lndia

lndi.

lndra

lndia

lndia

n.4*
52.18X

n.$1
5{.0a1

76.611

59_32X

(a) Cea!€d to be sub3idiary w.e.f. 2E l,larch 2024.
(b) Ceased to be subsidiary w.e.l. 0l Octobea 2021. Atso the nam€ of Jaro Education Private Limited has b€en (hanged to Aptness Eduaation Private
Limited with effe(! from 3 September 2024. ln this consotidated financlal statements, thji entity is referred to by lts old nrrne i.e. Jaro Educatlon
Private Limited.

2.1 B.rl. of Preparation

(l) staternant of cornplhnca
The Consolidated Financial Statement of the Group compriser of the Con5olidated Batance Sheet ai at 31 llar(h 2024 and 11 Mard 2021, the
con5olidated staterEnt of kofit and 1055 (includinS other compreh€nsi\c ln ome), th€ consolidated sraternent of cash Rows, th€ consolidated
Statement of Chang6 in Equity for the years ended 31 l,Lrch 2024 and ll 

^,Lrch 
2023 th€ Materiat Accountiry Policies.nd the Notes (inctudinl

other explan.tory inform.tion) (cotte(tivety, the "Consolidated FinanciaL Staternent").

This note provides a liit of the Materiat Accountiry Policler adopted in the preparation of the Consotidated FinarKial StatemenB, These policies

have been contistently apptied to all the year' presented, unlesr otherwise stated.

Th6e Conaotidated Financiat Statements ha\le been prepared for the Groop a5 a going concern on the baJis of relevant lnd AS that are effective at
the 6roop's annuat reportinS data i.e. ll March 202t.

The5es Consotidated Financiat StaternenB of the group are preented io lndian Rupees IINR), whi(h i5 ilr funclional currency and all vatu6 are
rounded to the Rupe6 l-akhs except when otherwrse indicaled.

The Consolidated Financial Statafl€nts were authorised for i$ue by the Board of Dire<tors of the Company at then meeting he(d on 26 kptember
2021.

(iv) Use of estlmat6

The preparation ot the con3olidated Financiat statement requirer manaSement to make judSments, estimates and assumptions that a{fect the

apptication ot aacountinS poticies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabitities, in.ome and expeises, Actuat resutts may differ from those

(ll) Hlitorlcal cort coovaotlon
These Consotldated Flnancial Staternent are prepared in accordance with lndian Accotinting Standardr (lnd AS) under the historical cost con!'ention

on the ecrual basis, except for the fottowing:
- certain financial asrets and tiabilities which are mea5ured at fair vatu€ or arnortised cost;
- defined berEfit pl.n!;
- share- bas€d payfiEnts

(lll) curr.nt v.r:ut non-curr.nt cl.3ilflc.tlon
Atl asrets and tiabilitiea haw b€efl classified as current or non-currcnt irs pcr the operahnS cyct€ and other criteria tet out in the kheduta lll to
the Compani6 Act, 2Ol3- 8a5ed on the nature of p.oducts and leMces and tieir realitation ln cath and cath equi\/.alents, th€ Group ha5

alcertained its operating cyde a5 12 montht for the puapose of orrrcnt arld non-curreot cla$ification of a55ct5 and tiabititiB.
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2 Summ.ry ot lLt.ri.l Accountlng Pollcte'
The accountinS polici$ set out below have been applied conrirtently to the penods preseflt€d in thele financial statements.



Jaro l.stltut6 Of i..h.olo8y r^.nrtom.nt A.rd Reee.rcn Lrhited
xot?e to the Co45oiidated F{n.r.l.l ltats,n€nt! !o. tte y€rr ended l, l,{.rch 202a
(Amouit in lNk rrkn.,, Lnl€ss othsrwise statedr

a) Expr.r.i.:edltrojsn on t..de receivablca

b) Oefihed bencfi! pl.ns aiC comp€ns.t.d.been(ee

2.2 B.sir of CorsoliCalion

The impa[ment provirtol (,1 trade reteiv.bls rs basei o. asru.pr:er .bout ri3l ot dclaltt .nd etp<t.t timi.g ot (oUe(non Ihe Group ute!
judgmenl in Eaking these.stumptin! and *ie:iT the inputs to rhe ifipslrhent (alcul.tioi. bised on lre Groug's O.rt history, .ustcoer'e
c.€diMonhi.els. .xisting rn.r\-.t condirlons as wcll.s ro'v.rd lookin! Btifiates at tne€nd ol €aci re2ortiiE period.

The cost c, i,he delined be.efit plans, .ompensatea abs€nces .id the prelen! v.lue ol the defined benelir oOlig.tion .r3 b.red oi a.iuar;rl
valu.tio. usinE the p.oj€.td irnit credt mcl\od, Ar artu..ial v.iuaiio.r i.volrc! m.ti.g vcriou! atrudptisr !ha! nay djrla. froin.dual
dev€loprnents in lhe future. Thesc inclLde the aeterDinaiio. of the dl*dmt rat.i tuture ratary in(reaser and morraiity rar6. oue to th€
cornplenties inrclved i. rtc vruaijon and ir! lonq.t€nr .alLre. a defi.cd benent obli9atioi lr lrlghly reniitive to .hanges in rhese assuiptio-r
Alla3sumplaas a e ree#e.: al .a.h,epo'r:n! Crle

ihe Group *aluates if ar ar rargo n<.r oualil i6 to be a lelF .r per th€ .equtemer ts ol hd /.5 1 ! 6. lde. ulicatioo ol a lease renuires tigniiicanr
judgDerl. Ihe GroLrp us.r sra.i.icanr joag@ent in rste$ing th€ leare teh lincludiog a.ti.ipated rene*ats) a.d the.pplicable discounl rare

ihe G.ouD dete.rincs r ie rease rcrm as rhe n.n...n.:i65le period ol . re.se. toEether with both penons ccv€.ed by an oplioi ro exlend lhe
leas€ il ine Group i! .e o.ably cert.in to ererci* tn.t oriidr; .nd o€riods (orrcred by an optio.r to terminate lhe le.re il the Cro{rD l!
reas@abty cen.in not ro cxe-cis€ tnat option. ln .s33rirg ei.thcr the Grcup is re.looably <enain lo ererciie an optio to ertend a lease. o.
not to eter<is 6n oDtion t. leminate a te.!e, it.c.sile,e .ll relcv..t l.cts.nd circumstan(B that <reate an e(ondnrc Inc€.tivc tor the Grdrp
to €rerose the oprioo to ertend the lea$, or not to erer.is€ the optlofi to l€rnin.te tle leaie. The 6roup revis€. the lease t€rm i, there is a

change in t'!e no. ..n.eu.ble period of . leaic.

tte dis.oo.t r.te ir g€oerally 5a5eo on the i4crcoenarl 5orori.g r.te.

d) Rd.nE t.(otnitid
ReEnue rt measu.€t l..s€d o. thc t.ansa<tion pn,:., er,ich i3 the co.rrideratio.r, adjusled tor r€lund ot fee! due to sdmi*ior (an(elhtio.s.
Retrd cf lee! on a.c(unt of admit!,.r .a,r:..11;lionr lr.iilde'?d .i !.ai.ble .firir!€raticn. Ttre Eriable (onsideralion is gimated a:...tract
i^ceotior a.d coos!.iined ,J.iil it i5 hlEhly p.os.ble tha: . rilnili.ant rev€nu€ re.€.5.1 in the .mo(Jna ol cunulalh/e .evenu€ r-,cogihe{ wlii not

o..ur wnei the nsio.iated ui.enainiy *ilh (.c Erisol.- conri.ler6:ion i5 ru5eequ€':tly rerotved. Any ca.cellation ot admhsidrr whlch c(curg

alter the admisiions p.Jc(.! is co(!2tsr.i it corld€r:d .r a vrrlrble (dridcr.tion. a reiund ti.bitlty lr rc<ogDl5€d for €xp€ded canceltatta$
(i.e.. the amount.ot in.ldd.ri ji the tr.n!e<tio. price) ;!ed on tlte pa.t trend ol cancellatio.'i.

Thc Coieolidated Finacial Statoment conrrisG the Fin.ncirl StatcmenB ol th€ Hotding Cmpany and its .ubndirdes for $e year (ndcd lr

^,l!rch 
2024.nd l1 iarch 2023.

Ihe Cmpany .onsolid.t6 ail enUti6 *hi.h .re co.troll€l by (.

Th€ Company e.tablirng cont.ct wheni it h.i pow€r over th€ entitt, ir erpord, or has .bht5, to y.ri.ble relumi f.or itr lnEy€rnst with tie
dtlay and har the ability to aife.t thc €ntity's relum! by uting llr pow€r ov€r th€ cntity.

Subsidian6 are.drolidared l.om the date (ont.ol cornmencci unril th€ (hr. (ontrol.eases The reiult5 of lub.ldiari6 .cquted, orrold, dun.3
the year are <onroliGted fron the erfe.ti/e date ol.cquirition ad up to the elt€.tir€ date of di5po..l, ai.pprc9ri.te.

att inte.cornFny tr.nsaclions, tatan.6 aDd incon€ a.d expenlet !.e eliminlted i. lult oo .ontotld.tlon.

No.r'co(rtrolting interestr in th€ n€t *se'r of cdriotld.led subgldlari6 is idenlificd .nd o.6e.t€d h tie Contolidacd Ealan<e Sheet r€garately

i{o...o.rarolling intererls in the net arreG of conlolidated sub,sldia.ie3 (ontirt' ol:
(a) The.mou.t of eqsity anriburabl€ to non .ontrolling interelt5.t rhe dlte on *iich investment in a rub6ldiarl€s h mad€i .nd
(b) The non.<onrrotling imere$ share of movement' in eqully nnce the date parent eubsidiariG relatio.shlp c.me into exjstence

Ih€ proft and other compr€iensive incdne attributabte to non-.ontrolll.g inter6l5 o, tubnditn6 are snown iQar.tety ln lhe Conroudated

Statefrent of P.orit and Loss and Consolidated St.lement of ChanEer in Equity.

Change! rn the Company'r interertr in subsidiaries tha! do no! rerulr in 6 losr or cont.ol .re ac< nt€d for at equity trantacttont. Tne c.rMnE
amounr of rhe Cmpanyt int€rerrs a.o (he noi..onrrollln! inr€re3:r arc adiurtd to reflect th€ (hanges in their.el.tiv€ lnterEts in the

rubsidiarie3- Any differ€n.c bevecn the amount by whlch the non'controtlins lnterests ar€ adiutted and th. fajr Yalue of lhe conslderatio. paid

or.e.elved ls r€cognlsed dlredy In equity and altributed to owne4 ol the Company.

lfth€ Group los€s control over a sl]bsldiary, itl
(l) Der€cognhe! the asseB (inctudirt Boodwill) and llabitltler of lhesubtidiary
(ii) D€r€.ognhes the carrying amount of any ..n'C3ntrollinB jotererts

(iii) R€(ognise! the fair ydtue of the consiCe.ation reteived
(v) Re.o8nisg.ny surplus o. deficit in profit anC lose

(v) Reck5sifi6 ttc prrefs;lrrre rI:onpor.nts ,,cioltly rc.-3r3...1 lr Cal to prollt and loss or retalncd eamjngr, at ap?ropiate, ,): wotld
b€ reouned if the Groiro had dlre.tiy dlspoled of the rclatcd asrcti or liablilire!.
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J..o lnttitute Ot T6hnolo9y na^.ten.nt And Ro!..rch Lim .'d
Not6 to the aonrolid.ted ri.an.ial Stat.6.ntt for the y..r .nded ,1 r ..ch 202:l
(Amount in INR l.khs, unl6s othsik rrat(rd)

Ihe HoldingCompany haw.eared co.lrol o, t*o ilbeidiariee during $e linanciat year whi(h are.t tollows
(i)Net Empioymot 5eryi(6 Pnvate Llmlled.Ceased to beSubsidi..y with effed frm 2E,,la..h 2024.nd
(ii) iaro tducaiion private -imited Ceased to beSubsidi.ry with eit(t l.om 3 October 2021.

Aparl from said 2 suo5idi.ries, the Holding Comra.y ddlnt nrve a.y othe- {mponent within the consolidation grouo

TheCompanyhas no Sussidiaries ason 31 l'larch 202! Therefore. lhe consolidated balance she€t a5.t l1 llarch 2024.eflects the numbers
considered in standalone balan.e ined oI ihe Compa.y ar on ihai date.

2.! Reen(]e from contr.ctr vith c!3tom.ri

RN.ue ts r<qniied upo tranefs ol conarol of pr(mised reM.6 to .ustome6 in an amdrnt lh.l relle.ti the coisrderatiori v.htch th€ G.oup
€xpects to re(eive in erch.nSe to. thoie $ryk.5.

. Revenue frdr ltudent €nrolmeot reryi.e. ii re.o3.is€d ai the ooint in time when the univeriity or the ifttitute <ofims the admissio ot the
studst ror the retryant courte

The Group has asresed thc univc.titi.r and inlritutg ar thcir (uttomerr. lhe Crdp ente.s inio conrract with cuitose.s wh€.ein they o.ly
provide e.rolmert tetrces li.e. enroltirB rtuden(s into.olrres condtrcted by unive6itier/i$titute) or en.olmst seryic6 alon! 1 15 (Learning
Ma..gement 5y5tem)/Proaram Ailanag€hent seryi.es. Tire (o.sideration for renderi.S tervicel is perce.t.ge bared fe! (i.e- the p€r.dta3e ol
fees lhat universjty or instirLrtecolle.tr lrdn its etudents)

. Ret€nue related to prqram m..aSenent r€rvice co.rt.actt are r(olnired orer the tenu.e ol thecenfkaton c@rt6.

The Group eEluatei whether each rcMce rromird to a cuetomer ir .apabte ol being dittinct, ard is dirtinct in the.onlext of the contra(., if
nol, the promired seM€e it (mbined and accounted .r. snrgle p€rfoman<e oblig.tion. Co.t..(tr wherein Group providg Ooth studerl
e.rolmot reru<e and p ogram managernenl seryi(e, are considerd to be one performance obligatlon ar lhe reryj(g a.e .onridered to be

Rewnue is measured based on th. kansi.tlon p'te, which is the consideratioi, adiuited for refund of le€s due to admirron canceitations.
Refund of fe6 on a(c@nt of admirsiol cancellation is conridered as variable .onsideratioi, The vanable corideratlon ii estimated at conftact
inception and (ortrained until it is nighly probable t\at a significant revenue re\€Bal in the amount or.umulatiw rer€nue recognised witl not
dcur whs thc asqiat€d uncertainty wilh the vanable conrjderaion n s'rbsequently rerolv€d. Any canc€llation of admirrions which o<curs

after the admitlids prcss is compteted ir co.rsidered as a van.bte.@tideratiorl. a relund liability is r*ognBed for exp€ded can(ellations
(i e., the amount nor iF.lud.d in the trant <tlo. price) bared on the part trend of .ancellations.

ReEUe atso €xcludB taxet corlecred trofr custonerr.

Wnh reped to cetr&ts where G.oup provid6 student enrolment rerui(es lor mulli.termhulti yea. (ourres, the Group s pedomance

obligation is <6plet€ when tie rtudent t.k6..misrion in the 1st yeailir: tcm, h.weve, part of lhe consideration be.orne{ conlra.tualty due,
ony wnd the studot cmhences the recond term/se.o.d y€ar.ourse. The Group h.s asies.€d that this .loes .ep.ese.t a rignifi.a.t finarci.g
cmpo.dt as the payment rerms are stru.tured in tiir manner for reaso.t othe. than financio8.

rhe G.oup derive .eve.ue primanly from rcnderiig ol stud€nr enroLments and proSram ha^agemenr 5etur(es

Co.t.a.t liability ( deler.d r.knue" ) ii rftolnized when there a.c bjllinss in exc6t of revehuB

Contrad assets are re--ogis€d wh€n there it erc6t ot .evenue eam€d o,er biltingi o. <{hlra(ts ,nd are cl.t3Jfied as unbilled reve.ue' (onty

act ol jn!6chg is pel'ding)-

2.a Property, plant and cquig;nent
(l) R$oSnitjon.ndmeasrrcm.nt:

Property, plant and equipdent are rtatd at cost, lesr accumulated depreciation and ..cumulated impairment loss, if any. Cort includG
erpenditu.G dire<tly attributable ro the acquhltio. of the asser. When pans ot an item of pro9ery, plant a.d equipment have differenl useful
livs, they are accdrnted fo. ar reDahte items (major componen:s)of proper',y, plant and equipment.

Subrequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitallzed only when it It probable that future economic benefits

aslo<iated wi'$ thesc wiu floe to the G.oop and the.oit of the ii€s c.n be mearured reliably.

The .arr!,ing ,mdrnt of ary cornparcnt ,.cdlnted for a5 a re9..ate ailet ir d€re.ognis€d tNheo dir.ard€d/s.r.pped. All other repaiB and

maintena.ce cost! are charled to gmfit.nd torr in the reponinr perin in wnkh they o(cur.

Any gain o- toss on di!p6.1 of an iteln of prop€rty, plant and equipm€nt rs r€co8ni!€d in Follt o. lo$.

Dep.eciatk n Is p.o/ided, under the lvritten doM value (wov) hrir, pro'rata to tte p€rio.t of ure, bas€d o. us€fut liv6 tp€tifi€d in s.t'€dule ll

to the Companie5 ac!, 2013.

The useltt live. ofth€ groDerty. Dlant and equipment are as follows:
a) Eujtding - 60 yea6
b) Cdnpute6 - Syeals
c) lurniture and fixtures - l0 yeas
d) Office Equipments - 5yea6

l) Ete.troni< tquipments - 10 yearr

l) teasehold jmprovement5 - lo\rer ol lease period or $timated uselul tife
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Jaro lnstitute Of T*hnol€y M.n.gement And R.rEarch Limlted
Notes to th. Consolid.ted Fin.ft'alsrateh.nt! for the ye.r.nd.d l1 M,:rh 2o:!
(Amount ir INR lakhs. unlesr olherwl5e stated)

2.5 Di3contlnu€dopcr.tions

A oii.ontinued ogeralio' it a comgonent of the Group's businet! thet 'eDreeentr a separ.te major li.e ol burness o, geograpl-t.l area ot
oper.tid! or ir a rul- Jiary a(quired qclusiEly with a vi* to r$ale, lhat has ben dBDc€d of. ar be. abandone. or lhat meetr lhe.riteria
to be <larsifled a! held lor s.ie.

The resultr of op€rations dirpoRd during the year ire lncluded in the CosoLldated Stat€ment of Prolit a.d Loes !p ro h-. d.te ol distosal.

Dis.ontinued operations .re ,re5ented in the Co.solidalr{ statement ol ,rolil .no Lo!! ai. sinSle line Mrch (omprises the port-tdx profit or
lori of the dir.ontinu€d operation.

Ihe G.oup le.s€. oort of its olfice facilitig .jnder operatin8 leaie ag.eef,eit! lhat are rene{.bte o. . pe.iodi. b.5i5 .t tie option ol the lessor

a.d th€ tesiee. The lease agreem€nts co.rt i. .ent escalation (lause!.

Il'e G.ouo r5s6res whethe. a cont.a.t coitai.5 a lea!€ at lhe in eglcn ol ihe c@tra(i. A contra<t is, or (oftarns, a leare if th€ cmtra(r
conveys lhe rtht to co.trol t.e use of.n i&ntified asset for a per:c! of time ii exdange tor (dJ*le.ao@. To ast6t whether a ':dt.a.t
.onvet5 the riSht to .onnoi the use ot a. iden(ified ast t, the Group a!!6ret whelher: (l) the €ontr.d inhlve! the use of a. idg'rified .set,
{ji) thcGrouphat the right to obtai. iub(antialtyatl ofthe €(onornic benefiG lroh the use ofthe.tsel lh'oueh lhe pe.iod of lhe teat€, .nd liir)
the 6roup has the.i8ht to dnect the use of theasr€t.

At the date of.qnmen.ere.i ot the le.!e, the Group re(o$ises . ROU arset and a ccrret2ondinS le.se liabilty lo, all lea* ,rsngements
under whiclr it is a l6ree. er(epi for shon.tem leas€s and lo* !"Ue lea!6. ROU .reets repr$enr the Group 3 right ro ure .n lnderlying asset

lor the lease term and tesse liaoilitics reDreent rhe Group's obligario. ro make leare rEymenis ..iti.3 tcn lhe leate Ihe G.oup nas el<ted
not to apply the requirefteitr of l^d 45 116 leasee to sho(-lerm lea!6 ol all ar.€tt that have a le.re lerD ol 12 months o. l6t and le.sd {or

wlth the underiying arset is of Io* \ralu€. nte lea.€ payment5 a55o(ialed wilh !h6e teale5 are re@gnized .s an ex96r on a ttraiEht line basis

The leas€ arangeineors i..lude optionr tc €xt€nd or te,mln.te the lei.e b€tore th€ end ol the ie.se tern! ROU arreti .nd leaie liabiliiie9
in.tudeth6e ootims wne. it it r€aro.ably ce4.in that they wiu be €lercised.

Ihe ROU a!s€t5 ar€ initi.tty re.ognB€d.t (o5t, wtkh co.npritB th€ initi.l .mdr.t of the l(.are liability adiuned to. any le.ie p.yments m.d€.t
or p.br to the .o.rmen.eoeni dare ot tte leare plus any Initi.l di.e.t (osts. They a.e iubieque.tiy measured aI cort 1e!! .ccumulated
depre(iatio. a.d ar.umulaled impaim€nt lotscr.

ROU aii€u are .l€predated from the date ot commenccrnen! of the lcaie on . str.ight.llne b.rlt o\€r lhe thorler ol the l€ate term ,nd the
@ful life of the underly:ns ars€t.

,he leare li.bility is initially measur€d at amorlied .ort .t the present v.lue of lne future leate payments. ine Group u!€s its i.cremental
boroving r.te (.r th€ intergt ..l€ impltit in the lease ir not readity det€.minabl.) b.ied o. the infom.tion .vdilabte at the (hte ol
cohmc.<ement o, the le.ie in <l€Grminlng lhe pr6€it yalue ot lease p.tm€ots. The tea!€ ti.bllity l! $b!€qu€.!ly r€mean 'ed by increathB
the .ar.ying .mount to ,efled i.ter6t on tn€ h.!e tlabllity, redEin8 the ca.ryin8 .moJni to relle.t the leaic payD€nlr mad€. L€as€ ti.biliti6
a.e reme.rured y.!tn a.o.r€ipodlng adruiinen! to the relaled ROU ar3€t ir the G.oup chi,n86 it5 a5i6vne.t as to whether it witl ex€rcir€ an
.)(tenridr or a terminatio.r optioo,

2.7 Fin.ncl.l lnelrumenlt
(i) Fin.icial.steB:

(.) Cl8dflcltl,on

rhe Group .taisitr€r it5 fin.nci.l .sietr in the followln3 m.arurerncllt catqo.t5:

- those !o b€ mearured sublequ€ntly rt f.lr value lhro(l8h protit.M to$, .nd
- t loa€ measur€d at arnonis6d co6t

Tne ctassifk tion d€p€n& ql the entfty: butin63 model for managin8 the financhl .5!€t5 .nd the cdrl..dual cash flon characterliti('.

(b) lnlti.lr..oinltlon

AU tinan j.t asr€ts .re .€.o3.i!€d lnlti.lty 6t f.ir talue plus. in tha (aie of (n.ncbl .5!€t5 not re@rded at fak \..lue through Pro{it or toss,

tEnractbn costi th.t are attrihrtable lo the aaquirillon ol th. finrnchl .sict. Howe\€r trade reteivabt.s tnat do not co.rt.ln a 3i$lfkant
financlng cdrpon€ot are ne.su.€d al lr.ntactjon prlce.

subsequent to inld.l recognltion, financial .5i€ti are mearur€d as d6cribed b€lo{r:

Cah rnd ca3h .{uiv.lcn$:

Th€ Grcupt cash and cash equivatenB (onrin of cash o|t hand and in bankr and demand depodtr wllh banks (three monthso. l6e from the date

of acqutsjtion). For rhe puryoses of rhe cash ftow natemenr, cash and cath equivatentr inctude c.rh on hand. in bankt and demand depoiits with

bank (three ftonrhs or lele fron rhe date of acqulsltion), net of outstandins cath creditt that ..e repayabl€ on &mand and are cmndered pa^

ot the croug r cash man.semenr iyrtem. ln dre balance rhee., cash credlti are presenl.d under bonowin8t wlthin cur.nt tlabllitlet.

A.''
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Jaio hrtitute ofT*hnology rianagemmt and R.redrch Limiled
t{ole! t. rhe (onsoli<lat.d Fin.n.i.l st.t€ne.ie tor rh€ ye.r ehde,ll Mir.. !024
{A"roJ.t :. rNR Lakhs, unlele orhevire *a!eor

: nan.iai.sret5 ca.ried.t anortrred roll

.i.anciarairB at t6ir value throlgh p.olit or lo$ {FVTPL)

l! ) roarrr,e:! of fin.ncial .srett

(e) oer€togiitionotfinan.ial.esets

(i i) Finai<ial li.bilitjer:

(.) lniti.l re.qoition.nd me.su.em.nt

1.8 Enroloyee benelitr

A 'ria..ial asset it su:''qrently Fcaslred at amortteC .6t ii jt rs reid w,tl"i- a tlt.nest .odel ! )re oble.tivc s to hold the asret in order to
cultect .ontlactual cash llows and the conra(tual terms of he linartal assel qiv! rile on speciried dater to (arh llMs that are solety paymenrs

ol Fin.iial and intere3! on the principal aho!.t outrtanding

F'n.nci.l.r3€!. at f.ir vllu€ tnrougi oth€r .ompr€henrlv€ income (FvocD:

A inancjal ass€t ir slbs€qu€.tly hearured .t lat valu€ tirorgh other comprehe.sive in.o6e if it ir held within a businss model wiGe
ob)e.tive ij a.hieled by both colleclirg .o.lractuat carh flows and selling finan.ial .sret! and the contrartlal terns ol the financial asset give
,ite on rpecified (htee to.ath flows th.l arc aolely paymertt of p.i..ipal and i.terert on the p.incip.t amount outsta'rding- Funher, in .ares
whe.e the Group has made a. irr€vocable ele(rifi bared on its businese modei, for its i.!?s! enli which are (lart,fied ar equity instrudentr,
ihe tubreq!€{t .hang6 in fair valueare re.ognlz€d in otne. co.npreneiti\e :n(ohe.

A finaic'eL aset wtth doe5 not net the amoaiz.d <6t or FVTOCI critena is measuren a5 FyIPL Finan.i.l assetr at ryIPL are measlred at lan
velue at th. *d of ea(h rep.ni.g p€nod, wr:h any g.in or l6i6 on re measlremerr re.qnired ,. rtat€hent ot prof( or 16r. -ine gain or lost
on dirposal and interesr inc,r.ne earned on FViPL is re.ogniz€d.

h det--rmi4inS the allowances tor doubtful !r.de receivabtB, the Croup has ued a pra.ti.al expedist by computing the expeted credit loss

aUow.nce for trade receivdble5 baieC on a proviiion matrix. The provision matrix takes into account hittorical credit l6s exp€nence and is

adjus:ed ior forward loohng informatioi. Tne e,e€.td credit loss allowan.e ir based on lhe agehE ol the receivabl€! that are due a.d rits
used in the provirion matrix. Tne appll.ation of rimplit'ed app.oacn doe5 not requte the Group lo lrack changet in credit riek. Rather, it
.ecognrser r'moaiment ross allowance bared on iiletime tCLs.t ea.h reporting dete, nght tom lB initial r<ognition.

'ii1e Groro arresses al ea.h dale ol balaice r'eet whether a fii.nci.l 3sse: ora Ciclp ol fhancial alletr.re lnpaied lnd A5 1t9 requiret
e4€.ted.redit tolset..o be ineatu.€d th.o!8h a inpairment allowaic€.

Ihe am nt of ECL (or.€vers.l) that is requlred to adjurt the ioss allosarce at the reportiiS (hle ie recolniled as a. imp.iment (8ai.)/1o5.

under ' Othc. E)e€nrn " i. the C!.'iolid.ted staiemenl of Protit and Loss.

The GroJp derecognisG a rinan.iai .sset when

- the cdrt.artual rights to the raeh fldrs tron the tinan<i.l asset expire or it transfe6 the tinan.i.l arret and the trander quatifie5 for
dcre.ognition under lNo AS 109.

the Groll! ret.ins cntractuat rightr to rec.iE the.alh flor,/r ol the finan.ia( asset bul .iiumes a €onvacNal oblig.tion to pay the calh flowt
to one or rnore recipients.

when the entiry has neither trantfered a (in.ncial asret nor retained ruSrtaitlalty all rirk and rewad! of owneBhlp of the financiat arset, tne
finan<ht arl€t is derecoBnircd il the G.oup har not retained co.trol of the lina.<i.t .sset- w;1cr€ the Group retainr cdtrot of the financial
.iset, th€ alsei is <onti.ued to b€ r€coEnbed to extent ot cootinuing involvdnent in th€ fin.n.ial atret-

Finandal lhbitities a.€ .bssified as finan.hl liabitities .t aBortid c6t. Atl financial liabilitie are re.oSnized initially at fair Elk, exc€pt in

the c.ie of borowings *nlch are re.og.i.€d at fai. ralue. net of dire<tly attributabte rans..tion .osts. The Group'r fina.cial habilnl6 include

tr.de.nd other payabl6. .ash .redlB, borowings.nd lea5€ ti.bilitie..

(b) S'rb3equent melru.ehst

A;ter initiat recognlrion, tinanclaltiabiutjer are rubiequ€ntly measured at amonised ccst uslng the efre.tive interest method- ao. trade and

other palables, tne ca.rying anounB approijmat€ falrlaluedue to th€ 5l'on-tern mrturity of the.e inrtrum€nts.

Fi.an<lal llabilities are dere€oSnised whe. the corra.tuat obligationr are dis€harged, onceUed or e)Qired. The Group als der€coSniser

finarcizt liabitties when thet tems are modilied .nd the cash flows of tne modified tiablliti6 ire sub$ntially dilfere.t. h which .are new

finaidat liabllities baied o. the modifi.d temr are re<ognized at rair value.

C'oupr tmployee benefir obllsrrlons ifttude rhon.term obtigatioi5, cmpenratcd abs€n.6 and Port-cmptoyment obugarbos wh!.h i.clud€s
gratulty ptan and co.tributio.s to provldent ,rmd.

6+

& S

Ad Mumbd

Fo. allotiter fina.cial.$€ls, e&€.teo credit losser.re m.asured at an ahdnt eqel to the l2.month expected.r.{it lGs on a foMard
laoking o:jis. However, if the .recit nrk a. rhe li.ancial nrrtrun$tt has i..r,-':sed significantly rin.e the 'nt'al re(ognition, then the Grolp
rcatureslifetime fcl-.
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Jaro r.rtituie Of Technoioty ,&nrE€ment Ahd qes€.rch Lihlted
Noter !o lhe aonro lid.t€d lin.n.ral St.rerenls .or the y€ar ended l 1 l .r.t 202.
(Anounr l. NR laxh5. unr;ss orheaise tlateol

(a) Sho.t-termobltB.tron.
LiacilitiFi lor vr3g6 and ralarlB, in(ludinq non.mon€tary benefits that are erDected to be rettied eliolly within J2 oontis .lter lhe €nd of the
period i. whi.h the .y_'3yees iende, the rel.t€d rervi(e wntn .re recognied in respe<t ot cnpl. 'e€s tervcet ut to the end ol the reFni.g
.eiioC and arc 6ea rcd at the amdJnt' exr*te{ to be pald whe. the ltabiuties are seRled. Tr'e lEbitlties .re preiented .! .urrent mploye
o€.efi obljEationr in the balao(e ihet

(b) comP€.!.t.d!b3a1c..
The Croup p.wids fd the 6.aehme.t ol le.ve or tea\€ with pay subjftt to certain rule!. Ihe employes are entitled to ac.umulate teaE
tubjftt to cen.in limil!, tor tutlre enc.rhoent. The li.bility A provided b.ted o. nLrmber ol days ofunutilized leave at ea.h brlance shet date
based on an estimried ba5B for the period end and on.n lndepeM€nt a(luari.l valuation under Projerted Unit Credir merhod ar rhe year end.

(c) Oefioed b$.ft plan

Emoloyeer are entitled to 6 d€fined benefrt retirem€nt plan (i.e. Gralulty) (overing eliglble mploy€e5 ol rhe Croop. rhe pl.n provides for a
lumo.sum oayment to eli8ibl€ €rnptoyee9. at r€tt€ment. d€ath. and incroa.itrtion oron terminallon of€mrloyme.t. of...mount baled o. the
.etpedive employeE slary anC lenore ot $ployoent. V6tin8 o..L,rr uOon ca@tetlo. ol tive yea6 of reMce

Grrtujty liabfliti6 are (!€tffnin€d by aduariat vatoation, perfonned by an indep€ndent 6ctuary, at each reporting dat€ U3ing ihe proleded unii
cr€dit r.ethod. Tne Group recog.ls€3 th€ obtigatbn of. defin€d b€ncrit ptan in its b.lan.e rheet.r a liability h .(cord.nc€ wlth hd aS 19'
''inplor?e Eenefits. " The dEcount rate is bared on th€ golE nm€nt s€(urties yi€ld. Re.measur.nefits, cornoritirg a(ruari.l gairu and lo.r€i a.€
recoided in cther collprchensive incorne in tne period in which they adte. Re.oeasureoente re@Bnis€d i. other .o.rpreienrive i..o.ne is

relle.led imnedjateiy in r:taincd eamines and ir not r€.lxsifi€d to D.olit or to.r. Pait lewi.e c6t ir recosnB€d in (c.solidat€d stat€nent o(
Drolil and r-()ss in ti e p€nod of plan ahendfient

Cost5 (mprising servi.e cost (i.cluding (urent and palt rervlce co5t and qains and losset @ cunailm€ntt and rettlement!)and ner int€r6l
exDse or in.on€ is re.osiieed i. p.olii or lori

(d) oefin.., .ontrjbutlon oLns
The rlefined cdrtrDutlon pl.n ir a posr€rployment b€neflt plan under whi.h tie Group .$tribut€r lired c6t.ibutio. to a Government
ACminittered Fund aid will haw fio obli!.tion to p.y funher .ontribution. The Group'r delined cot.ibutio. Olan co.nprise5 of Provi{re.t Fund

aid L.bff welfare Fund. The GroJCr contribution to defin€d .dltribution Ola.i .re recolnir€d l. lhe St terrent ot Profit .nd lo.s ln th€
p-.riod in wfith the employ--€ rende.' the rel.ted eeMce,

2.9 sh.re'b.ted p.ym.n!t

2.10 Frotirioni and cxpsr3

l..ooe tax compri!6 ofcu..ent tax and dele.red tax.

Deferr€d tax ir re.ognised o remporary differe.ces berween thc ca.ryin8 amount! ol asseG and liabllltie! in the Consolidated Balan<o Sheet and

th.t t:x bas.s. Dcfeaed rax l:ablutics a,e re(oSnised lor alltaBble temporary differences. oelerred taxalret!.re rc.rgniscd for atl d€dudible

temprrary differences and incwed tax lorses to the extenr rhat ir is probable that taxable protits wilt bc alallabl€ ag.intt whl.h lh6e
deductible tempor.y differences ca'l be utiliscd. 5u€h deferred ta)( assets and llabllltler ar€ not recoSnited if the temporary difference arises

from rhe jnitial recqnttion of 8@cwilt or initial recoSnlrbn of as3ars and liabilitle5(orher than in s buiinets .ombination) in a tr.niaction that

Eolitr.tetrlec sh.rc'b6kd -dyms:t io 6nployes are mearured at the f.ir value ol the equily initrumenli al the 8r.nl date. Ihe fair valu€
detemined .t the 5r.r. dnte of the equityjenled thare.bared p6ymenB B exp€nred on a rvaiEht.line basir o\er $e ve'tinS Fe.iod, baFd on
the Groups 6tlmate of.quity in:truc'€ntr that will eventualty !€9t. wilh a (orr6ponjinS increale i. equily. al the ad of ca.h reporting

Fnod, t1e Gr@, reir6 i's 6iim6te of the nolrb€r of equity ifittrunents erpe(ted to r€st. The impa.t ol the revAio.' of the ortinal
estjmat€r, if any. is re(ognired in prolit or lols skh thit th€ cumulath/€ €xpenre refle.l3 the reai€d 6timate. with . (o.re:ponding adiuitrEnt
to the equity-iettled enployee bficfits res€rve.

A Frqirion is re(oini!€d when tne Group har . prcent l€i.l or coo(ru<tltE obllgalbn .t 6 rerult of n patt evtnt, 6:r, it is ptobabk U.t t.
outflow of €<nomic benefit! wlll be requlred to rettl€ the obti8ation .nd a retlabte eitimat€ c.n b€ made ol lhe amdrnt of the obligation.

Provisions (excluding retirenent benefits and cdnp$sated .b6.ices) are determind at p.es€nt yrtue baied on b€it estimate requted lo settle
the obli3atioo at lhe b.lance rheet d.le. Thes€ are .eview€d at each balance sheet dat. rdiustci to r€flc.! the.urrent b€.t 6tim.te..

ContinS€nt ti.bitltiB .re di!.toled wtren $ere t a posrble obllSatbn annng from past evenlt, tne exkl€nce ol whkh witt b€ cor'finned only by

the occure.(e or non-occurren(e of ore or more uncelraln futur€ eventr not wiolly within tn..qttrol o( lhe Grouo or . pr6ent obligatb. that
.ri5es from past etenB wnere it ir eith€r not prob.ble th.t .n outflo!. of reroorces v.itl be requned to rettle the obll8.tbn or a .€Li.ble
6Limate of the arndrnt cannot be made.

Current income tax lor the current and prior periodr are measur€d at the amount expe€ted to b€ recovered lrom or p.id io the taEtion
.uthorili6 blsed o. rhc teble proljt tor lhe perlod- The iax rat6 and tar l.wt uted to cffipute the ,moiJnt are those that are enact€d or

lubsranriauy enactcd by the rcponin3 dare and .pplicsble for the period. Thc Group offset! current tai arsets and curent tax tlabiuties where

it has a teg.lty enforceable nshr to ret ofl rhe recog.ized amoonB and \r,here ir intends either to lettle on a net basis, or to realise th€ asset

a.d li.5ility limultaneorrdy.

s
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J..o rn.litutE ot T6hnorotv a...Frent A^c Rcrear.h Limirec
notee to tne (o.ioli(.iea Fin.r.i.l tt.tem.^ts .o. r.e yea. ended:t1 ,tr.h 2024
tamou.t i. rNR iak5r, unl65 orh(tuise 5t):edl

ftc 6muo 'e(oinis€s def€.red tar ltabilitie. for ail tarable tempo.ary iifferen.s ex.ept ti6e asrdiated with the i.veltmenl. i. tuilidia.i6
where tn€ rimins of ll:e reErr.l o{ lne t.nco,..y criferen.e ce be coltrolled a4d t is probabh tnat the tenporary diffe.e..e wlll no! .eve.r
in rhe lo.eseeabie fl,rur'

Defered rar lirbiliti6.nd a3rotr.r. ne:rrJ-r{.t the tar rates that are e4€.1€d ro.ppty in the p€,iod in $hi.h the I'ability i5 s,-trleC or :he
asiet r€alised, b.!ed on tar rat6 (a.d tax l.wr) rnal have becn eracted or lubstantiEty seted by the eid of the .erort'.g period.

Th€ .arryrng aooir.t of deferred nrr6e ta atreit E revi*ed at each repo.ting dale and redKed to the ertei! ihal it B no looger D.ob.btc
th.r sufii(ienr brable profit wJllbe aval!.ble to ailm allor pan of the deter.ed income lax a5!ea (o be ltitired.

3 St.nJ.rdr notlticd but not.tf.(tiv.
,ninretry .r Corpofaae Att.i6 t"ra ") notili6 npw standard or amfrdhents to th€ existing standards under Companies lLndi.n Accounting
Standard3l Rules as Btued trsm lrne b rihe turing ihe year, ,,{(.A am€nded the toltowing l.dian A..ounting 5tandards sider Conp..i6 {ln6ian
A(ounti.g Standard!) Arien(ment Ru:es, 2C21, aprli.abl€ lrom 01 April z02l:

(.) Dircloiu.e olAccountlng Poll(le5 - Aoendnehtt to lnd 45 i

(b) lk.nt.c.o!ntid8 p.onouncemerts isr!ed but not y€t effntive

The anendoeii! a'h to help antitles Droide a.counting a.licy dixtarurer that .re aore u*rul by repla.ing tie requiremeni lor ertitic. lo
di..losi thei 'rignrn<atrt accar.ti.8 polic[" v/ith a requiremFt to dirctore liei. 'matena(' accolntnrg policier and adding guidapce on how

e.tlties ipply th€ (oncept or nateriality in m.king de(itimsaboul ac.dhlirg pdicy dis.losures.

The ame.d'nentr have had a. impaci on the dir(iosurer of a(cdnrlne polici6. but not on th€ measurerent, recognitbn or pr6entation cl any
itemi in th€ financial statementl

Ihe llnitiry of Corpor.te Atfalrr ("r,cA") rolili€5 new rtandard or amendnent to exilting ltandard under Com2anies (lndlrn A.counliiE
Sta.dard) Ruler as isruod lron lime to tim.. )uriag the year ended 11 r,r€rch 2024, I'ICA has not notified any oew ttanda.d or ame.dme., to
existing slandards .ppilcabl€ to the Group.

&
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management And Research Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financiai Statements for the year ended 3'l March 2024
(Ar.ount in INR takhs, untess otherwire stated)

5 Right of Use Assets

Particula15

ro55

Balance as at 1 April2022
Additions during the year
Dis ls/AC ugtments duri the

Additions during the year
Addition on account of sate ol Net Employment Services Private Limrted (Refer note 31 b)

ts/Ad ustments duri the ar

A.cumulateJ Depreciation

Bolance as at I Apnl TOZZ

D.-pre.iation cha:ge fcr the year
Di als/Ad ustments for the

Nsr Blcck
Selaice as..t 31 Ltarch 2023
Ealance as at 3'1 l arch 2024

Business premises

50t.63
478.41

980.74
553.36
22.70

( 175.93)

380.37

't ,891 .75
719.24

Balance as at 3l Atarch 2023 2,610.99 2,6't0.99
584.38
48.42

(334.23)

584.38
48.42

(334.23)

Balance as at l'l March 2024 2,909.56 2,909.56

501.83
478.41

980.24Balance as at 31 ,Ylarch ?023
553.t6
72.70

( 175.93)

Depreciation charge for the year
Addition on account of sale of Net Employment Services Private Limited (Refer note 31 b)
Disposals/Adiustments for the year
Baliilce as at 31 March 2024 1 ,380.37

1,530.75
1,529.19 1,529.19

:
n

A,r

ASS

trtumbal

aa

\l ,e

s

Total

1,891.75
719.24

1,630.75



Jaro lnrtitute Of TechFology Ma.lagement And {esearch Limited
licte. to the Consotidated Financial statementi for the yea!'€nded 31 r,^.rrch 2024
lAmount in INR lakhs, u;1Less otherwise stat€i)

Gross Biock

Ealahce as at 1 April2022
Additions for the year

6 Other intan8ible assets and Boodwill

Particulars Goodwill Software Tot3L

27 6.15 24.55 300.70

27 t,.15 24.55 300.70
Additio.s for the year
Deduction o'r sate of Net Employment Services Private Lirlited (Refer no:e 31

b&ltb)
oisposats/Adjustments for the year

\276.151 (1.60) 1277.75)

Balance as at 31 Ltarch 2024

Ac.umulated Amor:;sation

Balance as at I April 2022
Amortisatior charge foi the year
Disoosats/Ad ustments for the

22.95 77.95

23.26
0.14

23.26
0.14

Balance as at 31 litarch 2023
Anortisation charge for the year
Deduction on sate of Net Emptoyment SeMces Private Limited (Refer note l,
b&llb)
D Ad U5 tment5 fo I the

Bai.'.rcs 6e.1 31 l,{arch 2024

23.40 23.40
0.10

(0.ss )

0. 10

(0. ss)

22.95 22.95

1.15 777,30

Dis osats/Ad ustments for the
Salan.e as at 31 M.arch 2023

i{et block

Sari dce as at 31 ilarch 2023 27 6.15
Bri ,lr.e as 6t 31 l,{arch 2024

Noi:1:
(i) fhc Group disposed its subsidlaries i.e. Net Employment Services Private Limited and Jaro Education Private Limited
C!,i"s the year endd l1 March 2024. On disposat, batance tying in eross biock and a.cumutated depreciation has been

rever5"d during the year ended 3'l Match 2071.

(2) rioodrviLt amou[ting to INR 276.15 takhs arised on account of a(,.tu:eition of Net Emptoyment Services Private Limited.
ourilg the )€a. ended on 3'l March 202], the reaoverabLe amouil'. of lo(iwill is more than its carrying vatue, thus there rs

no impairment of Gocdwitl,

: rn
o,

ASS
Mumbai
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..ro l.ftLte cfl<h.ology tlan.!.m..r aid Resar.h Limrted
1o1.. to rl.€ Coislidlt.d Fi..nci.i st.teoe^lr foi the ye.r .nd.d ,1 r dch 2O2a

tAtuuit in INP lokh, unl6s oahqvi* stot.d)

7 Lo..; (Non-Cu.r$t)

lu^<;;?:?fiiefid;;d

a Oth tdl.Cu.r..t Fihanci.l Aiielr

1,la.81

7/9.16

- selrity de?61t3 (Referr$le l8)

9 Nf{urrcnt Tar A5:.tr (Net}

&at I A,.r
31 Alrch 2O2a i 31 

^Lrch 
2023

1,620.95

t7178

112 5-,

c2817

advam: irom:a inctuding tax ddktd at surce, net ol prdino td td (r1 ,'Lr<h 202r: INR r.775.17 & 31tila.ch 2021

I

r,512 71

1,512 71I

i85 56
1,119.a7

{152.1r )

Une.,red a.orsic 1.ed 6ed
Un<!-e. Cori.r._ed D*btlul

L6t: lmd':m..r .1lrv ar.e

a3ein3 s.h.du(. )r T,ade.e.eiv.bln

tlndisrr.C raa. r..av,S:6 - 117.ti

lundMut i trid. rc-dlrbtd -

Oi9ut d r:rd..fr?6bl*-

o5put j tnd. G.lv.bl6 -
rtrich hrve ,gniri..nt i.crea5e

oipuled t6de rseivabl*

ditpri;d tr.d. ft eiv.bls

Undi9ut.d tr.d. rft.ivabl.s -

uidiput.d tr.d. r<eiEbl6 -
Btlict t ve,Siifiont ikrcarc

Undiput.d tr.dc rE.ivdblB -

616.54

llc.85

tDispuled tr.de rRciv.bl6.

lDriputei tr?d. rcc1v.bl6 -

h.v: itrnio.t incre.r.

Dipvted t.de rfteivabls

L6r' lneirmdt.llowance

OuBtardhe rror lh€ d u€ d.te ol p.ymenr

(135.561

1.169.10

185.6618t,22

1,21

0.66 1.76

4i2.65 922 88 187 lt.l6

Out't.ndl.g lromthe due d.l. ol p.yhent

118.71

71.76

11.41

13s7.11

,47.76

t52.ti

159.47 24.8 r 741.16

Mumbai
,.

*
s-e

hav. iignifn c rt imieae

0/

152.11



J..o lnttilute Oi T<h.ol5y rl.n.gem! A.d Rser.h LrFitcd
xot6 to the(o.elidx.d f i.d.i.l St.tmotl rd rhe yBr 6d.d l1 na.6 2024

lr@rr ,n ,xF lrrhs. unlesr oth*** st.ted)

1l Cash.nd C.!h Equrv.l.nts

12 Aani balan.es o|i.r then c.sh.rd..:h equiv.lsnts

' Fixed deporili.rc lin mirked agaimt corpo6le c.adit (ard and t@n bcmEd i.fr b.nk5,

2.16

5.19

2 i42 0r

1].8r

1a Oths ;in.no.t Arrett

unseored, (*ids.d sood

lnteBr ..<^ e. d fixed d€Dqits

U.s-ured, cqiids€d !@d

Selhty 0cpo5it5 (Reier note l8)
other .<eiva5l6 (Fetq.o:e le)

t7.4
7.27

,9.i1

,OC 200
112-581 r3

151 a7 t25 5l

t5 Other Clrrent At!.tt

(a) The Grcu2 h.s !o fe,r ircuri.d .s .! 31 
^}ardl 

:02,1, 5hare itse exp6* or INR 196.52 lakls in connettion with prao5.d pirb i. orfer of €quity r'r.16, in
accordance vlth t e Cdpanr6 Act 20ll (the Act). The iclliq sn.reholde6 sh.U relmbue the share iee expens. Accodingly, the Grcup will fuuy retder
the e|P6*! in.urred qfth the iss 6 r.hpieai$ ot lniti.l Public Orfer {lPo).
(b) clat tien .5 M fin.rciil 6isct ar tlE co.ltEctGl rigit to .orsidr.tio.i ir depe,Beit d .mple'im ol .6na.t!al rnile'tooa.

0f7

r,841 ..3

6C1 29fo. more than I rMlnr bu! l6s tha. 12 lMttu'

l1 L.<h 2O2l

'la.ll19t.98

11,670,76
2or.9l

313.E0
109,10

6.02t.11
86.51

1:,81C 50 6,517 72.

Mumbai
z

N



J..o lnrtltut. ol-rxhnolo0 lrs{.m.t And R.r&.h timlt.d
ot.r b6. cmrolld.t rl Fln.nri.l st t tunt. rd tl. y..r .nd.d ,l r.r.h 202a

(Alent r.lNi [tn3, onl.soth€Mie tt.r.d)

44!edrd$41!l!i
a,00,00,000 M rr.rch 2021: 2,50,00,000r E.uiW 5trr6 or INR l0^..<h 2,500.00
Tot.l Authorlrcd rh.r. (.pltll 2,too oo

ltiu.d. tuht.rlb.d.nd lullv r.ld uo..plt.l
1,50,4r,32,r llr ,'ilr.h l02l : r,50,,o.950r tqulty sh.16 ol lNR r0/.€..tr r,504 r0
Tot.l lrru.d, tub.crtb.i.^d fully r.id u! crpit l

outtt ndlna.t th. b.li.nini ol th. y.rr
Add: lrsd durlq tne y..r

1,50,1(,,r50
t74

l,toa 10

0.01
r,50,,r0Iro 1,504 l0

Olt3t.n<nm .! th. .nd ol th. Y... r,50,.i,r2. i,501 1]

Duhng th. y..r dd.d ll M.r.h 202a. tlE .lfut ol pcr ,h.. divid.nd reoa.lz.d .r.hrtributiot to .quity rh:rdoldeE w.s Nil lpr.vio6 y.a.: {ii)

ln tlE c6t ot lqold.tid ol th! lt ldiq CmD.iy, 6. hol<Lr or .+ratr trrc wlll b. 6t .d to Rdw rtfuinD! r*B oi rh. loldiq Cdrlp..r, .ltd
dinhb{,th ol .ll p..L6ti.l .lrMi3. Tn din.ibrnin will b. h p@lortjo to ti. nui6.r ol .q'nty $.rd h.ld by rn .h.r.nok .B

{l) iitlrB, ,r.t rd.d &d r.irkdds.trah.d to tn .qsity th.r.r:
Th" Holdiq Cdlp.,ry hrs mly m. cLs ot .qrty $116 hrrq p.r v.lc o, lr{i 10 F ,h.rc. E..h !t ..nord.r it 6titLd to N vol. p.r th.r. h.rd. Th!
fiolding Corip.ny dEU.s $d p.t! divirhnd, in hd.n r+c. rh. dnd.nd proped by th. Bdrd ol DiretoB i! l6JRr to tn. .pprd.l ol th.
.h.chold.6 h th. 6tdn8 Amql Ga.d r,{.ctln8.

srlbeqmt to ,1 ,r.rch loza, rn. ld.d ol oir<tor ol Eoldi4 aodp.!ry h.t p.sd . r@luti6 o ! ,rhy l02a ..d rpprd.d 6.ilq ol bo6.+xty $.r.t
in tt Gtlni whlch @ turthd.pFd.d by $.r.hold( ln th. Ntiry h.ld 6 24 M.y 2021 ih tn. ntio ol I .quity ih.r6 ol l i l0..ch fdoery I {sity
3h.rc ol l i 10 Gr.h by aDitrlh.tlon or *t m rt ndtni to th. crcdlt ot fr* r.le6 ol tl. Holdint CoiP.ny,

Polunr to tlE prdi3i6 ol <t on 121 oa tn aoip.ni6 A.t, 2Ol l, prdiidr ot th. lftom Tu A.t, ! 961 8 *ll a oth.r .ppliobL prevind!, 8o..d or
Dict* p.s<, r lFrvdo .r rts Gtitrt h.ld 6 3 ,$.y 202{ .pDdin! p.yrBt or itrt.rin divi,ad or lxr I p.r .qulty .hr. ,or 3h.Eh.t<lcrs $ ol th.
kdd d.t i... 2lray 2014.

Eqlity ,lu.r of liR lO.&h lully p.id up

!,a1,!1.51a

tD) Th. Hotdit Cmp.iy hat .ot ised .ny b 6 ,Er.r or ifi6 lor c63id.hti6 oth.r th.n ..rh dunq th. Frlod ol liv. y.rE imh.ni.kly pGldlnt th.

- As pq co.d! ot tE Ho&nni Coirpsy, irEtirt.i ltt r.ttit . ol $.r.hold.6/ mnb.E.nd othd &<LEl,s Edv.n ld t$*ElrLB Et.r.n.l
6.n ticl.l int...n, tn .bov. !n r.hotdini rcc6t! boti l.t.l.nd ba.fi6l.t * Bhipr of 3h.r6.
- Tn Hol.llq Cmprry htd prcvloEly hud c.rt in rh.r6 to it3 qrlPLta prxunt to. CEa.b.er, p.yr6t pl,i. Dqriry FY 1021-22 .nd FY 2022-13, Dr.
gnj.y 5rlu*h. (trdtut n hiti.t d tn. Fx.h& ot 7,!5O.nd It.aoo lBG r.9..ttEly l.m ldt ol iB.nlPL'yc/.r-.nlPloy.6ls r oddodo t rt
mr dirh..!.d urrcqh . b-i trnr,s dfit rn t prl.d. tld.c, tnrdd d 6.. rh.G in dqDt rl.tts.d lffi lM thd 6rl9lora3/cx6gloF.t to
0r. 5.nJ., S.tu*IE mt .ot cftt.d.d l+to !r n .ch 2024. Tn tm.td dl th.r. llrc €r conpl.t.d by AqGt zgra, TIE MnD.r of tuc h.ld by 0r.
L.iryS.t6tn.rto!1lArdrzo2l.,il!erdrl02ah8b6'+rbtdtor.lt<ttn.<tBlnud.rdlitrr6h.ld6yhhhrlart.illildlomdtno-

(F) $an r.fr.d t, irk !d-.?ald

Fd dctlltr o, rhrB ,ery.d ld l'u udcr t E sh.r. b.-d p.ymt phn ot tlE tloLlinl Cotrp.ny, Rcr.r not /16

IE) 0.t ih of th.... h.ld Prm.rxr:r rh..na.l th.

r,.l],t1.tlr

sh.E optioN dti.ndih, |e .
10,2t9.11

Uuhbai

+

v

,5.2!i

-"T:.,*..'l

---i-El
9,52t.02

557.t?
5,t4t.9'

]71,01



J.ro lE$!t Of Tahmloty n rtm.nt And id.rch Lihn.d
*ot6 ro itr (o@lid.ad FlBBi.l 5t t.n. 3 ro. rh. y..r.nd.d al [.r.h 2oe.

lA) s..u.tEr Pr.hi!6

nc. .t t}l. .nd 6f tlc yar

lol i.rw .rn pupe oa Odry l.*ffi
i.<uttbl lt r h
5.(uii6 Foim hr. ben.'e,tal :orFtEnt to is* ol !h.r5 .t Fennn- Thc rffi ..n be utilied m ...dd.Ee wth rh. n.ovison! or rhe

Cmp$r6A.r 201t.

sl.E !.ed P.ymnr x4*
Th. th.r. b.f,d p.yftni r*re is ued !o rEognic the gr.dt dde i.tr vale ol optios is*d to mplor!6 sd.. EmplorE 9t*k OptEn Pi.n

sh.re baEd Nvnenr exEn*
Lesr:Ir.ilfe edroqLrtri6

t.,lumbilt

!?+ t

9

Rd.imd ..min!t (mrris of prid ya6 .id crrert ,e.r r odstflb*.d erni.$/(r.m'r!t.d losr .rrd ur.

N/



J.ro l.tr,ttut. Ol Tkhrolo4y r an.F.r.nt And R€rsrcn Linited
Not6 to th. (drolld.ted Fin...ial 3r.l.6str to- rhe yer ended ll [il.r.h 20ila
(amtunr ln INR l.khs, unies othe.w* li.tedi

{A) Non<u.r€nt Borrowin8

(ii) Eh€rSfrcy cred,T Line

55 50

(i) C.rh c.edit trom h..k

. Corr$t ruturiti6 ol l6s rem borowinrs tRef 6 note 15. r )

(ili) Em.r3.n.y Credit Line

' Currejrt rutu.itiE o, L6g tem osrowingr (Refd note 18.1)
(ii) From Rel.ted P.rti6

2,a11.8t

15.41

93.19
I r 1.5,1

60.00

l8.l Curral: o.turiti6 ol iog t6m bo.,din3r

15.<1 11.61

16.26

60.@

Tot.! ota<u.ed T6m Lo..i (A)

(6) F.on t.let.d Partlet
779.70

85..18

Toralol u.r..ur€d Tdm L6anr lat 456 A7

15 4l

€) EmaS6cy cr.dit Lin€

b sru.d tmeft.ncy q€dit lin. (EcL)

turlng th€ y.ar.nded ll r,Lrct ?gll, $e CdrD y had t ka wo.tl t Capitat Tem L@n u.dd ECL lacitity fM B..* ol lLh.ashtra of INR 8r.@ l.b: .id L ecured
f.vin8 cdLt6l snty ar l,{/!. ilet td@ti Entr€pr6l€lr np 6 Le.o..5hip timit d (.ntwtile rt p-dom ubridi.ry) L.nd ad BuitdnB Ctst.n .t X.rla villate,
T.l*! M.61, Pm dislrid rnd .ddiri6al drarle ol ,&. gnJay S.lu.r.h.'3 Vilas Cfttre ofik .

. UrE€c('e!, lem t@E i.rlud6 loi lm 8.nb a.d NBICt t keri for the purpe ol wdting C.plt t m@gffit.

l8.l Curr€rt !orrowi.8,
.. c.!h d.dit (s.cur!d)

Ih. CdllPany had avalt€d ca$ .redlt L.ility from B.nk ot l ihar.rhtra amun:in3 to INR 2,500 l.l(hs. Thit l6n it le.ured .grinsr th€ L.nd .nd Edlding o, M/r. Net- idoc.:.ic1 tfePren€.El p & Lea.jernip Linil€d {enls,lile itp'dJwr, sJbt:aia.y) lnd .dditiml .h.,!€ of rn . s.nj.y s.lunhe! vikar C€ntr. otfk€. Ihc Holdins
Cqip..y h.d takd .ash c.edlt (.clllay tor tie Frrp@ ol Working C.piLl Man.3eftnt, Th. tloldi B Cmp&y h.d ued sch borwings fd the Flrpore r|r.ntid.d in
lh. tom.lrffit,

Y

155.19
16 t6

55 50

t5 50

2,42r.72 7,57) 95

1l't 39

85.,18

2,129.77 1,016.82
2,444.77

f.fr.rrrba,

*

tE.2 Xd<urr6t ld.owiBr
. lcur.d l..h Ldns

DJdrB rh. y@r 6ded ,l I'larch 2!21, tne Cdm.rry had t ken c.. l@n tm &lai M.hhdr! B.nt naving baLn e ol INR a0.@ Lk r3 is seclrrcd .B.tnst Clr Frch.ied.
Ihe ..id c.r it reginded in tne n.@ ol tne A,!6. Raniit! RanB (i.y l aMgedal Per o) . hs!r.. .n alrmt en3t th.t if the dir*tor l6v6 the or!.niz.!id, tlE
net orrrry al@ ot the vehictc will b. .djL,5ted ag.lnit tlre tutl 6 fi.al enidrot ol th. dlrEtor,



Ja.- lnsitLL Of Ten.obfl l,ln4nent And Rer(h limited
nc r€i !o rhe Cdsrlir.t.d ain..<i.l 5t tdst3 ts th. t@r 6d€d l i &.tcr 202,.

lA:olnr in INR lalh3, unle$ otheMi*.taled )

&As

lr.,

Aditya Birla FiEn.. I td

ful!..td lndia cr€rlir co. Ltd.

flDrC Bank Ltd

N€lgrowth arcdlt.\t. ttd

RB! a.nr t@ 2-UI*oGd

scB 8.ni, Ln n'Uns.ercd.52a6,aal

SCB 8..\ !@-!ffirr€d 5199615{

s.nFn (iry Urio. FiDce

Unitr tnB.l iln;c 3. k

s.<urcd - GECL

l3 05

16 A1

]n1

2r 90

28 10

t.9l

41.4

11.04

84.5t

36.60

6r_@

21.@

75.4

ao.4
(5.CC)

1l1.84

8i.16

la'.c Bx'x r6n.c.r L6n 1lr3os71l

l*"ro*, 
,.,*o*o r^,* ..

avare fiNn<ial 5.di.$ ttd
AXtS.Tl-.t2Cl6@{551571 l.ECtcs-1
Firn S:@ning Sotutim Plt ttd
Bank of ,Lh.r.th[a - Ectcs.

seureJ . GICL

95nk Ol r'bh.hshtra . Tem t@'
6C16a716750

701.11

2,4fO.01

I

16 equar mon.Jlly insratmor ol lNi r./6ldxh! 6.h
frm Nwmb.r 5.2C22 to (k!ota. t 2025

2a .qu.l llMtNy i6rall6t o' INR ).42 lakhi eactr

lrm o.robe. 20, 2022 ro septmle.20. 202.1.

6 equal mntnly iBtalment or r,,l:1.51larht ea.h,
6 equ.lnurlhly iBtalost ol lNq 2 55 !.khe.acn
.nd 6 eqlal mEthly iBt.lrent oa INR 2.15 latls
each lm |ldember 2.2022 to Apnl2, 2024,

1a.qu{ Nnltly instalrunt c' rNr 2.2,1lrkhs each
rrm N@mber ?, 2022 ro Api' 2, 102.

16 equ.t monthly 
'nrt 

lmentoJ:NR I 75 lakht each
rrm NddiEr 5,20221o O<lcber 5,2425

36 cq6l m.t rly i6l,{.E: ol lltR I !o lal55 ea.h
lrm Nwnber 6,2022 to O<tober 6,2025.

,6.qual mnthly iEt tmst ol lriR I 29 l.klE ea.h
frdr aprit l. ?020 to June l. 2021.

16 .q!at monthly in3Llmri .' ltlR I !.khi .r.h
fr@ oe.mber l,2022lo Nw l, 2025

i6.00i

15.@

t6.5{r.

t5.50.

t5.@x

t9.@,,

t6.50,!,

16.50'{

ta.tai

9.25X

9.25t

t6.G

19.00s.

t9.21%

a.5{,s

l.Elt

9.!t9s

16 eqlal Mthly r6tall6t ot lllP I 7, iakh, ca.hl
f:m t{ovmber l, 2Ol2 to C.:.rx, I 2c25 

I
2t eou.l mntnlv iEt lne.t or INF L72l.\htechJ
rrd xdm5d l. ?o2z lo O.rober l, 202{ 

I
l8 equal @thly i6t l,Ftof lNR..9T laklRdchl

equal morthly inrtalm.n! ol INR l.l1 lakhs each

equal Mthly i.lsitn6: ol lNRr.14llkht each,

equal monthly hstalment of lliR l.8t.nd 6 eiuat

€qual Mrhly iNralmstot rNi 1.9,1lakhs e.ch

16.qr.l mrthly iEt lnat of INR 1.26 L.khr ea.h

t7 equat m..thly inr'rlment ol lnR 5 lakhs er.h
r i65ll6t cf rNR 5 rakh 116 April lc. 2o2l

I equal Mrhly iBtalme.t of INA 2.00l.lh3 each

Mtlly tr't lr6t ol lxR 1.6,1 t kh t
5.plcmb6 10, 2020 to s(ptcrnber lO, 2021.

18 50:

8.95u

2,111.81

7.50

r 3.50,"

rim tldmh€r 5.2O2i to Oct 5. Z02r
,m equal monthly instalment or l R ,rc

trm Apit 10,202I toJul 10, 2024

1o Jhe 2@0 to 10 Auq6t 2020.nd 17

i6l.li6r of INR 1.6i lri\tts 6i,
iim N@embe.4, 2022 toApriL4,202,l

rd February 5, 2022 to ianuary i, 2028

Ja.ua,y 1, 2023lo Deesber 1, 2025.

10 June 2020 to !0 au36t 202C.nd l7 equ.l

10,2020 to 5eptember 10, I02l

Mar5, ?020to Ser 5. 2021

eq@t rs'-hly i6tal.6!oi INR l.52lakht
Ndmber 5,20?2 to o.t 5, 2025

I year as and wtEn t6. disblrerie.t is d*

36 .quat Mrhly iBtal.Ht ol INR 2-201.k13

f.m 17 feb 202a to 17 Fe5 2027.

I €qu.l Mtlly lNtalment ol liR 2,00lakht

15,0@
9.25'"
r0.@}

from Novmber 5,2C22 to April5, 2024.

16 equ.l Mrhly i6t lrenr oi INR 29

imralnHt oi rNi 1.6,1 lakh

37Z

l,tun6al

*tj

YM

I V

10.80.;



J.ro l^stitlte Ot -' shiolosy U.n.tm.nt A.d Ree...h limit€d
x.t6 to the Consfd.ted iii.n.i.l 5t.t.oot3 ro, they6r ended ll l,l.r(h 2024
(amoun! in'lJR laktu, lil.re othfrvnse t:ated)

Proesion lor€mploye b6.lirt lRcla note 16)
r20 68

6.11
8/ r5
4.ia

53.40
Provisl,o. for .mploy!. !.ii.fit3 lR.fd not. l5l

ar abde a.c.ctutl! piiC to'ne F.ll ote.pns for tne plrpoie., dislr ance.r a deducible expdditlre onde.
2l ot tr v.i tD 

^c'!. 
?0(6.

20.2 Aaei.g rch€lule of Tre. P.y.bln
echedule.3.! ], i4a,en 202.

Aleing khedule ae.t 3: tL.(h 2o2l

21 Other Finr..i.l Li.bilities

& AS

I ,977 7 

'

0?0

20 1 The informtim r.?ui.cd to b. dir.lored mder :he Mi<ro, Sn.ll .nd rl.diln ant.rp.i6 Dcwlopnnt Act, 2006 (hdei. .fts R€lnred to.r _l5l 
ED Act, 2006l

h.5 bes d€(d6in.d to the enenr r!.h prni6 h.ve b€6 id.ntifi.d o. th. b.iii oa lnfo.matio av.il.ble with the Coop.ny Th. qm€ h.s bs relied upon by
rhe audiroB. lhe .nol)nt ,f p.in(ipal .nd intdgt outtt.nding du.iq ttE y..r lt 8ivtn beiow :

The pri.cip.l.nDunt.na the inlerest de the.@n rnaining unp.id to any 5!pplie'atat the end of each accou.tin8 y€ar
.Pnncipa. am@nt due ro ml(,o.^d sall en:erpris
l.tercn dre on.b*e

Tt'e amoln: ol irrset 2aid by the buyer i,r terffi.t srtion 16 or the A 9 tD a.t, 2Cr6 along $i5 the amtunt3 ot the
p3rie.t maae:o thc *pt:ier 5ermd the ar)pointed d.y during e.ch.ccountiry year

t6.71
109

j7.a

llhe .ll\@t of i der dr e ind p.yaue ro' uE p€flod ol de{.y in nlatlq p.ymrt (whi.h h.w bs ?aid brn be1/nd rhe

laipzir.d dayduir3 tne (.fl bll vl:hdrt.Sdrng theinls6r 3F.ili.d rdd I'S{to r<t. 2@6

atlEmt oi i.rd6t .i :rued .ft! rernnilB urpaqd .t tne eid ol ach a..@.!ing ye.ri
a,lxMt ot funher inter6t ..mini A due ard payab{e e6 in tlE tlcce€drry y{8, dtil sh date 166 tie inte.6t

2-l1-2

(ii)undi9utec othe6
(iii) Di*uted d!6 rnsr,rE

(iv) Di9uted d6. otlE6

11.68

1,3S.55
?6-17

221.19 7.44
t7.80

7,016.t4

1,812 2l 249 91 2,06.57

_vgr!!9t!!l!t
2-7

(iii) oipured d6. r stlE
(iv) Di?utrd duei Otner!

1,61812
17.05

26a.05 16.26
tl 19

1,921.f'

1 lo5 10 16 70 1,964 27

31 lLrch 202!
lnGr6t ac..ueJ bur! not due on boro{inS!
Emlore bsPfit p.yable

0.61
10.27
31.97

11.08

356 72
74.7C

105 80

*

B

61 i7
139.t6

Tota t .utr!a6d i n! due of crcnitoRolner thai M.rcand 9.au :nterDns
-ou: onsbnCin! due otr.r.'o..d 5rullahrerpns I

7 076 77

,!rurr,baif'

M
I



Jaro l.tthut. of ikh.olog lLn.ar .nt And Rerarr.h linited
Nor$ ro rhe consric.red Finnd.r lb1.rn6t3 for the y6' .^d.d ll n.r.h 2o2a
(Arunt in lNR'idri!. sls otlEMi* rtatedl

22 Olher CLrre.l Lia5iliti6

23 Currdt T.x Lrabiliti6 (Netl

7.75

725

r3a r5
50

m
-fifrEl

MuInbai
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J.ro lnstttute Ol T<hnology r an.gement And Re*.rch Limited
Notes to the Co.solidated Financial Statements fo. the ye.r ended ll $arch 20;a
(Afitaunt in INR lokh;, unlettothet||ise stoted)

2a Leaeei liD AS 1r6

n8

The Group has Lease contracts for Ofiice ?' ntes us?d rn rls operations- Lease terms generalty rangs between 1 ano ,,ear..
rhe Group.sFsser, whether the contract is, or contains, a leate at the inception of th€.ontract o. upon the moditi.ation of 6 connsct. A.o.t.act rr, or
contalns. a lease if the contrad coryeys the ri8ht to co.trolthe us€ ofan identified asset for a pedod of time in exchan8e tor .oflside.ation.

sel out below are the carMng .r'otJnts of lease li.biiities and the movement during the year

31 Alar.h 2023

PrincipaL repavment ol teate tiabilities
lnterest payment on lease tiabililies
Nofl.c.sh adjusthents:
Additions duriry tie year

Disposah/ Adj'rstmente dunng the year

I Ihe following is the bre.k-up of Lease Liability as at .eporting d.te

ll L.rch 2O2a ll l ar(h 1023

aurrent 576_61

99i.98
1,568.59 1,601.68

1.r61. r2

C The Undi..ouoted l..r€ li.bilities of conthuirg oper.tions by haturity are .s follows

1,C61_ t6

0 !e.s€ Expen!€r re.qnis€d in strtement ot Profit a^d 1,033 not in.luded i: ihe me.surement of l€ase li.bllities

3, li.rch:O:r !1 llar<h 2023
Erp€n* retatin! to shod.term teases lir.luded in otrer expenses) ?79.50 77:.25

279.50 773.75

574.61
1,116.52

g/

3l l{a.<h 2024

tl74-6.t
(1i14.12)

674.18

141.3?

t..54 6€)

{141.05)

565.91

1144.121
141.05

Bal.n<e rt the eid of the i,554.59 1,ar1.63

11 l.rch ZOza

Between one and tive yeirs

1 911.111 754_?7

/irurDb

**.

1,(,ci 68 j lcl.6.1

l



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Management Ano qeseara' '-irn'tsg
Notes to the Conrolidated Financial Statements for the vea' ended 3, March 2024
iAmount in INR lokhs, unless otherE'rs€ rto(edi

25 Rcvenue from oper.tions

For the year ended
31 ,'llirc\ 2023

1'),9U.51 11.211.51

A lnformation of disaggregated revenue a5 per lnd A5 -r15

set out betow ir the drsaggrelatio:: of th€ cor:?ary's revenue lrom contfacts with customer5

For the year ended
11 March 2024

For th€ year ended
31 lrarch 2023

(A) Based on nature of seMce:
Sale of seMces:

. Errotmenl & other ancilLary seryic€r
- Program 0:anagemen! 5ervi(es

16.517-13

1,187.08
19,904.51

(8) Bai€d on timing of revenue recognitioo
- SeMc6 transterred at a point 01 time
- Services tranSferred over peijod o: lime
Totat 19,904.51 12,214.51

19,904.5r 12,2 r 4.51

r9,904.51 12,214.51

10,099.64

2,'114.87
12,2i4.51

16,517.43

1,187.08

10,o99.51

2,114.87

(C) Revenue by contract type:

Total

B Recon.iliation of r€venue recBnijed vis.a-vis co.trac_hd pr:.,.

conira.t with customers

Particulars

For the ye.r ended
31 Lbrch 2024

For the year enCeJ

31 lG.ch 2023

C The estimated revenue axpeded to be re.clnired in the t.iuie r€lating to remaining performance obligationt as at 31 lilarch

2024 a d 31l,tarch 2023 is as followr (Refer note 2Z):

Ar at l1 March 2024
Total

86C.35

As at 3l March 2023
Particulars

?5 Other lncome

As.s

in I

Tran5act'on price aloaated to refi€ininq
performame obligatioos

lnterest income
Others

for the year ended
31 L arch 2024

I

For the year ended
31 March 2023

331.78
20.36

243.01

0.97
Total 352.14 244.OO

Revenue fiom contrad with cusiomcrs:
- Sale of Services

19 12.214.51

19,904.51 11,214.51Revenue as ,er co;liaac'.ed price
,djustment5

19,904.51 1?,211.51

l-3 ye.r5

860.15

tnurnbal

*!n

\n-

.:'
r:

nz

ra

&

lc

For the ye.r ended

Leis tl'an 1 vear 1-! vears Total

Transaction p:'ice altocat€d to rernaining
perrornEnce obtiqa!ions

961.87 967.87

V



.iaro lnstitute Of Technology Managernent AnC Research Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements fo!. the year ended 3l Mar.h 2024
(Amouit in tNR lokhs. unlets otherwiso stateC)

27 Employee Benefit Expenies

For the year ended
l1 March 2023

3,941.19
1ll.9l
24.14

178.01

0.71

28 Finance Co5tr

29 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

For the year ended
31 Llar.h 2024

For the year ended
31 Ltarch 2023

Oepreciation on Propeny, Plant and Equipment (Refer note {)
Dep.eciatioi on Riqht of use Assets {Refer note 24}

122.52

551.16
59.91

473.92

675.88 513.85

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2O2l

lnterest expenses
lnter6t on teage liabitities
Lo5s on extinguishfient of tinancial liabitity
Loan proc6Jing chargei

110.76
141.O5

14.75
11.i4

299.28
144.11

r 4.09

Total 481.10 :r5 7.68

fu,/

Salariei, wages & 8o.us
Stafl wetfare expense
Gratuity expens€
E nptoyee stock compensation expsEe (Refer note 46)

Contrib!tion to dent and other funds

For the year ended
l1 ita.ch 2024

5,8i:.67
155.96

10.71

180.11

1.31

203-78 4BO -24

Mumbai

s-
't

D/

)
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology M.nngement And aasearch Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Fin.ncial St.tenpnt3 for the year ended ll l arch 202a
(Amouna in INR lokhs, unless othetuise stdteC)

30 Other :xpenses

Total

10.1 Faylro"' to auCitors

3'l Exceptional items

'lotal

Legal a^<l Profssioial fees

Payments io audrto.s lrefer note 30,1)
Bank charges
8ulinrss promotion expenag
ReferraL fe6
Repair and mainteran(e expenseE

interest EIpense foi MSME Vend{xs
Offjce rFa intenanae erpenses
Software and cornDuter expenses
Electrjcity expense
Postage and couier
Printing aad stationery
RateJ a1d:ax6
Leale rent (Refer note 24)

lnterest (n delayed payment of taxe!
T€lephone and communication olpense
TraveltiE and conveyance
Loss Cle to ad'nission canceltation/dio9.outs
sund.y batancs written off
Corpo'a.ie So.ial Responsibitity {CSR) e):penditure (iefer note 42)

Lo5, on snte of prope(y, plant and equipment
office erpens€s
Allorvan<es for eLpecled credit tosses l"ECt )

Foreisn e(hange Lo55

llisce:taLnl(]s exrensE

For the year ended
31 M.r.h 2O?4

504.rJ5

24.12

16.15

5,445.59
447.70

168.C6

0.11

32.78
177.23

108.18
1.48
€.54

45.57

779.50

6.17
124.75

1Cl.7C

181.39

12.75

60.37
3,594.34

170.08
1r4.85

18.29
98.46
85.28

3.00
15.02

29.r8
223.25
t{.13
97.11

81.70
196.88

58.41

15.00
0.59

25.00
0.41

46.16
(111.59)

10.70

34.r9
104.61

4.60
6.95

Audit Fees . Siatutory audit including consolidation
Reihburtement cf expeises

l,lumbai

5 423.86

For the year ended
31 l,{arch 2024

For the year ended
31 LLrch 2021

Gar,1 on rate ol a suSsidiary lRefer Note a betow)

Loss on sate of a subsidiary (Refer Note b betow)

125.&
r36r.98)

t236.12)

a On 0l ftober 2021, the Croup disposed of iti entire stake (i.e. 52.26S) in a subsidiary (i.e. Jaro Education Private Limited). This

resulted in to5i of control and Jaro Education Private Limi(ed cea5€d to be a subsldiary w.e.f. 0l October 2C21. The pro(eeds on

disposal.mounting !o INR 11.00lakhs were received in cash. No invgtrnent wa5 retaind in the forrner subsidiary. The resulting gain

on [os5 of control amountinS to INR 125.86 takhs is disctosed under exceptional items (iefer rrcte 33).

b On 28l,^ar.h 2024, the 6roup disposed of it5 entire stake (i.e. 77.40x) in a subsidiary (i.e. Net Emptoyment Services Private Limited).
This r6utted in toss of controt and l{et Employment SerYices Prjvate Limited cea5d to be a subsidiery w.e.f. 28 r,larch 2024. The
proceeds on di$osal amounting to INR 1,617.81 lakhs were received in cash. No invBtment was retained in th€ former subsidiary. The

reiuttin! Ioss on los5 of controt amounting !o INR 161.98 takl6 is disctosed unCer exceptionat jtefts {Refer note 3l). This [6s on loss of
controi includ6 difference anountjn3 to INR 2.66 takhs arising on recognition of ROU asset and tea5e liabitity in repec! of lease
contract existed with subsidiary which was etiminated before the subsidiary was sotd. Further, the Group has atso retained other
batance5 dL€ from the former subsidiary amounting to INR 12.34 takhs which is atso inctuded in loss on loss of control of subsidiary.

Fo. the year ended
31 l arch 2021

7,460.75

For the year ended
31 t atch 2024

For the year ended
3l r,{arch 2023

z 1.00

l.r2
17.15

24-12 1?.75

Arr

s

ca

aAs
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33.17
t,3t
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t!.50

{3.!r)

{95.1,a)

2,t9

lll)O.f.rr€d t x li.balitiEtn r.brlM lo:

25 56
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t r!.t.n. nt o{ profit.nd lG3
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology l,lanagement AnC Research Lrhjted
Notes to the Consoiidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 tlarch 2024

lAmount in INR lxkht. unlets otherwttc ttot?dl

33 Disposal of subsidiary

Accountinc of loss of control

a Jaro Education Private Limited

Net cash inflow on dis lo{sut'sidia

As referred to in note 31 , the G.oup dispcsed of its interest in subsadaaries i.e. laro Education Private Lrmited alrd Net
Employment Servi.es Private Limited on 03 Oct?ber 2023 and 28 March 2024, r€spectiveiy.

Net arsets disposed (other than cash):

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax ass€ts

Other current assets

Borrcwings

Trade payabtes

Other current tiabilities

2.24

o.13

1.80

\119.27 )

(0.26)

(0.17)

Gain on sale of subsidia

Particulars

Cash consideraticn received

Cash and ca,h uivaients di
Net cash inflow on A)

t23.46

Particulars

Cash consideration received
Cash and cash eq,Jivatents disposed of

11.00
(0.37)

10.61

(11s.23)

1,609.06

674.88

1 .15

1,695-19

6.77

122.67

8.48

109.54

1.O7

0.2l
1735.671

(33. s2)

(18.55)

\1.75)
114.97)

14c.22)

Net aisets disposed (other than cash):

Propeny, ptant and equipnent
lntangibte a!5ets

Loans

Other non-current financial assets

Non-current tax assets

Other non-current assets

Trade receivables

Other currcnt financial assets

Other current asset5

Borrowings

Deferred tax tiabitities
Trade payabtcs

Other current financial tiabitities
Other current tiabrtities
Current tax liabilities

2,275.30Total net aisets(B)

(9.68)

276.15

1s70.73)

Fair value of other retained interest (Refer note 31 b)

Attributable goodwill

Attributab(e non-controlting interest
(304.26)
(361.98)Loss on 3ale of subsidiary(A-B-C-D)

rotrl{C)

l,4umbai

!+
.c

v

b Net Employment Services Private Limiteij

1,637.81

118.75)



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology l{anagemcnt And Research Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yeer ended 31 ttarch 2024
(Amount in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stoted)

34 DiicontinuedOperations

Sale of rubeidjary

0n 28 March 2024, the Group disposed of its entire stake 1i.e.77.40%) in a subsidiary (i.e. Net Emptoyment Services Private
Limited). The Group has de-recognized the oet carrying value of arsets of INR 2,275.30 lakhs as on date of sale r.e. 28

March 2024.

Net Emptoyment SeNices Private LimiteC represents the sepaiate major Line of business of the Group as per lnd AS 105
''Non-current assets he[d for sate ano discontinued operaticrl!'. Accordingty, it has been treated as discontinued operations
and accounted for in accordance witfl the stiputatlons of lnd AS 105. The corresponding numbers in the Restated

Consolidated Financial lnformation for the prev:ous years have been presented as if these operations were discontinued rn

the prior years a5 wetL.

b Profit from Discontinued Operations for the year

Cash flows from Discontinued Operations

Particulers
For the year ended

3l March 2024
For the year ended

3t ltarch 2023

Net cash inflow Irom operating activities
Net cash i'rftow from investing a.tivities
Net cash outftow from financing acti\ities

35.33

63.r5

t92.451-

22.33

13 70

(76.95)

Net ca5h generated from/(used in) discontinued opErations 6.03 141.421

For the year ended
31 l,{arch 2024

For the year ended
3l ,,larch 2023

Result of discontinued operations
Revenue from operations

Expenses oiher than finance costs

Finance cost5

186.71

{r 52.84)

(26.60)

301.E7

(219. r0)
(16.12)

Profit befoie tax 7 .27 28.65
Tax (expense)/credit (11.08) (5.50)

Profit After Tax from Discontinued Operatiois (3.8r )

*

z
4 s

ASa s

(/,

Mumt,ai

23.15

v



i.ro lnstitute Of Te€hnology Management And Research Limited
llotes to the Consolldated Financjal Sratcmentr for the year endec 3r ttarch 202.1

(Anount in INR lokhs, unleis otl,erwire stoied,

ls E.rnings per share (EPS)

of equity shares .t the end of year for Diluted EP! {C)

Basic earnings /(loss) pe. share amounts are calculatcd by dividing the orr,!t/ross fo. the vear attributable to ecrity holde.s by the weightec
average number of equity shares outslanding during the year.

DiluteC eaminS5 /{to55) per 5hare amount5 are catcutated by dividing the p.ofit/:oss attributable to equity holoe.s by the weighled average
nuiber of equity share5 out5tandinS durins the year ptus the weighted average numberof equity shares lha! wolid be tssLred on coflversioF of
atl the drtutive potentiat equity shares into equity shar6.

For the year ended
3, r.iarch 2024

For the year ended
31 l,{arch 2021

Basia earnings pei share
Profir. for tl€ year (from contiirued operaiionr) (A)

Prorit for the year (kom discontinued oceratio:r) (3)
1,802.78

(1.81)

Weightec average nwber of eqLrily 5hare5 at :l'e beginnlng o{ the rear
Eonus share issued durins the year'
w<.ighteC average number of equity share3 at the end of the ye.r for Easic EPS(C)

1,50,{1,324
50,56,135

2,OC,97,739

Basic earnings Fer share from continued oper.tions in INR (0:A/C)
Srsic e.rnings per rhare from discontinu?d operations in INR (0=3/C)

Basic earningi per 5hare from ContinuinS and Discontinued operationt in INR (D:A+0/C)
I

18.92
(0.02)
18.90

r,lll-96
21.15

1,50,;C.9lC
50,11,650

2,00,54,600

5.65
o.17
5.77

1,802.78

11.81)

2.O4,9t.159

2,01,280
2,O7,99,O39

18.73
(0.02)

18.71

Diluted earnirBs per share
Profit for :he year (fron continued ogerations) (A)

Profit for the t/ear (from discontiftred op€rationr) {B)

1,11t.96
21.r 5

hri4rter 
"""a"t" 

nrrn*r of equity sharcs a! t\e e|id of :he y€ar fo' Basic EPS

g:J!c cf dilr.tion:
::J) c)tion, (refer note 46)"

2.00.54.6C0

from.ontinued ozerations in INR (D=A,/C)

from discontinred operation5 in INR (0=B/c)

from Continui and Oitcontinued ations in INR

1,31,2t5
2,01,85,845

s.62
0.11
5.71

M

'Tlre Ecarci of Diieators at its mc+ti.g held o,1 I May 202,1 has approved issu3 of bonu5 equity share!, in the proportion of 1:1, i.e. I (one)

boniis .quity ihaie for every 3 (thiee) fully paid-up equity shar6 hcld as on reco:d date, which are approved by shareholder at the
Extr6ordinary General Meeling (EOGM) hetd on 24 $ay 2074. Conscquent to thi3 bonus issue, the number of ordinary shar6 outstandjng is

increas€d by number of shar6 issueo as borrt shares in current year and com5rarl:ive year prEented a! if the evenl had occurred at the
beginnjng cf the earliest year pre-<en:ed.

Stock options granted to the emptoyees under the ESOP 2022 s.heme are consid€red to be polential equity shares. The 5ame is considered in

the determinatiofl of diluted eamings pei ih3re to the ertent tnat th(ry are that they are not anti.ditutive. The shares vested durinB the year

ended 3, l,tarah 2024 are anti-dilutive jn nalure and h€nce, no! c)nlidered for the catcu:ation of diluted eaming per share.

,sss

t4

Mumbat
z
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J.ro l^ltitute Ot rechnology litanagement And Rereirch Limited
Not.5 ro lhe Conelid.ted FieEial Staterenti for the ys. ended I I M.rch 202.1

lahount in INR lLkhs. unless orhefrise5totedJ

35 Enploy€e Eeneiits Oblieltions

(l) ocii^eC contributione pl.ne -Provident fund.nd others

'hc Grcup makes ccolribu'.iofl lowards emplc,/?es' Providenl Fund and otrle, defined .onkibution ptans. Un.e: the scnerD€!, the Group 
's 

iequred
lo .ontribute a spe.ified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rlter o( th€ s.hemes, to these de{ined contribulion schemes.

ll Mar.h 2024

1.31

1.31

ll ri{arch 2021

4.77

0.7 7

(li) oefined 5enefit pl.ns

l%,t servjre cosl

The Group provrdes fcr g.atuity b€nefl under a defin€d L€nefit retirenent s<leme (:he "Gratuity S.heme") ar iald c{t by tirc Payment of Gral.Jity
(Amerdment, Act, 2018 of !ndi; coveriB eligible employees i e. an empioy€e who has completed r]ve yea6 of se.vi.e is ent'tted to specifrc
b€nefitt. Tte t.vel 6f benefits provided depends on the m€mbe.'s tength of rerMce and saiary at retnem€nt a8e.
j-iab,ltie! wi'.h regard to rhe Graruiry S.hem€ are dete.mined by actua,ial vaiuation cani€d out using the Prote.ted Unit Credit 

^ 
ethod by a^

,ndepen&nt actu.ry.

The s(heme is neither fund€d with an insuran e Company in the form of qualifying insuraoce poticy, nrr any assets have teen creat€d.

6) Ch.nge in th. cbllgrtion during th€ year:

in lhe Prerent Value o: Obligation

',esext !d:u. ol otrliSatior as at the teginning of the year 131.59

21_77

Benerits paid

Re rnearurem.nt (gain) / loss arising from:
' (hange in ,inarcial assumptions
' ciioerience \ariincc (i,e. actual exp€riences vs assumptjont,

110.79)

oblitalion as at th. enC of the year

Lir5jliiy re€a: n:sed in the Balanca Shec::

0-68

25.87

31 L{.rch 2024
Cl.nlfl..tion of provLlons
Currer,t

Amounts r.co$ized ln Eal.nce theet

b) AmounB r.€o$l5ed 1n profit or loss in respect of thete defined b€nefit Plant rre .t follows

l1 Alrch 202131 i{ar.h 2024

@
21.27

9.4
19.47

5.94

Tot.l expenres r<ognl3ed in the statement of P.ofit.nd Lose 30.73 25.16

(Grln)/Lors recognir€d In the Other Comprehentive lncome
Re.m€asurement (gain) / toss arising f.om:
- chanSe in finaffiat assumptions 0.68

25.87

26.55 15.50

(7.61

21.11

3l Alarch 202,1 ll lla.ch 2O2l

l]8.121

11c.45
19_42

5.94

(7.61)

21.11

179.08 r 32.59

31 ltr.h 2023

45_4
87.15

58.40
120.58

179.08 1J2.59

Mumbat

s
rt!
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a) Durirg the year the Group h.s .ecognized the tollowing amounB in the Staterent of profit and lott:

Efined bencfit (csts/(income) recosnised in Othcr comprehen5ive ln(ome



J.ro lnrtitut€ Of T€<hnoloqy l anJgeftent And R6errch Limit€d
Note5 to the Consolidared linrkial StatemenB for the year cndcd 31 ri.rch 2024
lAnauht in INR h*hs, unless othetuise stote.i)

c) The signifi..,,t ..tLr..ial .etumptions Lied tor the purpoees of the actuarial v.luationr are .5 follows:

Altrition / Withdrawai rates, based on age: {p€r annum)

d) Maturity Profile of Defined 8enefit Obligation

The discou.t .ate assum€d for current and previcus y€ar, ir determined by reference to marke! yield at the Batance sheet date on government

bonds. ihe eltimate of future salary in.r€ases, considered in actuarial valuatjon, take accoont of inflation, seniority, promotjon and oth€r retevant
fa<to.!, ru.h ae supply:nd demand in the employrn€nt market.

c) SensltjvltyAnalyri!:
Signl;cant actuarial assumpLi,rnr for the determination of the defined benerit obtigation (D8O) are discount rate, satar! growtt, rat€, attriiion rate
and mortaLity. The sensit iviiT : nalysis betow have b€en determined based on r€asonably possible changes of the assumpt:Jns o.cur.ing al the end of
the r€Fo(in? period, white Soidjng all other a$!mptionr constaflt- The resultr of the sensitivity analysjs js Civ€n b€low:

Satary S.owth rete 1% lncreage/ Decrease

17" lncrease/ Dearease

Xoter

{i} Th€ sentitivity alratysis have been &termined based on realon.5ly possib{e changes of tlle respcctjve assumptiont o.cuninS.t the crd of the
reporting period, while hotding alt other assumptions constant. Ihe sensitivity analysis preseflt€d above may not be repre!€ntative of the actual
ch.n8e ii the Defin€d Eenefit Obtigation as it ir untlkety that the change in .rslmptions woutd occur in isotatbn of co€ another at rorne ot the

asrumpriofls may be correlated. Fu(hennore, in presenting the ebo\e s€nsitivity anaLysi5, th€ present vatue of th€ 9efineC 8€nefit ObLiSntbn has

been (atculated using th€ proiected unit credit rnethod at the end of the reponlrB p€rird, which is the sa$e m€lhod as applied in calculatirB the

Defined Benefit Ouitatbn as recognis€d in the balance sh€et.

Iiir]_ner3vrasnochangeinthenEthodsandassumptbnsusedinprepringthesemtivityanatysitfromprioryears.

(8) comp.n$t d .bscrE.!
The obtigatioi for compensated ab6ences as at year end amdrnts to INR 10.28 lakhs (31 Llarch 2021: INR 7.46 takh!)

A

31 Mar.h 2024 l1 t{..ch 2O2l
7 -291
8.mt

60
Sales : 50*

Suppo( : 25%

^lorraliry 
(2012.14)

Urban

8.m*
,60

Sates : 50*
Suppo,l : 251

l$ortatfty (2012-14)

Urban

l1 I'tarch 2023

Sufi of 5 to 10yea's

58.40

13.08

29.12
72.66

17.11

15.30

45_43

29.94

2r.ll
r 5.71

12.28

2Z.q)
8.09

For the year ended 31 March 2024 For the year ended 31 March 2023

1.90
(r.20)

1.1E

(1.66)

1.31

(1.16)

5.51

4.17

0.%

o.77
5.32

(0.e1)

Mumbat

s
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technoiogy llanagemenl And Rerearch Limited
Notes to the Con5olidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 L{arch 2024
lAmount in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stoted)

a.Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debtr
i. oisputed demands in respect of lncome Tax
n. oisouted demands ir rcspe(t ol GST

ni. oisputed demands in respect of Service Tax

478.f9
9A 40

164.h0
inst the aforesrid dcrn.tnds. ,menls under st/ac ustments made the Com

b. M/s Bennet, Coteman and Co. Ltd. ("FLaintiff") has tited a civit suit beanng number 510 of 2023 againtt the Ccmpany and certain
individuals lcollectiYely, the "Deferdants") before the High Court of Judicature at Bombay under sections 4l(a) and 43(b) of the
lnformation Technology A.t, 2000. as amended, seeking (i) damage5 by way of compensation aggregating to INR 717.50 takhs at the
rate of 21% 2er annum from the Cate of fiiinE of the suit titl the actuai date of payment to the PLaintilf for unauthorized access and
data theft from the Ptliitiff's aomputer s!'r:em and (ii) grant of injunction against the Defendants from the use or access to the
said data. ln addition, tle ?taintiff las atsc fited an interim apptication dated 17 JuLy 2023 to restrarn the Defendanrs by an oroer
of iniunction from acae5sing and traisferriig i,r any:nanfier the confidentjat informltion from the cornpute, systems of the
Plaintiff and the Defendants filed an writte.r statement on 9 November 2021 rejecting the ctaims of the Plaintiff seeking dismissat
of the matter. The matter wa5 subseque^tly transferred to the Coun of Additionat Sessions Judge, City Civil Court, M[rmbai and is

curren(y pending.

B Commitmentr

theie are no Cofir.litments existing as on 31 taarch 2024 & 11 liarch 2023

Particulars
31 ,,tarch 2024

As at
31 

^,krch 
2021

l,rumbai

s'

,*

l7 Contingent Liabilities an,, Co,nmitments
A Contingentl-iabilities



hdividual having control / sig.ifi€an: inftuerce over
Mr. gniay N. Satunkhe Managing oire.tor

Subsidiary
Net Emptoyment Services Private Limited (upto 2E Mi.ch 2024)"
Jaro Education Private Limited (upto 0l O(tober 2021)'

Step down 5ubsidiary

Net Edu.atjon Entrepreneu6hip 6 Leadership timited lForrn€rty Kno,^/n .: 'Future

Education trd.l (upto 28ltarch 2024)

Net HR Solutionr Pvt Ltd (upto 28 March 2024)

Ve.ifications Sotr./tions Pvt Ltd (upto 28 March 2024)

Net Recruitment Services Private l-imited (upro 28rurch 2024)

Key management personnel (Kl P)

Mr. Ealkrishna N. Salunlh€ - Director

^ls. 
Panjila Raman . Dire(tor and Chief Exe<Lrtive Officer

Mr. Rajendra N. Salunkhe'oirector
Ms. Sania S. 9lunkhe - Daughter of Director
M.. Udiy Salullh€ - Brother of oirector
Mrs. Swati U. Salunkhe .Relative of Direclor
M.5. Anrta Sanjay Salunkhe. Spouse of Drre(tor
M6. Meena Salunkhe- Retative ol oire<to.

Jaro lnstitute of TechnolcEy ManaSement And Research [imited
Notes to the Consolidated Finaiciar Statements fo. rhe year ended lr March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs. uniess otherwise stot.d)

,l Related pany disc:osurer

The list of related pa(jes as identifjed by the tlanazement is 6s under

N.me of Rel.ted Pa.ty

Entitie5 in which rer$P / relatives of K 4P can exerc
significant inftuefte

Jaro Fircap Private [imited
Jaro Topp5.hola6 Private limited
Jaro Education Private l-imited (w.e.f. 0l October 2021)

Net Emptoyment Servic6 Privale Limited (w.e.f. 28|,{arch 2024)
Nei HR Sotutions An Ltd (w.e.f. 28 tlarch 202.{)

Net €ducation Entreprei:eu6hip & Leade6hip Limited [Foftnerly Xrown as Flture
Education Lrd.l (w.e.f. 28 r,brch 2024)

Verificaiiol! Solltiom An Ltd (w.e.f. 23March 2024)

GI Education Trust

lNet ircrulnen! 5€rvic6 Private Limited (w.e.l. 28 March 2024)

a) Key fianagernent Person compensation

b) Transactioni with related partiet

For the year endeC
ll I'i.rch 20:,t

For the year ended
31 arch 2023

llanagerial remuner.tion
Mr. Sanlay N. Salunkhe
Mr. Rajendra N. SnLunkhe

i1s. Fanjita Raman

Salary Expense

l,is. Sania S. Salunkhe
Mn. Meena Satunkhe

Sale of subridiaries to l,tr. Saniay N. S.lunkhe
Net Employment Services Private Limited
Jaro Education Private Limited

Depcrit given
Mr. gnjay N. Satunkhe

Deposit repaid
Mr. Sanjay N. Satunkhe

Lease rent
Mr. Saniay N. Satunkhe
Mr. Uday Satunkhe

f,1rs. Swati lJ. Salunkhe

90.00
6.0J

150.05

5.50

1,617.8r
11.00

l1 1.16

1.60
3.60

1C8.79

2.76

5.00

255.00

791.16

1.60
3.60

r/

For the year ended
:! llarch 2024

For the year endcd
ll llarch 2023

1C8.79246.C5

AS& s

At m
(t,

!,+ *!

Mumbai



Jaro lnstitute Ot Technology r,{ana8ement And Re5ear.h Limited
Notes to the Consolid.ted Finen.ial st.tements tcr lhe year ended 31 tlarch 2C24

(Amount in INR lokht. unless othcftvise stated)

For the ye.r ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
l1 March 2O2l

Grant of EsoPt
Ms. Ranjib Raman

Payment towardr Corporate social Expenser

GLobat Edu.ation Trust

Service lncome & Other ree.
GLobaL EdUC.iion T.i,st

Perquisites (cer)

,lls. Raniita Raman (Refer note 18.2 a)

c) Out5tanding balances of rel.ted Panies

Loan $ven
GLobat Education Trust

Jaro Topps.hotars Private Limiled
1,1r. Sanjay N. Salunkhe

lnterest income on loan Siven
Mr. Saniay N. Salunkhe
Gtob3L Edu.ation Trust
Jaro Topps(hotac Private Limlted

Loan taken
Ms. Ranjita Raman

Jaro Fincap Private timiteC
Glocal ECucation rr6t

R--payment of loam t.ken (includiry interst accrued)
Js.o FirEap Private l-imited
Als. Ranrita Rrman

Global Educa:ioi Trusl

lnterest on loan taken
Mr. Sanjay N, Saiunkhe
l,ls. Raniita Raman

Jaro Fincap Private Limited
Global Edrcation Trusi

551. r 3

r,1e8.18

1,646.53
11.r0

470.81

r,051.00
1.048.56

Rep.yment of loans grven (including interst r€ceivable)
Mr. sanjay N. Salunkhe

Gtobal Education Trusl
Jaro Topps.hota6 Private Limited
Net Emptoyment SeNices Private Limited

1,897 _4a

2,114.@

145 _14

2 5.00

210.00

59.08

5.a2

265. ! l

15.00

96.00

52.14

107.58
183.48

0.30

12.11

176.62

t,55

60.00
0.10

21.30

33.12
63.82

15 16

89.86
76.10

6.3 t
2.67

1.49
3.85
0.40

Particulars 31 Ll.rch 2024

Key Mana8erial Personnel
Mr. sanjay N. Satunkhe

Relatives of Key l anagcrial Personnel
tn_. Uday Salunkhe

Key l^anagerial Po.sonnel

^,tr. 
Saniay N. Satunkhe

Ms. Ranjita Raman

Air. Rajendra N. Salunkhe

15.00

2.41

47.73

0.50

o.71

5.98

0.30

3t March 2023

Mumbat

,r_

s' v



Jaro lnstitrte Of Te€hnology Management And Resea.ch Limited
Notes to the C,,nsolidated Financial Statementt for the year ended l1 ,,l.rci 2024
(lnount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

$l.rv Pav.ble
Relatives of Key M.nagerial Perscnnel

Mrs. 5wati U. Satunkhe
M.s. Meena 9lunkhe

Account Receivables
€ntities i:r which KMP/relatives of KMP can exercise slgnificant influence

Clobrl ECdcation Trust

Other Re.eivabler
E,rtities in which f, P/relatives of K iP can exer.ite significant inllue^.€

.Jaro Topprchotars Private timited

7_43

J.50

1.00
1.00

42A-58

14s.81

0.21

100.57

422 _58

?1.58

321.28

471.15

Key llanagerial Personnel
Mr. Sanjay N. Salunkhe

&e!e!i!le!q!r!:i€
Key lilanageri.l Personnel

/ 1r. Sanjay N. Satunkhe

Relative. of Key lilanagerial Personnel
Mr. l.lday saLunkhe

Mrs. Swali U. Sal,Jnkhe

00

0,

:nti:ies in $/hich Ki0/relatives of xrr.P can exercise significant influence
G:lhat Edu.ation TrL5l
..iaro ToFps(hotar5 Private Lir:1ited

Ki, llan.Serial Fersonnel
Mr. tanjay N. Salunkhe

necoverable towards toan eiven n.lusiv€ of lntere.t Receivable),

. se.u:ed l)an Pavable llncludi

1,76.66
1.10

l.,tities in $'hich KllP/relatives of KiO can exercise significant influenc3
]aro Fincap Private Limiied 24.49

l((}y Ma:ragerial Parsonn"l
M5, RA 6l-14

Notes

'On 03 October 2023, the Hotding Company had transferred 1,10,000 5har€5 ol Jaro Education Private Limited (Subridiary / JEPL) to M..

Saniay Salunkhe (Dkector of the Company). Therefore, from 03 O.tober 2C2l onwaids, JEPL ceased to be a subsidiary of Jaro Institute of
T(hnology 

^laragenent 
and Research [imited.

" on 23 tia.ch 2024, the HotdiB company had transferrec 49,:18,497 5hare5 of Nl!( Employment servicea Private limited (subsidiary / NE5PL)

tc Mr. $niay gtunkh€ (Ckector of the Company). Therefore, from 23 March 2024 onwards, NESPL ceased to be a sublidiary of Jaro lnstitute
of Teihnoloqy l anagefiEnt and R6earch Limited.

# oetajls of loanr given to related partics

31 l,{arch 2024 31 rurch 2023
Global Education Trust
Balance inctuding accrued interest as at the year end
,lrximum amount outstanding at asytime du.ing the year
(Clobal Education trust has utitized this loan for woaking capitrl purpo5e. The loan given to
related party was repayabte on dernand and at 10i lntercst rate compoJraed annualty)

l r. SanJay N. S.lunkhe
Salanae rncluding accrued interGt as ai the year end
Maximum anrount outstanding at anytime during:he year
(Mr. Saniay N. SaLunkhe has utilized thi5 loan fo. workinB capitaL puipose. The loan given to
related p:aty was repayabteoi demand and at 12% lnter6t aate compounCed annuatly)

2,06i.91
1,706.66
2,044.97

1,567.09

471.75
471.75

oStss.

A,
ao

31 lilarch 2024 31 i{arch ZOZS

lqunbai

rA!

s-

a

*1

#/ Dctails of loani taken from related parties

207.OO

c



Jaro lnstitute Of Technology M.n.gement And Research Limited
Notes to the Consolida(ed Financial Statement! for the year ended 3l l arch 2024
(Amount in INP lo^hs. unless othetuise stoted)

Jaro Fi.cap Private Limited
Balance includinE accrued inter6t as at the year end
Ma)(imun. a:nount oltstandjng at anytifir€ during lhe year
The Gro"p has takefl lns€.irred loin for working capitaL purpore. Ite loan was repafabte on
demanC and carie! inter6t at 11.50* compounded annually.

lls. Ranjit. R.m.n
Balarre incruding acaru€d interest a5 at the year end
Nlaximum amount outstendirB at anytinE dJrinS the year

The Co:ipany has taken uffecured loan for workirE capital purpo4e. T5e toen was repayable on

demand anc carriE intaiBt at ll.m* compounded annually.

11 March 2024 31 llarch 2023

76.01

68-E2

25.49
40.60

63.1i
61.14

d)

(i)
(ii)

39

Terms anC conditions

All transactjon were made on norrnal comrnercial terms aM conditions and at market rates

All outstandiiB bata^c6 are un5erured and repayabte in cash.

Segment reporting
Air operating segment is a component of the Group that engags in busines5 activities fro.n which it may earn revenLrs and incur e)eense5,
including revenu6 ard expen56 that retale to transactions with any of the Grouprs other componenis, and for which di*rete financial
i4formation is avaitable. The Group has determined itt business segment as "Ed!rcation Program Serviae5'which includ6 lwo busin6l
ye(icati, nanely S:udent Enrolment Service5 and Program Management Services. Operating segment's results are reviewed regularty by the
GrouD's Lanagirg Oirector and CEO to make decirions about resourccs :o be atLocated to the segments and assess their performance.

The Chief Cpem(ing De(ision Maker (1CODM ) which is Eoard of Direclors evatuates the Group's perfornEr:ce and allocate5 r6ources based on

an anatFts of various performance indica(oc at operationat unjt tevel. Since the Group! business is fro.n single bu5ines5 reponing iegment,
there ar€ no ct,rr p|rmary repo.table segments. Thus, the segment revenue, selment re5utts, totaL carrying amount of 9egmenl assets, total
carar:13 J,xoui'. of :,egmen! Liabilities, iota: cost incurred to acquire segment as5ets, total amount of chaEe for depreciation Curing the year

is as refteatea ir the Con5olidated Financiat Statements.

The Gaoup',s austomeR are doniciled in lndia and also the non-current assets are 5ituated in lndia. Thus, the geographical segmen! disclosures

of the Group are iot given.

Mumbai

%
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J.ro lnrtltute Ol Te.hnolo3y lt.n!8cm.nt /\nd R6eorch tlmlt.d
Io"* to the conlcl:d.r.d Fln.ncl.l st.tcmenB lor the yc.r ended 3l h.rch 2024
( rrount in INR takhr, unlers otheMhe stated)

4(' Addltlonal lnlorm!tlon rcqulred under Schedule lll to the Comp.nlci Act, 201! of cntitls conrolldated .i sob3id1.rie3

5h.re ln profit or {los)
share ln other conpr.hehsive !h.ro lh tot.l comDreh.nslve

consolidated tot;ll

4,057.61
1,1\1./7.

100.00%

!0 r.861

(1.81)
23-16

0.001
7.441

(5.60)
(11.40 )

0.00x
0.00%

0.001
0.54*

(19.87)
(1r.88)

106.11%

98.871{

4,012.14
1,l]?.8.1

0.10,I
7.C),1t,

(.1.8 I )

?3 _440.28

10.06)

-1 1.6

0.15%

0.99*
t5.60)

{ r 1.4(l)

0.00%

0.64% i.19

l 798.96

.244.25)
(6.18)

0.00r(
0.00r;

.6.46%

-0.55X
l? 4/i_751

(6.18 )

100 9 _09

1,152.89100.00%

ceased !o bc . lub6ldlnry ol Jaro ln(ltute of Technology l anagnment and Res..rch Limit€d.

onwardr. rleSPL ,:eaeed to be a subriCiary ot Jaro listitutc ot Technology Mrnagem.rt and Rej!'arcr, I rrnrled

Net.rreti (tot.l asi.ts
minus tot.l ll.billtle,

flamc of thc cr.Utler ln the group AsXol
consolidatcd aonrolidntcd

proflt or loss

Jaro lnrtitute of Technology M.nasement
And Reie.rch l.lmitcd
ll llarch 202!
It Ma.ch 2023

lndlan Subsidiariei
Net Enplryrr'!-rt Servlces Prlv.te Limlted
l1 l,larch 2021"
l1 Alarch 2021

Jaro Educatlon Private Limitcd
31 March 2024'
l1 March 2021

Non-Controlli'rg lntorest ln lll subsldi.riaj

3l 
^,larcn 

2024

l1 ldarch 2023

ilimination! t: Coniolldatlon.diustmonts

l1 
^hrch 

2024

31 March 2023

100

90.12%

0,c0x
27 _47%

0.00x,
1.111

0.007
6.8596

0.00*
-2t.13X

2,295.51

(109.26)

5t2.06

11,932.62)

'11,743.76

7,530.3r,

!06.68%
r3.9r1

-0.10*
't.9q%

.0.15%

,0.981

0.00x
0.641;

-6.41%

-0.55%

11,743 _?63l March 2024 100.00% 100.001, r00.00% -19.87
3i March 2021 100.00x, 8,156.08 r00.00% r,164.55 100

Mumtal

*
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Jlro l^3tltutc Ot T.chnolog A.h.g.mentAnd Rc!..rch Limitod
Not.3 to th. Coffioltdlt.d rin.ncl^ I st.tehant! for th. y... end.d 3l l\.rch :024
(Amount ln INR lakhr, untess otheMke stated)

41 lnterert in subildl.riej

rubrldiariet.re 
', 

below:

52.181

Ne! Services Private Limited
28 March 2024 31 Merch 2023

2,598 26

133 94
7,r32.20

Noi.current ti.bitities 335 78

99.91

Tot.lll.bllltlej
2,295.51

572.06

31 March 2024

the Company). 'l herefore, troh 28 March 2024 onwards, N:sPL (elscd lo be a subsidiary ol Jaro lnstitute ol Technolosy Manageme nt afd n.search L imrted.

Comp.ny). Iherelcre, lrom 03 October 2023 onwardr, JlPt cea:.d to be a subridiary ol Jaro lnstitute or Technology Uar.)gement and RcsDerch Limited.

set out below ls rumnarizcd fln.nci.l intorm.tlon for rubsjdl.ry deco:ni5cd .nd result.nt garn on srle of ihv.stment h sub5njiary

Net Employm.nt 5€ruices ,nro lducatioo Privaie

Liabilitles
2,648.68

344.64

484
119.70

(114.86)

2.654 \2
464 34

Net AsretY(tlabllitje,
Contideratlon reccived on s.le ot equity rhares

2.301.04 2,189.18

1.637.81 1r 00 1.648 8l
(555.23) 125.86 (s40 37)

oerecoBnltlon ot Minodty share in net assetr

rair value oI other retained interest ln subndiary
0erecoqnitlon oI sood'*itt arlred on acquisition

570.12
(9.68)

276.75

125 86Gain/(loe, on 3.1€ ol lnveitF"nt lh 5ub3ldlary (361.981

570.-t2

{9.68)
216.t5

Non{ontrolllnr lnt.r6t (Xcl)

are bcfor. Intar conpany ellmjnatlons.

&A z
-{

*

Name ol tnc cntitier in the grouF

l1 M.rch 2024

X ol eitectlve ownerrhlp lntercat h.ld by the Group

31 r'{arch 202 3

Net Employment seMces Prhate timited''r
Jaro Education P.tuat. Llmitedrb!

% ol elf€ctlva ownershlp int.reit held by Non-
ControUln{ lnt€rcrt

l1 March 20 21

z? 60%

4t.62%

q

436.69

Mumbat



J.ro lnitltut. ofTech^ology M!n.g.mcnt And Reselr<h Llmitod
tiot.s to thc Conrolid.tcd Fln.ncl6l St.tomenB for the y..r cndcd 31 A .r<h 202,t
(lmount rn INR lakhs, untess othe^iise stated)

st.tom..t ot proflt and loss

Net Employmant Services Private Limited
For the period onded

28.O1-2074
For the year endod 11

03-2023

Prollt for the pedod/year

Other Compreiensive lncome

)779
{r 81)

103.99

2315
0.28

21.41

746
Tot.l comor.he.3lvc lncom. (3.8U

Protlt.lloc.tcd to llcl (r.331

f_or the period cndcd
23-01-2024

15.33
ril.15

(9r.i5)
.i.o3

Cash ilows rrom operdtrnq activrties
Ca:h llov,s lrom irvestinc acuvitles

Stai.ment of c.sh flow5

Ca:l (lows fronr trndncr

Serviccr Prw.te Limitcd
Fci the ycar endod 31

03-2023

Net

22.33

1l 20

16.tt

l,tumbai
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology Managemsnt And Research Limited
Note! to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year eoded 31 zrch 7024
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless olhervise stoted)

42 Corporate Social Responsjbility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companrer act, 2011, during the year, Croup is required to comply with the CSR requirements which rs

fo.mation of the CSR coinoittee, identification of the C t pro]ects and funding slrch projects for at least two percent of \e average
net profits of the Group Cdring the three irnmedia'.ely pre(eding iinanciai years. The Croup has initiat.{ the process for meeting there
compliance requirements and made a donation towards Gtobal Education Trust, The purpo'e of the trust is to provide upLiftment of
educatior sector and provrding employment opportunjt'es.

Details of CSR Expenditure are as follows:

Paniculars
For the year ended

l1 l,larch 2024
For the year ended

l1 March 2023

Gross amount required to be 5pent duriog the ye3r
Amouot approved by the tloard to be ipend during the year

22.25
25.00

1l.62
r5.00

Amount spend during the ye3r ended on 31 l,Aarch 2024 ln Cash
Yet to be p.id in

cash
Total

Amouit spent during the year:
i) Constru<tion/Acquisition of any asset
ii) 0n purposer other thao li) abov!' 25.00 25-('10

25.00 2 5.00

Amount spend during the year ended on 31 lvarch 2021 ln Cash
Yet to be paid in

cash
Total

15.00 15.00
15.00

Amount spent during the year:
i) Construction/Acquisition of any aslet

On other than (i) above
Total 15.00

B ietailr reiated to amouht spent/ unspent

Total

For the year ended
31 ltarch 2024

For the year snd(d
31 ,,larch 2023

Accrualtowards unspent oblig.tions in relation to
OrEJing poects
O:her than Ongoing proiects 25.00 15.00

2 5.O0 15.00

a Con:ribution to Related Parties/ CSR Expendjture incurred v.ith R€lat€d Pa.ties

Particulars Nature of
Relaticnship

For the year ended
31 l arch 2024

For the year ended
31 l'{arch 2023

Accrual towardr unspent obligations in relation to

other than Ongoing proiects
Management

under common
control

25.00

Total 25.00 15.O0

15.00

,{otes:

(i) Nature of CsR activitie5 undertakm during the currmt and prcvioils yenr \^€re lJpliftmeit of Education Sector anJ ProvidinB

EhdoynFnt or[brtunities.
(ii) The amount has been sp,rt for the purpore other than tovrards construction/acquit ion of any asset as approved in the meeting of the

Board of Directoc.

\
tulumbaiAp
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J.ro lnstitute Of Technology 
^ 

anagement And Research limlted
Noter to tir: Consolidated Fin.ncial St.temeit5 for the year ended 31 tJti,rch 2C24
(Anount in INR lokht, urt.tt other9|ise stote.t)

43 Falr Value Measurement

A The CarryliS ValJe ol alnancial Assetr by citqorl.s is as foltows

B The C.rMng V.lue of Fin.nci.l Liabllities by CateSories is .r follows:

riotal fin.nci.l h.bilities measured.r

31 M..ch 2024
Fin.ncl.l .sieti me$urod .t.mortisd cost

Loans to ernployee
loairs lo retated partiet
Loan5 to otherr
Other financiat asrett
Trade receivables
Eank and bank balance other than cash and cash equivatents
Cash and cash equivatentt

5-79

1,080.8!
1,169.10

7.74
1,841.48

13.81

2,182_80

1,580.16

972.)2
?87_76

601.29
712.11

Total financial .$elr measured at cost 4,'106.45 6,880.25

11 l.rch 2023

ll March 2024 31 ritar(h 2023
Financi.l li.biiitle' me.surd .t amonl3€d €ott

6orrow, r8s

Leare liabilities
Trade payable

OtlEr f inanciat tiabiLities

7,484_12
1,568.59

7,064-57
105.80

1,776-91
r,601.68
1,960-22

t96.00
6,2 2 3.68 7,734.81

C F.lr v.lue hier.rchy
Tne iotlowi,r8 is the hierarchy for determinjnS and disctosing the fair value of linancial insiruments Lry valuation t€thnique

(i) Ar per lnd AS 107 -Financial lnsrument: Disclosure", fair valLre dit(lo5ures are not required when the carrling amounts reason.bly
tpproximate the faiivatue. Accordingty fat vatue disclosur6 have no: been made fcr the fctlowing finaicial instruments:-

L.1el l: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in acttve markets for identicat .s.ets or liabilitie6.
Level 2: Other techniques loi which atl inpuB Lhat have a sigrilicant elf3cl on lhe rc<orded fair value are obsewabte, either direcity
ci ;ndtectty.
isvel 3: Teahniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair vatue lhat a.e not based oa observable market

16ta.

i- TraCe Re(eivabtes
2- aash and Cash Equivalents
:. O:her BanI Batance!

5. Oiher Frnancials Arsets

6. Eorrowings
7. Lease Liabilities
E. Trade Payablet
9. Other Fin3nciaL LiabiLities

t,lumbai
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J.rc lnni:ute Ol Te.hnology M.nlge €nt and Reie..(x Linited
Not6 to th€ canrolio.ted rlmn.i.l st.tem..te tor thc year ended 3l L.rch 202a
(Atuunt i^ INR lokhs. unlessothltwise sroted)

,la FlMn.ial.irr mln semdt
lr tie cou.se ct irs tusiness, the Gro'Jp ir erpoled 2rinariry to t.-ri(,ity r;sr. ,nterest rate n,xtuation ri'l. .redit risk..o foreiSn erchanle nuduatio.

A liquidity Rlrk

liquidity risl ir the isk t.a'. the Grodp wi{ er.ounter difficulty in me€ting !h€ obligaSons alseiated with its finarci.l li.oilitrer that 3re seltted by
deliveini calh or another rin fiial ass€t. -he Group'r app:onch tc maoagiry liquidity riql is to ensure. as far as possibte. that it wllt alrlays have

lufli.renr iiquidiiy !o meet it5 liabirities wnen due. under norhal and strcssed co.rdilions, witi\oJt incuring una..eptabte lo{res o. risking &mage lo its
reDrratjo4. iypjcarly, trle 6roup enslres thar it nas sulfident c.5h oi demand tc meet exr\e.tec operatiorl expenses and seMce financial obiigatiofis.

lhe table belowarnDad2et lhe matu.it/ p.olile cl the GioJp r finan.i.t tiabiliris laed on contrictdal payments ai each repoiing date:

Ar at 31 ,nrch 2C24

55.50
9?1.93

2,429.71
576.61

2.064.17
,05.E0Cther linanci.i li.bitities

2,411,81

55.5C

911.93

15.41

476.61

7, 4.57
105.80

2,762.19 'l,o47.4A 6,22j,652,4 i3.81

As at 31 l{arch 2021

BoiowinSs

Other lhaiciaL liabiLltict

2,555.53 a8i.28
413.56

1,960.22
396.00

710.C9

t.tol.l2
740.6

1,161.12

t.0t6.52
418.56

r,960.22
396.9J

2,555.51 3,276.06 1,roa.2',l 7,731.E1

Mark€t n5k is th€ r;.k !h.t lhe tair value ot future carh flows of a financial instrument wrtl fllctuate becaut€ ol changes in .narlGt pnces. A,larket nsk

comprises rh.e3 types of.irk: ForeiSn cunency risk, lnterest rate risk and credit rith. lhe Cetails are giv€n betow :

(l) lnt€r..t R.ia R rl
flE Gr p! erporur€ to inlerert rate risl arises from borrowingr which haw . lloatinS rate of inter6t, whi€h is MCLR.TTE rl* ls ftena8€d b/ the Group

by nain:.ining .n appropiate nlx ot fi(ed .nd fioatln8 late borrorringr. The co6ts of floatjng rdte bono' lnS5 may be .ffected by lhe fitlcluaUons ln the

ll ribrch 2024 31 , .rch 2021

Vatuble rat€ borrorinEs
iixed rate brrovrinqs

2,413.81
70.91

Irter6t r.:. lnsltlYlty .n tyrls
Tl.! ,ollowing ta5t. d€monstrstE the senri:ivlty to. reasonabty porrible change in interest rates on bonof.lngs. Ihe below tabLe depictr postiue lmpact
on tie Groups Profit Before Td(

31 Aarch 2024 3l fiarch 2023

Itr Increare ln I'.CIR
lI d€creas€ in IICLR

(2{.1{)
24.14

174.101
24.74

re to i;rter€s! rlte risk

otr.

2 Art

lytumbat

rlY
*e

t
%*'
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2,470.06
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(ii) Credit Riik
Credit risk arils trom the ixlltibi.iit that customers may not be abLe to settie then obligatjons as agreed. Tr.d€ re(ervabiei are typically unsecured and
are derrved from revenue earned ir'orn.ustof,€'s located in India. (redit rirk is na.aged through p€riodic aseessme.t ot the finan.ial .etlablllty of
custorers, takjng inlo .ccouii lhe financial condition, .urrent economic trends, anatysis of histoncat bad debts and aBerng ot trade receivables. Other
financiat inrtruments that are subje.t to.redit .isk inctudes cash and (arh eqlivalenls, bank deposits, loans and se.urity deposits-

The narimum exposur€ to.reiit .isk at tire .eporting date is prioarlly lroh trade receivabtB which amounted to r i 1,i69.10 & lNR 767.7b takhs as at
11 iarch 2024.nd ll l1orcn 2023 rerpectiveiy. The Gr@p provides impairment altowafte usinS the ECI modcl or |,ade r€.ervabLe5 by following
simplilieo aporoacir. A, irnpairmen! anatysis ir p€normed at ea(h repo4lng date on an indindual cuslorner ba5is.

The credii nsk m.asn ad.ash equivaterrts anc ,ank depositr is timit€d b€cause the counterpartiB are bank with high credil ratings.

The marimum exposure to.reoi! risk is equa! to the.arrying vatu€ of th€ fin.ncial .ss€ts. The obje(tve of nanaging counterp.dy .redit .isl is to
prevent toss€s in financial asset3. The Sroup ass€sses tne .redit quality of th€ counlerpartiE, Laldng into account their ri.snciat position, past ereerience

Th€ Group does a crEdibility clE<t on the la.dtordr 5efore takinS any property on lease aod hasn't had a ringle instan e ot non retund or surity&poeit
oi va..!ng the Leased Droperty. ih€ Gror:p aiso in tome car€s ensure that the noti.e p€nod rentals are adluned against the securiiy d€Dosits and onlv
differentiat, il any. is or,:d orr rhe.eby furlher mirigating the non.reatizatron rirh.

l1 l ar(h 2024 lr r6rch 2023

Balan.e at ihe beslinli! ofthe y..r
CharB€d tc profit and lo.r a.court
written ofl aqajnsr bad debt

352.'t 1

t113.59)
t52.66)

747.49
r 0.1.62

8.l.n.e at the end of the year

(iii) Forelgn currency .l5t
Th€ Croup has limited intern.rional t.ansactions.nd thut iB e;posrre to foreign exchange ftuctuition nsk is low- Tr€ Broup has loLLowing fo.eign
currency exposures:

e.ted.re.l* lGr ir.s followr:

Foreign.urrency risk etPorure:

185.66 152.11

Erposure in Russian Ruble

Se(.rrity deposit recevabtes

Io'..1

31 ar.h 2024 31 l a.ch 2023

5.26

5.12

l1 i{ar<h 2024 l1 ,larch 2021

0.m

0.91

0.07 C 5'
0.98 10.54 0.59

',t

L/
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Jaro lnstitute Of Technology M.nager'lent A.d Resea.(h tinited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial StateFenls lo. the year ended 31 /'larch 2024
(Amount in INR lokhs, unl"ss othetwise stoted)

45 Capital manasement policies and procedures

The Groupt capilai conpris-.s eqirity 5hare.apital. secudties prefiiuo and all other equity reserve5 attributable to the equity

The Group's objectives when managing capitat are to :

- safeguard their abitity to continue as a gcing concern, so that they aan conlinue to provide returns for sharehotders and benetits
for other stakeholders, and
- maintain an optjmat capital stru.ture to reduce the cost of capital.

The 6roup monitoB capital usi4g a retic of 'adjrsted net debt' to 'equity'. For this purpole, adiusted net debt is defined as total
borrowings less cash and brnk balarces. Total equjty comprises atl components of equity.

No changes were nade in the objcctives, po(icies or processes for managing capital of the Group during the current year and
previous years.

The 6roup's adjt6ted net debt to eqlity ratio was a! follows:

ll March 2024 31 ,,larch 2023
Total Equiiy {i) '|,743.26 8,156.09
Total bor.owings
Lcss: Cash ano bank baianaes (i!1ctudin8 d€po:.rts with banks)

1,484.7 )
(1,851.22)

3,776.91
( 1,143.40)

Adjusted net debt (ii) 63 3.50 2,433.31
Overall financing (iii ). (i)+(ii) 12,)76.76 10,749.60
Gearing ratio (ii)/(iii) 5-12% 72.55%

No changes were made in the obiectives, oolicjes or process€s for ma.Eging capitat during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31

March 2021.

M

[tumbgl x
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J.ro lnstitute Of T<hnoloty Manatement Aod Re*.rc\ Limited
otee to the Consoiid.ted Fin.^cl.l Sl.teme:ts l@ the ye.. ended l1 ,.Lr.,: 2024

lAtaunt in INR lokhs, unlets otheryis. stoted)

a6 Share Sakd Paymentt
Emptoyee sh.re option Pl.n (ESOP)

The boaro vide its .eelution Cated 0.r ApriL 2022 approved EsOP 2022 for grantin! Employee StGk Options in form ol equity shares tirxed !o tne co pletion
of a minimum penod oI .ofitinuec employmen! to t,re €Ugibte e|rrptoy(,{ ol the Botding Company, monitor€d and superviFa iry the Board ol on.'ciDr'. t hc
employeer can purchar€ equity rharer by exer.i$i5 th€ opuon! ar v€sled at the piice specified in the grant. The date of grint {or ESOP aprion 's 02 Ma,
7023.

a. DetaiLs ol stockgrantsas lnder .

b. The weighted .verage exer.r!( pri.e ol the cptiom cllstandiE a! at l1 March ?CZl & l1 Mar.h 2!?l is INR 10 pei !ha.e

lweighteo ave.age snare pd.e rRs.)

Weightea ,ve.age sh.re

192.U

Th€ fair y.lu€ of the € otoyee iha/€ optione has becn nea$ied unng the Bla.k-khotet Option Pndn8 i odel- The weighted averagc f.ir vatue of th€ optlon3
gra.ted is Rs. 252.49.

lian.he 3 Vesting on
2nd l ay, 2025

162.@

c.@i
50.oca

6.14
3

253.71

Dividend y'etd (1)

&pected votatility (16)

Risk-fre inter€st rate (%)

Time to expiration (in yeals)

weighted av€rage fair value

The Group has cha,ged INR 160.1t t.Ihs {lr March 202:: lfiR l78-0r Lakhst (r?.rrd! cohpensation cost penaining to the ihare baed payments. The ESoF cost

is in.luded in rote 27 Emplc'y€€ Be.€tits Expente.

3l 
'ltarch 

2023

Options outstanding at the bqinnrrg or the yea.
add: Options granred d!rin8 the year

Less: Options e)(erc:sed during lhe year

Less: Options foraeited durii3 the year

,";:,1

(13,170)l

2,92.771

t25,4411
310

:c.c0

;ran<he 1 Vesting oo
2nd M.y, 2023

Tranche 2 Vesting on
znd l ay, 2C2t

262.m

c.@r
50.0016

5.54%

z

251.05

262.N

5C.00*

5.01x

1

752.19

l,,iurnbal

"z

*

2,53,746



J.ro lNtitut. Ot Tlchnolo$, li.nr!.mcht Ahd R.t.rrch Llmlt.d
Not.r to thc Co rolldltcd FiBnci.l St tcm.ht! tor th. ye.r .ndcd 3l l .r.h 2024
lAmouht in INR tokhs, untess otherwise statecl)

r .ndcd 3l M.r<h 202a.

' - Nct Profit after tar repretents profit lor the yaar trom thc contirurnS operatiom

?

lnventory Turnover and Trad€ Payabtes Turnover ratior .r. not .pplicabte to the Group du€ to Mture ot businetr and currenl rtatus of oterationt.
Earnin8 for d.bt rervice = Net protit after tares . Non-calh operatin8 expensei like depre<iation .nd other amonisatjons + lnterest + other adiustm€ntr like loss on

sete of PP&E etc.

lncofile ,rom invettments ' lnatuder protit/tors on sale and fair vatuation of current inv€stm€nts, dividend oo cLrrrent inveatment and interett imome,

7024 2023
R..ion for v.ri.nc€

Current Ratio (trmes) 2.59 1.62 60.15'"
Due to irrrease in unbitted revenue ot current

(bt D€bt-Equity Rano (times) 0.21 045 (53.19X) Due to prepayment of borrowrnB dunng lh€ year

(c)
Debt SerYi.e Coverage Ratio
(times) 3.71 1.45 155.061 Due to increase in earning of €urrent year

(d) Return or Equity Rrtio I%) lers pref.
DivideM

Average tolal equrty l7.El% 15.04i 151.561. Due to incre.se in earning of curreht y€ar

Tr.de Receivabtes Turnover
Raho (times) Credit Sales 20.34 1E.l3 1 1.01% No l,{aterEt Movemer\t

( I
N.t C.pital Turmver Ratio

Itimei)
Aver.g€ Workrn3 Capt.l z_77 1.19 {r1.151) No llatenal 

^ 
overnent

ls) Revenue f rom operatrons I9.10C 9.14... r04.161 oue to rrErease rn profit of cunent year

(ht
R.tum on C.pilat Emplqred

tl) EBIT Capitat emptoyed 40.90i 19.12'" 1l I 97r oue to incr€as€ in profit of current year

llombai

t



Jaro r.!tit!t. o' rr'..hnoloty l .nq.frenr And Rese.r.t lhit?d
{ctet lo the conlolrd.t.d Fin.ir.l St.leme.te for t.e y.a. .nd€ d I I rbr(h 2o2a
(A6&nr in ll{i lakhe, u.lBe othetuie stared)

a8 Addillo.lctul.torlint.r-.tion
i, _. itl? deedt ol lmmov.ble P.op€n ica not he,d in h.h. ot the Cc6p.ny

ihse.re no if,oovaDie propenr* he,c oy the Cr@p

ii. Del.ili of lo.nr tlv.n, inv6ti.nr Frd. and gu.ra.t.. llven cov.rel u/r 1 86( !) oi !h. Compali6 A.t, 201 l

wo,ting c4itai purpose

iii. Utili$tion ot ad.oe.d luh.h
No lun<h haw bM ada.ce3 or l@.ed o.66le! (€itncr trrn borrow.d f!n6 or r\a? pidium cr ary orner ryr.es o. kird ol tun6r) by the Grou, tooi rn any

orher pe63n(t) d nrty{i6). in(tuding io.eigtr e.rjti6 l"lntFmediari6") wi$ $. cd4:andin8. wi€thn redded in wnting or otnetuire, that lhe litemediary
snall lod orin6t in panyidfiliri:d by q o bch6ll of:heGroup (Ultimate Sdefi.iai6).

rhe G'orip hae nor rfteivcd any 'und lrm a6y parr,y(t) lFunJin! Pany) witlr 'i. !.d.-atrndrn! $at the GGrt rhall whethe., dnEtly or hdirectly l€.d o. inv€st in
orh$ perlonr o. er.rlri6 idenrilied by or on b4n.ll of tre G_oJ! l"lllrim.te ?6eli.ian6,i or c.ovioc any guara.re, s<urity or the like on behalf ol !h€ ultim*e

iv. ticv.lu.tlon ol prop..ty, pl.nt .nd equipn.^t (in.luding .irht-of-ue .$€t.) od itrl gible .riert
Ihe Group ha3 not rcvalued its propdty, Plant and Equipmdt (including Right 01 ule Asses), ths v.luatioi by a regisleren val4r ar defined unds rlle 2 ol l5e
CoFpani6 (REaitt€red V.tu€6 and valuaCon) Ruis, 2017 i!.o(applicable.

-the Group do6 nor h.f a.y litingible A5seB, rn!s, dis.losu/es retatiry to .aaluarim oI Intangibie Asets ir not appu.able.

v, o.!.ik of b.n.Di prop.ny hcld
TheGrorp6cs.ot hawany 8ena6i propeny, wh€.eany prceding ha3 bs initiatea or psCing againrt the cdpanyfor hotding a.y Bsami prcpsty

The GrouF hae neluer defaultd nor bee d<la.ed wililut dctaulter by any bnnk or finaijal intitetlo. or otner Gndei

ii. que.rlv trturnt
Qla4erly 6:umlcr ita!€4entr ol clrror ari4r tirea by i're rlolding cdnrany vi'n De*s c. firarcial jnstitutrm5 a.e ii agrffidt with the wt ol ac.ou.!

vrli, R.lntiJTln. rih rtr!(k ofi.np..le!
ihe aro(lp dr6 .or hale any ir.nscri@s with the Coinpani6 sttu.t oaf !.der Kfioi 2 ii r! the Conpani6 Act, 201 I or lectio. t60 of the Co{rpanies Act, 1956

ir. R.t;,tr.tnin of ch.r8.3 or iiiLf..tion with Rotttr.r oiComp.ni.r (ROC)

Tlr! G.cup a46 noi hav. a.y cia 196 or stislaction rhi(h ls yet to Le rqillerd with iOC i(yo.d the st tutory peno!.

r. Complja(-wlth nuober ol l.y.rr of ..mP.nl.s
Tnc Hoid6! iompany har.dnplicJ wiu the n(lf,:rer of tai€s p.sribeC hder clause it7) cl s<tjon 2 oI the Ad read with Cmpa.i6 (R6trictid m number ol
l]y--n) RJ:},2017.

xl corpll.... with .ppid.d s.h.nd.) of Ar..itl.m.ntr
The lioldint Ccmp.ny h.3 not enter€d lnto afi/ rdi.i:e of .rr.ryffteiB as ap?6Gd by,Jre (mFt6t anthdity i. t€me of 5€.llo.' 2lO to 217 of the Cornp.n16
Ac:, 2011, thr6, dF di$l@rer rclating to cornplian c with ap9o€d idrc,n€ ol.n nten.nt. j5 not applicable to the t ol6ng Co'irp.iy,

nl ',Jhdixb.d L.om
Tn€ Groq &,.5 not have any rnd,s.t6€d imdn. wiidr ls not re.o.ded i. the Lods of lccosr lhat ha5 been lrrr€nderd or di'.tcE€d .5 ln(o.n€ dunry tho year
(p.€vo{6 F r) in th€ irr a$6'n€nu u1d€r ti€ ln.crne T.! A.t, 1961 -

nia 0.6ilr of (.ypto Cur....y d Vlnql Csr.n<y
ile Grcup hai not t..d€d or inFsled jn <.ypto @r€n.y or nnual cuntll.y &nrB Ure.unent o. previcrs yea.
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J.ro lnstitul€ of Te.5 nr l€y ,!la.ag.,!* i a.a R.r!.ch Lim'ted
lot.3 to rhe co.rai,dated ;rnaocial Sraleme.G lor tn. re.r erce.r l , nar.h 2O2a
(anem r^ r{R la.l.\. -!ess rrhe.sre 5tn c.l

a9 subseqlst ac.t
No Srgnii-.rl ',!5s:ir-.:1 rvelr 'a@ oe. cbtejr.i,n,cr 6ay reqlne.n adjuttre.E to tielin!...r1 5tarements

50 Prevlo$ y:a. 'i!d6 f,aw been -e!.dpco / 
' 
e.laeriried ro .6Jirn pregrato as pe. lnd a5 and .s requtrc{ by s.hedlte L oI ine a.t.

5l Th6E fira;.:a L j.arer€nu haw b€en a)r.ov!d lor 
'rsue 

by rhe b€rd of cirEto6 al irs meeti.g heid on 26 sep(mber 2024

^3 
p€r our reoo.t o, €ver c2te atta(h.c

ForlltS(A6Aitociates

Ftm Reqisrrarir rto. 10t047W

ror and fi b€nali of rhe Soard of Die.tors
Jaro lnetitlt. ol T4h.ology [anage@nt ard Ree.rch Limiied
clrt: u6oi01r,r+12009P1C193957

,'Jb4 .M,--\..J-r
*ri]".**.
0tN.0190632 DrN.071l29C4 ,,{dnber,llip Number. A65797.obeRhip $o: 1160a.

aate: 26 septemb.r 2r2! Dare: 26 tee:enbe. ?o2r Date: 26 s€prmber 202a Date: 25 Septembe.2024 DiIe: ?6 s.pt4b€r 202r
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